023

& %W
GOLDPAC G ANNUAL
: REPORT ik

(RBEBEMRIZNEG
(incorporated in Hon
BR434X3% Stock Code : C




CONTENTS
B &%

2 Corporate Information
PEER

5 Financial Highlights
MGmE

6 2023 Major Events
2023F KE:

8 Chairman’s Statement
IERE

12

28

40

99

Management Discussion and Analysis
EIRE & R R AT

Directors and Senior Management
EELRAERE

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g RERWME

Report of Directors

EFEWmE




Corporate Governance Report Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
TEEAWS REEREER

Independent Auditor’s Report Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

B LB RS RAERERER

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Other Comprehensive Income fRE B SR IR
maBnkEMEEmKAX

Financial Summary
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position BB E

Pl
(@)
e P
iy
(&)
-‘-_;'." -




PLACE OF LISTING

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)

STOCK CODE

3315

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. WU Sigiang

Mr. LU Wai Lim

Ms. LI Yijin

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Ms. YE Lu
Mr. LAl Tung Kwok

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (chairman)
Ms. YE Lu
Mr. LAl Tung Kwok

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. YE Lu (chairman)
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. LU Run Ting (chairman)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Ms. YE Lu

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok

02 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Nallicp:F
EBBAZDHAERAT (B

i 12 X 5%

3315

HITES

EMEXRLE(ZE)
& FERE
EEfREE
REwELE
EHFRELE
FHERL

BAFHITES

BRRAE
® xxt
RRE AL

BEREEE

BRMREE (TE)
® Fudt
RIRE &

FHEES

® Rt (EE)
EMERE
BRRELE

REEEE

EMEELRLE (ZE)
& FEE
BRFRAE
® xxt
RRE AL



LEGAL ADVISOR

Mayer Brown

16th—19th Floors, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22nd Floor, Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. LU Run Ting
Ms. LI Yijin

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited
Bank of China Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.
Postal Savings Bank of China Limited

EEEB

FFLEITERN1T
B8

IR

T E105%
KFKE16-1918

B B ED

B KESFTMEBST
HED AT

R Fl ot B B2 EAT
BB

AR

KFKRE22E

DNAEME
FHELL
REAX

FHELL

EFERTT

FERTT(BE)BERAA
MABERITARAA
RERITRD AR AR
FETHERITRODAERAR
B R IR TT
RBRITEMDBRAF]
B B I R & IR AT

EHREREERERAT —B-=FFR

03

_n
T =
2 .o
o C
c5%
T oo

2023
Major Events
2023 K FiE

Chairman’s

Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance

Financial

Management Discussion

Environmental,
Social and

Report of

Statement
EFE®RE

and Analysis
BB w R

SRERRE

Management

Governance Report
% HBREAHE | PPN

R

b

Directors
BEgWmE

Statements
MRS



REGISTERED OFFICE, HEADQUARTERS AND
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG

KONG
Room 1301, 13th Floor

Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.goldpac.com

INVESTOR RELATION
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #R & ¥4&
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For the year ended
31 December

BE12A3MALZFEE = L6
2022 Change SER
RMB'000 4 £2®
ARBFL -
Revenue :ON 1,416,573 1,530,251 74%  ST0
Profit for the year attributable to KRNBHEE ANEL 132,051 147,427 -10.4%
owners of the Company [ ) o
EE®
Net profit margin RS 10.7% 10.5% +0.2PP Ez4
ERaE
REVENUE ANALYSIS Yt A 5 #7
For the year ended £
31 December g
BZ12A31HILZEE 2
2022 Change 5
RMB’000 1 §ue
AREFT 5 g
o e
S &
Embedded software and secure BRARBGNEZ 2 949,781 1,009,115 -5.9% v
payment products ST EE -
Platform and service F & MR 466,792 521,136 -10.4% R
Total att 1,416,573 1,530,251 7.4% T
ST S
FINANCIAL POSITIONS 8 # iR 5% 5 8n

At 31 December

R12A318 sel
2022 Change 2gé
RMB’000 =¥g = O

AREF T -
Total assets mEE 2,693,907 2,813,857 43% .o
Total liabilities et (598,836) (743,294) -19.4% s2a
BT
g

Net assets FEE 2,095,071 2,070,563 +1.2% 8
g
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2023 MAJOR EVENTS
2023F KRERE

INNOVATION DRIVEN BY TECHNOLOGY
NEBRBANYR P
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Goldpac was
listed as one of
the country’s
top fintech
enterprises

eMEIERAEBNERREMNE
SEBIERRTT R R BB 8

i the 2023 MR R AIF R F HEmME] T .

KPMG China B HESR 1T 5 Bh AR 75 Bl . o m \
o Goldpac’s “Al Credit Card EHEILZ2INRETRERT
leading .Fmt.eCh Customisation Solutions” was RIKE2023FhEEKRREE 5
>0 Elecltllon n honoured with the Innovation REpeHEERRBERERE R
;icggpﬁl&rl/ Compeltitivelnetss Product title in Goldpac’s "LOYV'C?beH Secure
olatform the China Digital and Software Payment Solution” was awarded
: Services Awards, further enhancing the Green Development
the advancements of the financial Demonstration Award by the 2023
services industry. China International Fair for Trade in

Services (CIFTIS).

eREANEPRERBEFEREKSE TumE BEESGHKRE & BELE
RFIEE HER - wLERRE [t EEE]
EFEERS L FORREN-RN ) Goldpac’'s effective ESG

Goldpac was shortlisted as a |
project supplier of the China i
UnionPay Card Product Planning & rE
Service Programme. Its work helps |
to strengthen the capabilities in “""E'
the entire-industry-chain services

for credit cards.

practices were recognised
with the Outstanding
Corporate Social
Responsibility Award for the
second consecutive year.
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2023 MAJOR EVENTS
2023F KRS

% #BE = MTrustech Paris 2023 * Seamless
Europe 2023, Seamless Middle East 2023
ErtRe  BREFZEHNBRERA
Goldpac raised its international presence by
exhibiting at some of the most prominent
trade events in the finance sector including
Seamless Europe 2023, Seamless Middle East
2023, Trustech Paris 2023, among others.
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1 2 IR

Our stunning card effects were
honoured with three ICMA Elan
Awards in 2023, once again
demonstrating our excellent design and
innovation capabilities.
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Goldpac was honoured with the
2023 CLS ZhiYuan - Corporate
Governance Pioneer Enterprise
Award, reinforcing our competitive
advantages in sustainable
developments.

Chairman’s
Statement

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

JIE R 3@ BCMMI L5 R A A AT
FERSUMRNESHEE
Goldpac successfully passed the
CMMI Maturity Level 5 reassessment

for continuous improvements in 5 i
our software delivery quality and éi:&
capabilities. 2 5;
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Goldpac, in cooperation with the Bank of China, constructed the digital currency UM b Drstepnd, V23 g ¢
innovation pilot site, establishing a digital currency ecosystem in the Guangdong — L — S
Hong Kong — Macao Greater Bay Area. T
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of directors (the
“Directors” and “Board”, respectively) of
Goldpac Group Limited (the “Company”), | am
delighted to present the Annual Report of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for

the year ended 31 December 2023.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Over the past 30 years, the Group has won the trust and support
of over 1,000 financial institutions and other customers worldwide
through its solid and steady developments, achieving compelling
results and stable shareholder returns. At present, digitalisation
has taken the world by storm, and the rapid development of
artificial intelligence (“Al”) has brought a great transformative
force into economic development. The Group integrates intelligent
manufacturing and modern services with its own innovative digital
platforms to continue making technological breakthroughs that
position the Group at the forefront of digital development. The
Group’s inclusion as one of the country’s top fintech enterprises
in the 2023 KPMG China leading Fintech 50 Election fully
demonstrates the effectiveness of its digital and platform-based
strategy.

Since 2023, the global economic landscape has been facing
multiple challenges and the market has been full of changes. In
the Chinese mainland, mobile payment and online banking have
enriched payment methods. Credit card as the only payment
tool that is widely accepted around the globe, still maintains
its popularity. Recently, the Chinese government released
guidelines on further improving the quality and convenience of
payment services, promoting the parallel development of multiple
complementary payment methods involving bank cards, which has
been actively responded to by the People’s Bank of China, China
UnionPay, and NetsUnion Clearing Corporation. The requirements
boost confidence in the development of the payments industry and
the Group will undoubtedly grasp any opportunities for growth
and advancements. The Group will further consolidate its core
businesses and develop its digital and platform-based strategy for
a new era of digital intelligence.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FERS (&)

Following closely to the trend of integrated development in the
digital and real economy, the Group's digital platform leverages Al,
privacy computing, big data, and cutting-edge algorithms to satisfy
the transformation needs of bank customers, end consumers, and
small-to-medium enterprises. Through organic integration of online
and offline activities, the digital platform reshapes the value chain
of the traditional financial institution business model, creating an
innovative ecosystem for the payment value chain.

For enterprise customers (B2B), the UMV platform offers three
key benefits of improved efficiency, reduced costs, and enhanced
customer experience, all with the aim to support the business
needs of small batch and rapid payment products issuance.
Through refined management and customised services, the UMV
platform facilitates financial institutions in transforming their
business models from a large scale and unified business model
to small batches and customised business model, helping them
to improve the quality, variety, and efficiency of their services to
customers. Moreover, the platform revolutionises the payment card
customer acquisition model, enabling more financial institutions to
reach end consumers and targeted customer groups directly.

Catering for the customer demands of digital transformation and
seizing the “Al+" development opportunities, the Group now owns
close to 100 cutting-edge algorithms with high performance, three
invention patents and Al applications including Internet content
vetting, facial recognition, speech recognition, Al voice call, Al
digital human, and image processing, etc., providing customers
with technological services that are more convenient, economical
and efficient.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

Innovation and security are the foundations that enable the Group
to maintain its leading position in the secure payment industry.
Leveraging on the digital platform, the Group will always adhere
to the pillars of innovation and security and continue to build on
the core advantages established from the past 30 years. Remaining
firmly grounded while setting sights on the future, | believe the
fundamental need for payment tools will stay unchanged no
matter how technologies develop. The Group will follow closely
to the changing demands of customers and fully implement
the digital and platform-based strategy, which will bring
considerable potential for the Group’s strategic development in the
medium-to-long term.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to extend
my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, members of the
Board, management teams, staff and business partners of the
Group.

Lu Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

PRIORITIZING STABILITY FOR A NEW ERA
OF TRANSFORMATION

In 2023, the haze of COVID-19 gradually dissipated and the global
economy should have started to recover as expected. However, due
to the impact of geopolitical turmoil, supply chains were disrupted
and trade relationships were restructured, causing a divided global
economic landscape which hindered economic recovery. Although
China’s economy has demonstrated strong resilience during this
period, with insufficient effective demand and exports under
pressure, China’s economic recovery still faces many challenges.

In an increasingly complicated macro-environment, the global
sci-tech industry has entered a phase of rapid and continuous
innovation with digital, intelligent and green transformations
advancing at an accelerated pace. In the payments industry,
recently, the Chinese government released guidelines on further
improving the quality and convenience of payment services,
promoting the parallel development of multiple complementary
payment methods including bank cards, which boosts confidence
in the development of the payments industry. Leveraging on
the accumulated advantages it has gained in the field of secure
payments over 30 years, the Group is able to continue furthering
its competitive edge by making greater efforts in fintech innovation
and adapting its product structure. The Group is pushing forward
its digital and platform-based strategy, looking to integrate and
restructure the industry and value chain through the development
of the UMV platform, paving the way for technological
advancements by seizing opportunities for transformation and
growth in a rapidly evolving ecosystem.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEHNWmRDN @)

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, despite adverse factors
such as weaker-than-expected effective demand and lackluster
consumer sentiment in the Chinese mainland, the Group
still recorded a revenue of approximately RMB1.417 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 7.4%.
Leveraging on the leading advantages in secure payment industry,
the Group has been actively tapping into emerging markets and
expanding its global business territories. The Group recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB319.9 million in markets outside
the Chinese mainland, accounting for approximately 22.6% of the
Group’s revenue and achieving a significant year-on-year growth
of approximately 27.5%.

Facing changes in market demands, the Group strategically
adjusted its product structure, increased the proportion of high
value-added products and continuously optimized its supply chain
management. During the year, the Group’s gross profit was
approximately RMB420.1 million, and gross profit margin increased
3.3 percentage points to approximately 29.7%. Benefiting from
its strategic advancement and refined management, operating
expenses decreased by approximately 10.1% year-on-year.
In addition, the Group’s profit for the year decreased by
approximately 6.1% to approximately RMB151.2 million while the
exchange gains decreased. The Group’s net profit margin remained
stable at approximately 10.7%, maintaining its solid profitability.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group’'s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB1,952.9 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 7.4%. The Group’s
current ratio and quick ratio were approximately 3.5 and 3.0
respectively, while its gearing ratio was close to 22.2%. The Group
still maintained a high level of liquidity and low gearing ratio. The
Group will adhere to a prudent financial management policy and
optimize its capital structure.

The Board proposed to declare a final dividend of HK10.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB9.2 cents) per ordinary share
(HK12.0 cents in 2022) and a special dividend of HK4.0 cents
(equivalent to approximately RMB3.7 cents) per ordinary share
(HK4.0 cents in 2022) for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, a new phase of technological revolution and industrial
reform emerged, and global sci-tech innovations continued to
grow in breadth, depth, and speed. Riding the wave of digital
transformation, the Group focused on growth along continuous
exploration and limitless innovation to fully promote digital and
platform-based transformations. The Group will continue to
innovate effectively while embracing core business advantages to
generate new opportunities amid inevitable change.

Due to fluctuations in consumer markets, the Group's embedded
software and secure payment products business segment recorded
a revenue of approximately RMB949.8 million, representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 5.9%. However, by
continuously strengthening supply chain management, optimizing
product structure, and using digital and platform-based marketing
tools to increase product value, the gross profit of the Group’s
embedded software and secure payment products business
segment rose by approximately 19.3% compared to last year.
Meanwhile, the growth potential of the international markets
was continuously explored through the launching of embedded
software and secure payment products that meet the technical
specifications required by international markets and the diverse
needs of each country. The revenue from markets outside the
Chinese mainland grew by approximately 27.2% to approximately
RMB296.7 million.

The Group’'s revenue from the platform and service business
segment dropped back to approximately RMB466.8 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 10.4%.
Increased market competition of digital equipment led to a fall in
revenue of approximately 10.7% year-on-year to approximately
RMB283.8 million. During the year, the Group continued to
promote its platform development and implementation as well as
transformed and upgraded its digital equipment business to one
that focuses on comprehensive scenario-based solutions. Both laid
a solid foundation for the Group’s strategic development in the
medium-to-long term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEEHNWmRDN @)

Simultaneously, the Group’s digital and platform-based strategy
has produced remarkable results. As an important initiative of the
digital and platform-based strategy, the UMV platform reshapes
the value chain of the traditional financial institution business
model. It helps to realize the on-demand and mass-customization
business model to accommodate for various types of order
guantities ranging from 1 to 10 million units. It is a versatile
platform solution that has been implemented across multiple
sectors including finance, transportation, and retails.

OUTLOOK: PROPELLING FORWARD BY
BREAKING TECHNOLOGICAL FRONTIERS

At present, digital transformation in the banking industry is
being fast tracked with fintech becoming the key driving force.
Meanwhile, China’s State Council required local governments to
implement favorable measures such as improving the acceptance
environment for bank cards and further improving the multi-level
and diversified payment service systems that include bank cards.
This requirement has been actively responded to by leading
institutions such as the People’s Bank of China, China UnionPay,
and NetsUnion Clearing Corporation. The payments industry is
about to embrace new changes and opportunities. The Group
will closely monitor the movement of digital developments in the
banking industry to fully implement its digital and platform-based
strategy, while consolidating core business advantages and
strengthening technological competitiveness. Moreover, the Group
will grasp the opportunities created by the rise of AIGC (Artificial
Intelligence Generated Content) to develop new business models,
propelling the business forward with cutting-edge application
breakthroughs.

Looking into the future, the Group aims to nurture business
and increase market share by focusing on four key strategies
including “consolidating efforts in UMV platform development”,
“expanding the scope of new businesses and strengthening core
competitive advantages”, “continuing to promote the expansion of
secure payment technologies into multiple fields” and “venturing
into untapped international markets and enhancing global
competitiveness”.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

First, consolidating efforts in UMV platform
development.

Catering for the needs of digitalization in the payments industry,
the UMV platform leverages Al, privacy computing, big data and
cutting-edge algorithms to build an one-stop, digitally-integrated
service platform, thereby creating an innovative ecosystem for
payment value chain.

For enterprise customers (B2B), the UMV platform offers three
key benefits of improved efficiency, reduced costs, and enhanced
customer experience, all in a bid to support the business needs
of small batches and rapid payment product issuance. Through
refined management and customized services, the UMV platform
facilitates financial institutions in transforming their business
models from a large scale and unified business model to small
batches and customized business model, helping the financial
institutions to improve the quality and efficiency of their services
to customers.

Along with continuous changes on technology and social demands,
the way to acquire and retain customers has been a growing
problem for banks and other financial institutions. This makes it
difficult to drive the implementation of innovative technologies
such as Al. For end consumers (B2C), the UMV platform addresses
the problem by building a third-party integrated fintech platform
that revolutionizes the payment card customer acquisition model
through features such as precise user traffic control and high-traffic
usage scenarios. The platform enables more financial institutions
to reach end consumers and targeted individual customer groups,
thus empowering the future development of financial institutions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

'A;EEJE n—.l-nHB& *ﬁ(nﬁ

Second, expanding the scope of new
businesses and strengthening core competitive
advantages.

As the growth for green and low-carbon development accelerates,
green finance will see a promising future as the integration
with digital technology is an ongoing trend. The Group is
responding to the call for “boosting self-reliance and strength in
green and low-carbon science and technology”, and is abiding
with environmental, social and governance (ESG) development
targets, while strengthening its green and low-carbon technology
innovation capabilities. Combining eco-friendly payment products
such as eco-friendly cards and metal cards with its digital card
issuance platform, the Group launches multifaceted low-carbon
secure payment solutions to help financial institutions around the
world in building their competitive advantages on the road to
sustainable practices.

Seizing the opportunities of digital RMB pilot in the Chinese
mainland, the Group has fully utilized resources from the E-CNY
Industry Alliance and the digital currency innovation pilot site —
Zhuhai Fintech Center — to promote the establishment of digital
currency in multiple forms, scenarios and applications in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area. The Group
will utilize fintech innovations to further develop its competitive
advantages, strengthen its strategic blueprint in new business
areas such as low carbon and digital currency, and generate new
momentum for further development.

Third, continuing to promote the expansion
of secure authentication technologies into
multiple fields.

Building on decades of experience in the financial secure payment
industry, the Group has completed the system interface of
its telecommunication products with the operators on digital
currency and digital identity authentication applications. It has also
established strategic cooperative relationships with a number of
telecommunications players.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

By actively exploring cutting-edge technologies, the Group will
concentrate on laying out business models and promoting the
integration of its secure authentication solutions into other sectors
such as telecommunications, transportation, Internet of Things,
automotive communication, etc. In the era of the Internet of
Everything, it is important to anticipate the vast potential for broad
development.

Fourth, venturing into untapped
international markets and enhancing global
competitiveness.

As the scale of the international markets expands, the Group has
actively participated in global conferences, exhibitions, and other
marketing activities that have significantly elevated its profile in
the international markets. Its products and services now cover
over 30 countries and regions around the world. Looking ahead,
the Group will maximize its global footprint by paying close
attention to the localized payment needs of different countries and
regions, adopting tailored-made marketing strategies, tapping into
emerging markets and potential customers, and searching for the
new territories for business growth.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material events occurred subsequent to 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 21 May 2024, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 May 2024. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday,
16 May 2024 to Tuesday, 21 May 2024, both days inclusive, during
which period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May
2024. The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Monday, 3 June 2024 to Wednesday, 5 June 2024, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed
dividends at the annual general meeting of the Company to be
held on Tuesday, 21 May 2024, the dividends will be paid on
Friday, 28 June 2024 to the shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business
on Wednesday, 5 June 2024.

USE OF PROCEEDS RAISED FROM THE
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 4 December 2013 with net proceeds from the global
offering of approximately RMB975.0 million (after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses). As at 31
December 2023, the Company utilized approximately RMB858.1
million for the purposes of production capacity expansion,
innovative product and service research and development,
investment in associates and acquisition, market expansion outside
of China, working capital supplementation and other general
corporate purposes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWRED T E)

An analysis of the utilization of the net proceeds from the initial 72023412 HA318 * #IA AB B ERER
public offering and the unused amount as at 31 December 2023 is  IE{F A RFTERBEZ HITWA T -
set out below:

Corporate
Information
AR

Expected = L
timeline 5 :L
for fully ce
utilizing i
Utilized  Unutilized the o ET
amount amount  remaining Rs¥
as at 31 as at 31 net 28
% of net Net December December  proceeds -
proceeds proceeds 2023 2023 (Note) é éf%
T UL
BB -
R2023F  R2023F  HEFE s
¥ 3 12A318 128318 ZEHKH g v
Eethfl EXKES CERSE XEAGE (W) é’é‘
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 é;f
ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETR &S
s
R&D of new products and services B % # & & [ AR 15 35% 341,113 341,113 0 N/A .
Expansion to production BRAEERE AHK 5
facilities, upgrades and other BERFEER 2Ex
improvements to existing card BRRIERE £En
production and data processing g =5
facilities 35% 341,113 289,969 51,144 <54 -
Financing future strategic alliances 3% 5 & 2K B8 & A B
with complementary companies ~ {TRBBBEMTE S 10% 97,461 32,120 65,341 <5

Further strengthening presence E— MR ERE A
in existing markets outside the PASNR B TS

Chinese mainland HEEXH 10% 97,461 97,461 0 N/A 3

Working capital and other general #ZEZEEE K -
corporate purposes Ee—RAr AR 10% 97,461 97,461 0 N/A

[P

Total At 100% 974,609 858,124 116,485 <56 8Ly

i

Note: The expected timeline for utilizing the remaining net proceeds is based on the  fifs7 - SRS TAEHIE S E 2 EHERE I AREFE
best estimation of the future market conditions made by the Group. It remains NARETRFFEZ ZEMET - ZEETEeER
subject to change based on market conditions. TR mAREE -

The balances of the net proceeds were deposited in banking FIERIERENHBETFTALRITERE - AR
account. The Company has utilized and will utilize the net proceeds & B & B ¥ i A A 5 HR2013E11 H228 %

pursuant to the purposes and the proportions as disclosed in the &) IE AR E 2 P38 A9 77 =\ A0 LE 04 B P
prospectus of the Company dated 22 November 2013. ERIEHEE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

Based on the Group's steady cash inflow from operations, coupled
with sufficient cash and bank balances, the Group has adequate
liquidity and financial resources to meet the daily operations and
working capital requirements as well as to fund its expansion plans.
The Group formulates and exercises fund management measures
and upholds a conservative financial management attitude. The
Board monitors the use of funds to ensure the safety, liquidity and
profitability of funds.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s aggregate amount of bank
balances and cash, fixed bank deposits and pledged bank deposits
reached approximately RMB1,353.0 million (2022: approximately
RMB1,349.2 million), of which approximately RMB1,096.1 million
(2022: approximately RMB728.4 million) was denominated in RMB,
representing approximately 81.0%, and approximately RMB256.9
million (2022: approximately RMB620.8 million) was denominated
in USD and HKD, etc., representing approximately 19.0%.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no bank borrowings
(2022: approximately RMB44.8 million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s trade receivables was
approximately RMB331.0 million (2022: approximately RMB340.3
million).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total current assets
amounted to approximately RMB1,952.9 million (2022:
approximately RMB1,819.0 million), representing an increase of
approximately 7.4% compared to that of the previous year.

22 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 3.5 (2022: approximately 2.6), while its quick ratio
was approximately 3.0 (2022: approximately 2.1), representing a
high liquidity.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gearing ratio (the gearing
ratio is equivalent to total liabilities divided by total assets as at the
end of the year) was approximately 22.2% (2022: approximately
26.4%).

CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Group’s sales were mainly denominated in RMB, USD and
HKD while the operating expenses and purchases were mainly
denominated in RMB with certain portions in USD and HKD.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not use
any derivative financial instruments to hedge against the volatility
associated with foreign currency transactions and other financial
assets and liabilities arising in the ordinary course of business. The
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
fluctuation of foreign currency rates.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’'s capital
expenditure was approximately RMB29.3 million (2022:
approximately RMB67.0 million). The capital expenditure
represented the expenses incurred in purchasing fixed assets,
which decreased significantly compared to the same period in
2022 due to the completion of the Zhuhai Fintech Center.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

The aggregate capital commitment of the Group as at 31
December 2023 was approximately RMB3.8 million (2022:
approximately RMB24.0 million), which was decreased due to the
completion of the Zhuhai Fintech Center.

PLEDGED ASSETS

As at 31 December 2023, bank deposits of approximately
RMB156.7 million (2022: approximately RMB227.0 million) were
pledged to secure the bills payables and bank guarantee.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EEBENmED N @A

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group had no significant investments for the year ended 31
December 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group has no future plans for material investment or capital
assets during 2024.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
EEENWmED T @

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF BE HESIEm LmHES
SECURITIES

Corporate
Information
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company purchased & £2023F12A318IEZFE » AAR]
1,642,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange HEBBH AR ST A F42,367,0007%
at an aggregate price of approximately HKD2,367,000 (equivalent ¥ (1 & A R ¥ 492,158,0007T) B & A A
to approximately RMB2,158,000). The shares were acquired at 711,642,000 E@% - BB ZEIRES
an average price of HKD1.44 per share, with prices ranging from #1400 &8 ¥146m 2 M FHEBRK
HKD1.40 to HKD1.46. All the shares purchased have not been SEBHAEKE1.447T 2 HEERHER
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Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its Br FiliiFEIN  RARREKB AR RE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to maintaining high levels of
environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group's environmental, social and governance (“ESG")
management team had managed, monitored, recommended and
reported on environmental and social aspects. An ESG report
for the year ended 31 December 2023 has been prepared with
reference to Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) (Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide) and are published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including anti-corruption, health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment in all
material aspects during the year ended 31 December 2023. The
Group encourages its employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees. The
Group also enhances cooperation with its suppliers to jointly foster
a fair business environment, and provides high quality products
and services to its customers so as to ensure continued and
sustainable development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

Digital transformation has helped the Group to optimize its
organizational structure and streamline staff, thus improving the
labor efficiency. As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 1,507
employees (as at 31 December 2022: 1,583), with a decrease of
76 employees as compared to that as at 31 December 2022. Total
employee benefits expenses including Directors’ emoluments, for
the year ended 31 December 2023, amounted to approximately
RMB224.7 million (for the year ended 31 December 2022:
approximately RMB250.9 million).

The human resources are one of the Group’s most important
assets. In addition to offering competitive remuneration and welfare
packages, the Group is also committed to providing specialized and
challenging career development and training programs. Generally,
a salary review is conducted annually. The Group also adopted the
Pre-IPO share option scheme, the share option scheme and the
share award scheme to motivate prospective employees. Apart
from basic remuneration, for employees in the Chinese mainland,
the Group makes contributions towards employee mandatory
social security, pensions, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and medical and unemployment insurance in accordance
with the applicable laws and regulations of the Chinese mainland.
The pensions and unemployment insurance belong to defined
contribution plans. The Group does not have the right to confiscate
the contributions and therefore has no use of the contributions.
The Group also provides full coverage of housing provident fund
contributions as required by applicable local laws and regulations
in the Chinese mainland. For the employees outside the Chinese
mainland, the Group also makes contributions towards relevant
insurance schemes as required by applicable local laws and
regulations.

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) periodically. The emoluments of
the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration Committee
to the Board and are decided by the Board, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Group emphasises on employee performance and
development, and is committed to enhancing their knowledge and
skills. The Group provides comprehensive internal and external
trainings, such as compulsory orientation, job skills training,
improvement training, information security training, compliance
and legal training, project management training, business etiquette
training and etc.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS

The Board is consisted of nine Directors, including six executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. The
following table sets forth certain information relating to the
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EFAHAREFEN  REARNTE
F CEBUERTEE UTEEAS
FREH

Position in the Group

SER®

Directors:

Name Age
H A FiR
Executive Directors

BITES

LU Run Ting 69
EEE

HOU Ping 63
& F

LU Runyi 66
E A

WU Sigiang 51
REB®

LU Wai Lim 37
& B Bk

LI Yijin 53
F 5

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHTES

MAK Wing Sum Alvin 71
KR
YE Lu 61
® %
LAl Tung Kwok 72
RIRE

Chairman & Executive Director
FERBITES
Executive Director & Chief Executive Officer

HITEERERNTE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President

HITESE R REIBER

Executive Director & Chief Operating Officer

HITEENERELE

Executive Director & Senior Vice President

WITEERaREBE

Executive Director & Chief Audit Executive & Company
Secretary

WITEE B RRAGIWE

Independent Non-executive Director
BMYIFRITES
Independent Non-executive Director
BMIFMITES
Independent Non-executive Director
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSHREEE @)

Executive Directors

Mr. LU Run Ting (BRI E), aged 69, is the chairman of the Board
(“Chairman”) and an executive Director, and the founder of the
Group. He was first appointed as Director on 10 December 2004
and was designated as an executive Director with effect from
15 November 2013. Chairman LU is primarily responsible for the
overall strategic planning and overseeing the general management
of the Group. He has over 30 years of experience in financial card
industry and was honored as the finalist award of CNBC Asia
Business Leaders Award in October 2015. Chairman LU has been
the Chairman of the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries,
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited
(formerly named as “Goldpac Secur-Card (Zhuhai) Limited”) since
2011 and also has been the director of Goldpac Fintech Private
Limited (formerly named as “Goldpac Fintech Singapore Private
Limited), the Company’s subsidiary, from 2016 to July 2018,
and has been the director of Goldpac Investment Limited, the
Company’s subsidiary, since 2016, and has been the director of
Goldpac Innovation Limited, the Company’s subsidiary, since 2018,
and has been the director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited
Company and UMV International Holding Limited, the Company’s
subsidiaries, from 2020.

Prior to the establishment of the Group in 1995, Chairman
LU wholly owns the entire issued share capital of Goldpac
International (Holding) Limited (“GIHL"), the Company’s
controlling shareholder and is a director of GIHL since 1993.
Chairman LU also served as various management positions at the
subsidiaries of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of China prior
to the establishment of GIHL in 1993. He currently also serves as
the chairman of GIHL. Chairman LU received a Master of Business
Administration degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in November 2004. Chairman LU had not been a director of any
other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.

The ordinary shares of GIHL are 100% directly held by Golden
Wellness Investment Limited, which is wholly owned by Golden
Lake Investment Limited (“GLIL"). GLIL is wholly owned by a
family trust, the trustee of which is Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman)
Limited, established by Chairman LU as the founder for the benefit
of his family members. Chairman LU (i) is the elder brother of
Mr. LU Runyi, an executive Director and a senior vice president of
the Company, and (ii) is the father of Mr. LU Wai Lim, an executive
Director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. HOU Ping ({8 ¥), aged 63, is an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Company, and joined the Group
in 2011. He was first appointed as a Director on 30 August
2011, and was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 15 November 2013. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Group. Mr. HOU has over 30 years of
experience in the banking industry, including approximately 25
years of experience in the card industry. He has been a Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company since 2011. He has
also served as a director of Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company
Limited and Goldpac Limited respectively, since 2011. He has
also served as a director of seven subsidiaries of the Company,
including as a director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited since
2016, and a director of Goldpac Technology Service Limited
(Henggin), SecureTech Holdings Limited and Goldpac Fintech
Hong Kong Limited, the Company’s subsidiaries, since 2018, a
director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company and UMV
Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020, and also a director of
Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (through
the VIE Agreements, Zhirong Financial Services has been an
indirect subsidiary of the Company as 100% of its equity interest is
attributed to the Company indirectly) since 2021.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. HOU was the head of credit card
centre at Deutsche Bank (China) Co., Ltd, and was seconded to
Huaxia Bank as chief executive officer of the credit card centre
from 2006 to 2011. Mr. HOU served various positions at Bank of
China group and subsequently, BOC Credit Card (International)
Limited since 1999, including as deputy general manager of BOC
Credit Card (International) Limited in Hong Kong from 1999 to
2004. Mr. HOU received a Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong Baptist University in December 2003.
Save as disclosed herein, Mr. HOU had not been a director of any
other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three
years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSHREEE @)

Mr. LU Runyi (E814), aged 66, is an executive Director and a
senior vice president of the Company, and joined the Group in
1995. He was first appointed as a Director in December 2004, and
was designated as an executive Director with effect from November
2013. He is primarily responsible for the management of the sales
department of the Group. Mr. LU Runyi, has almost 30 years of
experience in the security payment industry. He has been a senior
vice president of the Group since 2004 and has been the director
of GIHL from June 2006 to March 2021, and has been director of
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited and Goldpac Limited
respectively since 2011, and has served as a director of Goldpac
Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018, and has also
served as a director of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
since 2020. Mr. LU Runyi had not been a director of any other
listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. LU Runyi is the younger brother of Chairman LU, and is the
uncle of Mr. LU Wai Lim, who is an executive Director of the
Company.

Mr. WU Sigiang (R B 3&), aged 51, is an executive Director
and the chief operating officer of the Company, and joined the
Group in 2001. Mr. WU is primarily responsible for the overall
operation of the Group, he was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 18 May 2017, and has more than 20
years of experience in the security payment industry. Mr. Wu
was a manager of the production division, vice general manager
of the operation division, general manager of the production
management division of Goldpac Limited from 2001 to 2011
successively, and has been the chief operating officer of
Goldpac Limited since 2011. Mr. WU served as a manager of the
procurement division of Goldpac Limited from 2004 to January
2021, and has been the general manager and legal representative
since February 2021. Mr. WU has also served as a director of
Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018. Mr. WU
had not been a director of any other listed companies in Hong
Kong or overseas in the past three years.

Mr. WU graduated from the Guangdong Mechanics University
(E M 2T ) (now part of Guangdong University of Technology
(BRI % AZ)) with a Bachelor of Mechatronics degree in July
1993.

32 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

EEWBELE 665 ARAFIWNITESHRS
WEIBE - RI1995F IIAAREE - th FE R
2004 F 12 AEZEAESE - BE1N2013F 11
ARAETANTES FEAEEEALEE
REEBPF - BEEBREERLTEIMNITE
WA T30F AL 5 o fth B20044F REE(E AR
EENES RN BE - LK B2006F68 2
2021F3F A EASe R ERRESE 3
0MNFRECESBERBEER QA AME I
EARARIES  H2018F BIEET S =
BERE (BE)BRAFESE - 7RE2020
FRECHKETMHESHEHERAR
AREIMNEE -EHBRLERBAIFARY
BEEMBBIEN ETAFTHES -

EBRTEREXRFNRS  AASART
HITEFEBRTEARM -

RBRELE S ARFNTEERE
EEETE  FR2001FNMAKXER - R4
FTEAEAEEMNEREE  HRN2017F
SASHEZIHITES WELZE2XM
ITHEHEABBBE20F LR o BEEK2001
FR2ONFEBEITEHEFARAGNE
ELERE BESEEKEREEETED
I WEINFRETSHEBRAD
ANEREEZEE - RIEEH2004F £2021
FIAEEFeHERR A FIRBEBILE -
WE2021F2REBETEHBEER QAL
KIBFETFNRRA - RILEITE2018F i
EreH gk (BS) BRARE
HoRELENBAE=SERTEFTHME S
BRI ETRAANES -

REETI993F7TAEXREREW B
(REERITEREN—39) NEBET

ITRREBL24 -



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LU Wai Lim (& & B&) (formerly known as Mr. Wai Lim
(ELB&), Mr. LING Wai Lim (£ & B ) and Mr. LING Wai Lim (& & B
)), aged 37, joined the Company as non-executive Director on 18
May 2017. He was designated as an executive Director with effect
from 15 March 2019 and was appointed as senior vice president of
the Company upon the effective date of 22 January 2021. Mr. LU
has over 6 years of experience in payments industry and has
over 10 years of experience in biomedical research and research
project management. Mr. LU has also served as a director of six
subsidiaries of the Company, including as a director of Goldpac
Technology Service Limited (Henggin) since 2018, a director of
UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020 and also a director
of Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. since
2021, a director of Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited since 6
July 2022, a director of SecureTech Holdings Limited since 22 July
2022, and a director of Goldpac Fintech Private Limited since 27
November 2022.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LU served as a project analyst, a
project manager and the senior scientific advisor, respectively, of
China Regenerative Medicine International Limited (Stock Code:
8158), a company listed on GEM operated by The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, from June 2015 to December 2018.
Mr. LU served as a research assistant of The University of Hong
Kong, Department of Paediatrics and Adolescent Medicine, from
December 2010 to May 2012. Mr. LU had not been a Director of
any other listed Companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past
three years.

Mr. LU received the Bachelor of Science (Biotechnology) from The
University of Hong Kong in 2008, the Master of Philosophy in
Microbiology from the University of Hong Kong in 2010, and also
the Doctor of Philosophy in Immunology from The University of
Hong Kong in 2015.

Mr. LU is the son of Chairman LU. He is also the nephew of Mr. LU
Runyi, who is an executive Director and senior vice president of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EEREREEE ®

Ms. LI Yijin (Z 5 #), aged 53, is an executive Director, the
chief audit executive of the Company and company secretary,
and joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed as an executive
Director with effective from 18 May 2020. She has nearly 30 years
of experience in the accounting, auditing and financial reporting
matters. Ms. LI was the financial controller of the Company from
2004 to 2012, and was the chief financial officer of the Company
from 2012 to April 2019, and has been designated as the chief
audit executive of the Company since May 2019. Ms. LI has
also served as supervisors of three subsidiaries of the Company,
supervisors of Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company and
UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) since 2020, and a supervisor
of Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. since
2021.

Ms. LI received an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from the Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
in November 2012. Ms. LI has been a member of CPA (Certified
Public Accountants) Australia since October 2004, a Fellow of CPA
Australia (FCPA) since May 2020, and the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants since May 2013. Ms. LI had not been
a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas
in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Z k&) (also known as Mr. MAK
Wing Sum), aged 71, is an independent non-executive Director.
He joined the Group on 15 November 2013, when he was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director. Mr. MAK
is currently an independent non-executive director of Hong Kong
Technology Venture Company Limited (formerly known as Hong
Kong Television Network Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 1137), Luk Fook Holdings (International)
Limited (Stock Code: 590), Lai Fung Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1125), Crystal International Group Limited (Stock Code: 2232) and
K Cash Corporation Limited (Stock Code: 2483). He was also an
independent non-executive director of I.T. Limited (Stock Code:
999) from 31 March, 2012 to December 2, 2019. Mr. Mak is a
member of Hong Kong Housing Society, and is currently a member
of its Supervisory Board and Finance Committee. Mr. MAK, after
working in Citibank for over 26 years, went into his retirement in
April 2012. Whilst at Citibank, he has held various senior positions,
managing the regional global asset management business and
financial control for North Asia, he last served as the Head of
Markets and Banking for Citibank Hong Kong.

Mr. MAK graduated from the University of Toronto in Canada
with a Bachelor of Commerce degree in June 1976. He has been
a Chartered Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants since September 1979, a Chartered Professional
Accountant of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants
since November 2012 and currently also a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Save as disclosed
herein, Mr. MAK had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSHREEE @)

Ms. YE Lu (E ), aged 61, is an independent non-executive
Director. She joined the Group on 18 May 2017 when she was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director.

Ms. YE Lu has more than 30 years of experience in cross border
commercial dispute resolution. Ms. YE joined King & Wood
Mallesons in 2004, and is currently a partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Ms. YE was a member the Council of Singapore Court
of International Arbitration and a member of the Council of the
London Court of International Arbitration. She is currently a
director of the Council of the Singapore Court of International
Arbitration, and also an arbitrator of China International Economic
and Trade Arbitration Commission, Hong Kong International
Arbitration Center and Singapore International Arbitration Center.

Ms. YE received the Bachelor of Laws from the Law School of
Peking University in June 1983, and received the Master of Laws
from the Law School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences
in June 1986, and also received the Master of Laws from the
Harvard Law School in June 1994. Ms. YE is qualified as a lawyer
in the People's Republic of China and has passed New York State
Bar Exam. Ms. YE had not been a director of any other listed
companies in Hong Kong or overseas in the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (% E) , aged 72, joined the Company
as independent non-executive Director on 17 May 2022. He was
awarded GBS (Golden Bauhinia Star), SBS (Silver Bauhinia Star),
IDSM (Immigration Distinguished Service Medals), JP (Justice of the
Peace), former Secretary for Security of Hong Kong, the Executive
Vice Chairman of the New People’s Party.

Mr. LAl joined the Immigration Department as Assistant Immigration
Officer in 1973. He was appointed by the Central People’s
Government as Director of Immigration from 2002 to 2008, by the
Chief Executive as Under Secretary of Security of Hong Kong from
2009 to 2012 and by the Central People’s Government as Secretary
of Security of Hong Kong from 2012 to 2017. Mr. LAl has been the
executive Vice Chairman of the New People’s Party since 2018 and
has been a Legislative Council member (Election Committee) of the
HKSAR since 1 January 2022.

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok received Bachelor of Laws (Honours) from
University of London (External) in 1989. Mr. LAl had not been a
director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or overseas in
the past three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSHREEE @)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT =SREEE
Name Gender Age Position

i 3] F iR B3

LI Yingjie Male 41 Chief Financial Officer
) e 1 ES BREMBE

LI Yijin Female 53 Chief Audit Executive
5 o8 Eif R

Mr. LI Yingjie (RIFE#£E), aged 41, is the chief financial officer
of the Company, and joined the Group in 2014. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the accounting and finance
departments of the Group. Mr. LI has more than 15 years of
experience in accounting and auditing. He was the director of
internal audit of the Company from September 2014 to April
2019, and has served as the chief financial officer of the Company
since May 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. LI worked as the manager of
internal audit in Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 27) from 2010 to 2014,
and acted as senior auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
2005 to 2010. He graduated from Sun Yat-sen University and
received a bachelor of arts in 2005. He is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. LI had not
been a director of any other listed companies in Hong Kong or
overseas in the past three years.

Ms. LI Yijin (Z253#), aged 53, is the chief audit executive of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
internal control matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior

Management — Executive Directors” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. LI Yijin (Z53#), aged 53, is the company secretary of the
Company, and joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible for the
secretarial matters of the Group.

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Directors and Senior
Management — Executive Directors” above for the biography of
Ms. LI.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes in
information on Directors are as follows:

1. Mr. LU Wai Lim changed his English name from LING Wai
Lim to LU Wai Lim. The effective date of the change was 11
December 2023.

2. Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of K Cash Group Limited
(Stock Code: 2483) since 5 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, during the year and up to the date of
this report, there is no other changes in information of Directors
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group (or we) prepared and released the Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG"”) Report 2023 (“Report”), which is in
compliance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix C2
of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and is based on the Group’s actual
conditions. The Report presents the Group’s environmental and
social policies, strategies, practices and performance in 2023. For
more information on corporate governance, please refer to the
“Corporate Governance Report” of the annual report.

Reporting Period and Scope

This Report supplements the remaining parts of the Group’s annual
report and discloses performance and progress on sustainable
development from 1 January to 31 December 2023. The scope of
this Report covers the Company and its major subsidiaries. The
information stated in this Report was obtained from the Group's
various reports and records of daily operations.

Reporting Principles

Materiality: We conduct stakeholder communication and materiality
assessments annually to identify significant environmental,
social and governance issues. For more details, please refer to
“Stakeholder Communication and Engagement” and “Materiality
Assessment” sections.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and source of
conversion factors used in calculating the data are disclosed in due
course.

Consistency: This Report has been prepared in a consistent manner
with previous years in order to enhance coherence and provide
a meaningful comparison with previous years’ performance.
Appropriate disclosure and explanation will be provided for any
changes in methodologies.
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Feedback

The Group considers sustainable development as its imperative
long-term goal. We would highly appreciate any comments on
improving the content and information delivery of this Report. If
you have any queries or suggestions, please feel free to contact us.

Contacts
Goldpac Group Limited

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre,
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone: (852) 2838 6202
Fax: (852) 2834 6759
Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

As one of the major suppliers in offering smart secure payment
total solutions in the world, the Group upholds the mission of
“Making Transactions More Secure and Convenient” and the
vision of “Becoming a Trustworthy Provider for Fintech Products
and Services” to deliver quality products and services for customers
across the world.

The Board understands the importance of sustainable development
for the community and the Group itself, actively integrates
ESG factors into important business decisions and is committed
to being a responsible leader in the industry. The Board is
ultimately responsible for the Group’s ESG issues and the Board
acknowledges its responsibility to ensure the integrity of the Report
and to the best of its knowledge that this Report addresses all
material issues and fairly presents the Group’s ESG performance.
The Board confirms that it has reviewed and approved this Report.

We simultaneously hold certifications by Visa, MasterCard,
American Express, China UnionPay, JCB and Diners Club. Ensuring
product quality and customer data security are defined as our
top priorities. At the same time, we endeavour to explore and
investigate suitable corporate operational processes to cohere
with the Group’s sustainability development pattern. The
Group successfully obtained SA8000 certification for its social
responsibility management system and was awarded the “2022
CLS®ESG ZhiYuan Award — Social (S) Pioneer Enterprise Award”
in 2022. The Group won the “2023 CLSeESG ZhiYuan Award —
Governance (G) Pioneer Enterprise Award” for its outstanding
achievements in the areas of fintech digitalisation strategy,
industry competitiveness, sustainable development and shareholder
rewarded policy.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

The Group is committed to integrating its businesses with the
development of environment and society, pursuing a sustainable
development. We have established an effective ESG governance
structure: the Board is responsible for making decisions on ESG
management policies and strategies, assessing and identifying
ESG-related risks, overseeing the implementation of related
matters and the approval of ESG reports; management and
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management representative are responsible for formulating
ESG-related measures in accordance with ESG management
policies, and reporting implementation progress and feedback;
employees of all departments are the practitioners of ESG works,
who implement ESG measures into their daily practice. During
the year, we continued to promote the collection and reporting
of environmental and social performance information through
collaboration among various departments, e.g. internal control
department, corporate business management department, human
resource department, administration department, engineering
department and etc. Staff at all levels fully cooperated with
sustainability management work to implement the concept of
sustainable development into practice.
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In order to manage sustainable development better, we
continuously communicate with stakeholders, assess and prioritise
the identified ESG issues based on their materiality, and set up
key goals and work plans. For goals and measures, please refer to
“Environmental Management” section.

The Board oversees the overall management of the Group’s risks,
continually overseeing the Group's risk management and internal
control system and reviewing their effectiveness through Audit
Committee. The Group has in place a risk management framework,
which enables the Group to adopt a proactive and systematic
approach to identify and manage risks (including ESG-related risks)
as well as to evaluate risk severity and likelihood of occurrence.

To achieve environmental sustainability, the Group complies with
all related environmental laws, regulations (Appendix 1) and
standards. Starting from the energy saving, emission reduction
and waste management as key aspects, we established a series of
internal procedures and systems to help our employees properly
handle the wastes generated in the operation process. As a result,
we are able to enhance operation efficiency, reduce the negative
impact on the environment, and fully shoulder the responsibility of
environmental protection.

The Group not only abides by relevant laws and regulations
relating to employment and safety (Appendix 1), but also pays
considerable attention to employee welfare and safety, and at
the same time it devotes itself to a well-established management
and training system, offering employees a broader development
space in an inclusive, fair, safe, healthy and harmonious work
environment, to realise the talents sustainable development.

Appendix 1 presents the list including but not limited to laws and
regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant impacts on
the Group.

We are grateful to every stakeholder for their support on our
growth and improvement. In order to lay a solid foundation for
the success of our sustainable development, we have made great
efforts to understand opinions suggested by stakeholders, e.g.
investors, customers, suppliers, employees, community. We have
established multiple communication channels for stakeholders to
deliver their comments on our ESG performance and future policies
to us.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
BE HE2REBHRE &)

Stakeholders

Areas of concern

Communication and engagement channels

MEBHEES BxAEE BERSHERE
Investors Financial performance e Annual general meeting
Business strategies Regular disclosure on financial and operational
Operation in conformance of laws and information
regulations and corporate governance e |nvestor relations management
e Sustainable development and risk control e The Group’s website
e Social media, e.g. WeChat official account
REHE . BBER « BEAS
o XGRS s THHRBEMBEENLELER
s ARMEHMPEER s WEEMKRER
s MREERERARERE o AEEBU
o MR MMEETAZRR
Customers e Product and service quality e Customer service specialist
e Client information security e Customer satisfaction survey
Business ethics e The Group's website
e Social media, e.g. WeChat official account
'R EmMREEE s EFR%ES
EPEERRE s EFPMEERE
R . ZK%@%%\*&
o MK MMEEHTARME
Suppliers Fair competition and dealing e Supplier site visit
Mutual benefit and long-term e Regular assessments
cooperation e Continuous direct communications
e Business ethics
HEBm e RFHFEUELZS s HEBMBLED
. E?‘F'J/\méﬁiﬁﬁﬂé\{’ﬁ . iﬂ;ﬁuﬂé
o BXREST s HEERRBR
Employees e Training and development e Management mailbox
e Remuneration and welfare policies e Performance assessments
e Occupational health and safety e Employee training
e Equal opportunities and culture inclusion e Internal exchange forum
BT o FPlEERE o EIRE(EM
o HrBi AR AR o BHMGEHE
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Community

HE

Government

B

e Fair employment and opportunities
Environmental protection
Epidemic prevention and control

« ATREME
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. BfEmE

e QOperation in compliance with laws and

regulations
e Business strategies and sustainability

B
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Regular communications to pay attention to
society issues and neighborhood

Social Media, e.g. WeChat Official Account
Community activities
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Forums, thematic meetings, trainings

e Visiting relevant government departments

Regular compliance reports
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

We believe that proactive two-way communications with
stakeholders will help formulate business strategies better
conforming to their expectations and requirements, improve
the ability of risk forecast, strengthen crucial relationships, and
finally realise sustainable development in economies, society and
environment together.

Materiality Assessment

We identified 26 ESG issues with reference to industry-related laws
and regulations, the important topics identified by global industry
peers, the business scope of the Group, ESG risks identified,
macro policies and hot topics. Questionnaires and interviews
were conducted to understand the views of management and
stakeholders on these issues, and to assess the materiality of
these issues. The results serve as an important basis for the
preparation of this Report and the promotion of future sustainable
development efforts. The assessment result has been reviewed and
approved by the Board.
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Materiality Assessment
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Environment Protection BiE {7 &

1.

Usage and recycling of materials

WRHE 8 R e B KRB R A SR

Energy consumption and saving measures
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Usage of water resources and saving measures
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Greenhouse gas emissions and reduction measures
B SR BE HE R SO HE R BE

Wastes and their disposal

BREMNELENREE

Air pollutant emissions and reduction measures

FE RBE AR OB BEE B

Employee Policy 8 T ¥

12.

Operation Management & &

18.

20.

21.

Talent management policies and status

AT EBBE KRB

Protection of employees occupational health and
safety

REEEBRERFERRZ S

Employee development and training
B B 3R g3

BB

Guarantee of products and services quality

REERMRBEE

Protection of information security

REFERE

Handling of customer complaints and enhancement
of customer satisfactory level

BREEFPRFREAZFPMEE

Protection of intellectual properties and research
findings
REMBEREMATAR

Community Contribution & &

26.

Community engagement
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10.

11.

15.

16.

17.

22.

23.

24.

25.
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Wasted water discharge and reduction measures

JBE K HE IR R OB B 45 e

R&D on clean technologies and green products
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Compliance with environmental laws and
regulations

BTRBEAREARBNR

Protection of biodiversity
REEMZ M

Concerns for and responses to climate change

BT M EE RIRE (L

Internal communications

Dg/ﬁ |ﬁ /E:

Anti-Child and Anti-Forced labour
RET KR5EHIE T

Compliance with laws and regulations of
protection of labour rights and interests

BT IRBREERERBEN

Compliance with industry-specific laws and
regulations, and business ethics

BTIRARERNEEER

Supplier status

R IRAM

Supplier policies and management
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Anti-Corruption policies and performance
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

Looking ahead, we will interact with stakeholders and review
our performance as always. We persist in taking the social and
environmental responsibilities, optimising our sustainability
initiatives and integrating our business with environmental
management and social impact to stimulate business growth.

INFORMATION SECURITY AND DATA
PROTECTION

The Group believes that information security is the primary
prerequisite for creating secure and quality financial technology
services, and we have always attached a strategic importance
on the application of information security technologies and the
protection of information security.

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
and adheres to information security and data protection. The
compliance risk of newly issued laws, regulations and regulatory
requirements is also a key concern. As one of the global leaders
in total solutions in the field of smart and secure payments,
the Group has established its management system regarding
to information security and data protection in strict compliance
with the 1SO27001 information security management system
and the PCl (Payment Card Industry) Data Security Standard.
The Group has also passed the Security Accreditation Scheme
of GSMA, the Global System for Mobile Communications
Association. Our R&D environment has also passed on-site
testing for security certification by the International Chip Card
Standardisation Organisation (EMVCo). The Group engages
third-party organisations to conduct system compliance inspections
annually, which can effectively ensure the reliability of the
Group’s management system of information security and data
protection. Meanwhile, the Information Security Management
System Manual and its subordinate documents were issued to all
the staffs within the Group, in order to comprehensively define the
security management structure and information security objectives
and planning, and specify the specific security requirements for
information processing.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Based on the nature of technological innovation in the Group,
we have continuously increased our investment in digital
transformation and platform building, proactively using information
technologies to identify and control risks with a comprehensive
upgrade of the information security system software and hardware.
The Group was granted by the certifications of 1SO/IEC20000
Information Technology Service Management System in 2020,
CMMI Maturity Level 5 — Optimisation Level (the highest level
internationally used to evaluate the maturity of an enterprise’s
software development capabilities) in 2021, and ITSS (Information
Technology Service Standards) Information Technology Operation
and Maintenance Service Capability Maturity Level 3 in 2022.
And in 2023, the Group successfully passed the CMMI Maturity
Level 5 reassessment. The development of Internet technologies
increases the risk of hacking attacks, which are continuous
and constantly changing. The Group’s top management has
authorised the Information Security Management Team to
formulate information security policies, taking into account the
internal and external circumstances of the Group. We consistently
adhere to the information security policy of “full participation,
prevention-oriented, risk control and continuous improvement”,
doing a comprehensive job in all-oriented information security
control and data protection. We are committed to providing
a safer, more convenient and more accurate services to our
customers.
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The Group emphasises the risk awareness in information
security among its internal staff, based on the management of
employees with “integrity” as the primary element of its corporate
culture and values, and prevent security issues through efficient
implementation of security systems and comprehensive internal
oversight checks. The Group permeates the management of
information security in all aspects of its operations. Through
safety awareness training, all staff to be equipped with risk
awareness, actively participate in the safety management process,
and assume the corresponding safety responsibilities. When
signing employment contracts, employees are required to sign
a Non-Disclosure Agreement. We also insist on doing annual
information security training for all staff and quarterly information
security training for professional information security positions
to improve staff’s risk awareness, and continuously optimise the
security system through risk assessment. In daily work, the Group
continuously enhances the security awareness of employees. The
Group forbids any employees to send information to unauthorised
colleagues or outsiders, or duplicate any confidential information
and/or sensitive information.

Apart from educating and popularising information security
management within the Group, the Group also assists local
community to promote anti-fraud training to raise public awareness
of the need to protect sensitive information. We are also subject
to security checks by industry regulators, card organisations,
customers and professional bodies at all times. We successfully
passed the annual certification audit and flight inspection of China
UnionPay, as well as the industry management on-site audit and
regulatory assessment of over 200 customers, which again ensured
the reliability of our services and achieved high standards of
security management.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Our commitment to upholding the highest level of business ethics
and integrity connects to what we do and we believe, and that it
is our competitive advantage.

Product and Service Quality

Following the quality policy “All for better meeting customer
requirements, exceeding customer expectations and improving
customer satisfaction!”, the Group pursues to achieve operational
excellence in line with the value of “Customer-oriented”. Guided
by such policy, the Group has established a quality management
system supported by a set of policy documents, e.g. Quality
Manual for Payment Products, Quality Manual for Data Processing
Services and subordinate documents. The Group has successfully
renewed the 1SO9001 Quality Management System Certificate in
2022 (valid until 2024). With the joint efforts of all departments,
our products and services are subject to strict safety standards and
comply with the requirements of relevant laws and regulations.
The Group has been granted certifications by the six global credit
card organisations.

Regarding product quality, we have established quality
management department, which is in charge of carrying out
quality check during the operating process for raw materials,
goods in progress and finished goods, in accordance with quality
management system and industry requirements. Unqualified
products will be analysed and reviewed, adjusted, improved,
re-manufactured or even disposed according to the Unqualified
Products Control Procedure. If the products need to be recalled,
we will arrange the logistics provider to pick up and return the
products, and quality management department will be responsible
for the return inspection of the products. Those products will
be adjusted, improved or re-manufactured based on the specific
situations, and then re-deliver to customers. In 2023, there was no
occurrence of any recall of the Group’s products sold or delivered
due to safety and health concerns.
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In terms of customer service, we dedicate in offering high quality
services to our customers. The Group leverages the new generation
of information technologies such as Al and cloud computing to
build a digital UMV platform, which provides customers with
one-stop and digitally-integrated services including online card
design, online ordering, order tracking and management, inventory
management, settlement and payment, smart customer services.
At the same time, the Group also has professional sales staff,
technicians and customer service staff who are responsible for
order tracking and servicing. Both our product quality and services
and communication have received a high appraisal from customers.
Our Customer Complaint Management Procedure defines the
measures and procedures in dealing with customer complaints,
by which we effectively enhance our internal management,
assist customers to solve problems and continuously improve
customer satisfaction according to customer suggestions. We
also built a special team to record, internally coordinate and
summarise customer complaints for future reference. Derived of
the continuous improvement of the product quality management
system, there has been a significant improvement in product
quality. In 2023, the Group received 28 complaints (47 cases in
2022), mainly related to IC problems, card appearance defect
(scratches, chromatic aberration, smudges) and delayed delivery.
After receiving customer complaints, we put them on record,
verified the contents of customer complaints, informed relevant
departments to investigate, worked out solutions and fed back to
customers. We followed up customers’ opinions after implementing
the solutions. For customer complaints received during the year,
we provided feedback to customers within two working days, and
most of the complaints were closed in the same month or the
following month. During 2023, we do not find any cases about
privacy leak or significant accidents that have material effects on
the Group in terms of product quality and services.

The Group established data processing centres in Zhuhai,
Shanghai and Tianjin, and has realised a comprehensive disaster
preparedness emergency plan, with all departments on standby
at all times to continuously improve business capability with quick
response and efficient resolution of customer problems, so as to
bring convenient and satisfactory services to customers. During
emergencies such as the Covid epidemic, we utilised the advantage
of mutual backup of data processing centres in three locations to
ensure daily production operation and timely delivery of orders,
and provide reliable services and support to financial institution
customers.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In 2023, the Group won the Best Support Award on China
Guangfa Bank Credit Card Centre Outsourcer Conference. This
award is not only a high affirmation in our technology, but also
praising for our professional service, which demonstrates the
main concept of “creating value for customers” in our business
operation.

The Group attaches importance to the protection of intellectual
property and has established a comprehensive intellectual property
management system through the Intellectual Property Management
Manual and other relevant management documents to regulate
the management of intellectual property such as patents,
trademarks and copyrights. We have renewed the Intellectual
Property Management System Certification in 2022 (valid until
2025). The Group focuses on the risks which might be indicated
by intellectual property laws and regulations. We identify, obtain
and update applicable intellectual property legal information
and other requirements in a timely manner and communicate
them to employees. And for the intellectual property risks which
may be encountered in the R&D activities, we have established
the mechanism of patent search, including searching before
the establishment of the R&D projects, then tracking during the
developing process, and managing after we finalise the output, so
as to avoid the duplication of R&D projects, and protect the R&D
results. We do application checks before starting the application of
patents. And we established a sound patent monitoring mechanism
to ensure the patent always presents an available state. We clarify
the rights and obligations of intellectual property for both parties
in the procurement contract, in order to avoid patent infringement
risk and minimise the patent infringement liability. We also monitor
our intellectual property rights in the product market, timely track
and investigate if our intellectual property rights are infringed, and
actively take measures to protect our rights.

The Group also adheres to relevant laws and business ethics in
advertising and marketing. All product brochures we provide are
reviewed to ensure the completeness and accuracy of information.
Product design and use of product logo are strictly in accordance
with the requirements of credit card organisations. In 2023,
the Group was not aware of any material breaches of laws and
regulations relating to privacy, health and safety, advertising,
labelling and the products and services provided.

BE HE2REBHRE &)

2023% - IR EEERITER KRB LI
BEAE-—HEXHE - LWREE R
HEMEZHMBREINSESE B2

MIAEFPAIEEEINKEER -

AEBEREAEBEENRE BB
BEETEIGFM SHBEEXHE
VITRENNAERETERER  HHEA .
BZ - EERENEERETZERLEE
B WER2022FK I BERCANBERE
HEZXDEEFS) (BREE2025F) - &
MBS EMBEREEERER - REFH -
EREEFAJEICENEELETRE
BMAAMESEREEERRES  UEEHB T
Y MR B RS EER
Br o BB IER - BREPME©LEN
ERBE - BHMMEIERE - BeEEH
BREMEXNR  BUBFEHBHRRE
Bl RBAETENRERR ELEE
MEBEFELARETHG  MRELZNSH
FERBBKE : NEARERE  TRE
ARPPEBE S MSEERENNER £
AR MBEEEFNREETEE  RE
EREERR HERMBE RN HERE
Byl DERMMASHBENZEREER
EIEN - BRI E IR o

AEBEESSEREHEK TETHBZE
RAMBERER  HMRENERS S8
RBEN - NREREIEN TEEMEREN -
E MY AR AT M EE R R B RO (PR TR BR AR B ST
BlEARAMNER - R2023F - NEH
WAMBEFRERLE BERLE &
&R R AE MRS B A&
BEERREBRTEARNITR -

EHREREERERAT —B-=FFR 53

Corporate
Information

Financial

2023
Major Events

Chairman’s

scussion

Managemen

Corporate Governance Report of Environmental,

Financial

Social and

Highlights

Statement

Directors

BEEgWmE

Report

o
=t
o
o
)

o
o
Iv]
c
<
=
)
>
o

(L)

4o
L
A
oo
=
G
pal
4
%

REER

2023F KE5

KBRS

A



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

Product Innovation

The Group has been upholding the core values of “Virtue,
Innovation, Efficiency and Cooperation”, keeping pace with market
development and customer needs, and continuously strengthening
technological innovation to forge superior quality. We continue
to promote the innovative development of payment diversification
and accelerate our digitalisation and platform development
strategy to build an innovative ecosystem of secure payment
value chain. The Group not only launched its independent and
controllable embedded software and products to satisfy the needs
of the Chinese market, but also launched embedded software and
secure payment products that meet the technical specifications
required by international markets and meet the diverse needs of
each country through localised development.

The Group and Bank of China Zhuhai Branch signed an agreement
on the promotion of digital RMB, jointly building the digital
currency innovation pilot site — Zhuhai Fintech Center, and the
Group will be responsible for assisting Bank of China Zhuhai Branch
to debut the digital RMB hardware wallet products. It is believed
that by combining the business characteristics and integrating
the advantageous resources of both parties, the “Zhuhai Sample”
will be successfully built, with the innovative integration project
as a starting point to enrich the application scenarios of digital
RMB, and jointly explore the successful application of digital RMB
in various fields such as government services, inclusive finance,
transport and travelling, payment of living expenses, intelligent
parks, smart retail and so on in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao
Greater Bay Area.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In response to the trend of “contactless” development in vehicle
networking industry, the Group has launched NFC (Near Field
Communication) secure products, integrating an intelligent secure
chip with a CPU processor and NFC wireless communication
technology, which enable customers to perform various functions
such as door opening and closing, car start-up, smart terminal
authorization by a simple gesture. The NFC products designed
by the Group stood out from the other candidates and won the
Contemporary Good Design (CGD) Award of 2023, which perfectly
performs the combination of technology and aesthetics. CGD is
an international design award organised by the German Red Dot
Award, one of the most authoritative industrial design awards in
the world. The Group has been awarded the Contemporary Good
Design Award for two consecutive years, which is a testament
to our excellent craftsmanship and performance of design, and
has been recognised by international authorities and the design
industry. In the future, the Group will insist on combing technology
and aesthetics, and continuing to lead the innovative development
of the fintech industry with outstanding design concepts.
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Listed as one of the top fintech enterprises in the 2023

2023 CGD Contemporary Good Design Award
KIE2023 CGDE C4F R AT HE

The Group was listed as one of the top fintech enterprises in the
2023 KPMG China Leading Fintech 50 Election. The list is one of
the most authoritative and influential selections in the industry by
which quantitatively evaluating companies in five core dimensions,
namely technology and data, innovation and change, popularity of
financial services, recognition in the capital market, and foresight
in industry development.

KPMG China Leading Fintech 50 Election
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

Green Product

As an excellent technology enterprise, the Group actively
undertakes corporate social responsibility, takes the lead in
practicing green and low-carbon development, and dedicates to
being a green and low-carbon practitioner in the fintech industry.

Through years of technological iterations and breakthroughs in
environmental protection, the Group has developed a series of
low-carbon and eco-friendly card products, manufactured by
degradable materials, recyclable materials and bio-based modified
plastics, etc., with special processes and equipment suitable
for eco-friendly card products. The Group’s eco-friendly card
products manufactured by raw materials certified by Underwriters
Laboratories (“UL") and INTERTEK have obtained a number of
patents on environmental protection.

The Group strives to innovative eco-friendly materials, and
has also developed a variety of card products with non-PVC
materials, including metal, porcelain, aluminum materials, etc.
Cards manufactured by innovative eco-friendly materials have the
advantages of high-end texture and long service life, which are
favoured by global banking customers.

The Group's eco-friendly card products can effectively reduce the
impact on the ecological environment during its whole product
life cycle, contributing to reducing plastic usage and carbon
emission with technological strength. In addition to low-carbon
and eco-friendly card products, we also build a digital full-cycle
card issuance platform to create an eco-friendly and low-carbon
solution, which contributes to the reduction of carbon emissions
during the life cycle of the low-carbon cards.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Promoting by “Low-Carbon Leads Secure Payment, Technology
Innovation Spurts Hardcore Strength”, the Group showcased on
the international stages (Seamless Europe, Trustech Paris, etc.) with
its eco-friendly and low-carbon payment products and solutions,
innovative payment products with integrated applications, portable
self-service devices, and Al-digital UMV platform, displaying the
latest innovations in the field of fintech.

The Group’s Low-carbon Secure Payment Solution for secure
payment was selected as one of the excellent cases of green
finance in the first “Golden Lion” Collection of Excellent Practice
Cases of High-Quality Development initiated by China Fortune.
It proves that our self-developed low-carbon and eco-friendly
products have an international leading edge, and will encourage
us to continue to fulfil its ESG responsibilities as a listed company,
playing an important leading role in promoting the development of
green and secure payment.

In the future, the Group will continue to follow the green needs of
the financial market, focus on green resources and technological
innovation, and continue to actively explore the environmental
protection and low-carbon fields to achieve longer-term and more
in-depth sustainable development.
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According to Anti-Corruption Programme — A Guide for Listed
Companies released by the Hong Kong Independent Commission
Against Corruption, and in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations, the Group established Corruption Prevention System
in 2022, firmly stated the Group’s zero-tolerance of corruption,
further ensured the awareness of the roles and responsibilities
of each staff under the anti-corruption programme, upheld
the integrity requirements for directors and staff as well as the
corruption prevention requirements for all stakeholders. At the
same time, the Group also established Code of Conduct to set
out the basic standard of conduct expected of all directors and
staff, and the Group’s policy on acceptance of advantage and
declaration of conflict of interest when dealing with the Group’s
business.

Besides, the code of conduct of the Group to prevent corruption
has been set out in Staff Manual to enhance self-discipline among
employees. Our Anti-Fraud Reporting Management System strictly
manages our businesses with all business partners, including
our customers, suppliers, creditors and debtors. We encourage
stakeholders reporting on any suspected behaviours against
policies and protect the whistleblowers against any punishment
due to his/her accurate report. The whistleblowers’ identities are
strictly kept confidential unless it is necessary for investigation,
malicious reporting or required by relevant laws and regulations.
We fight against fraud and bribery in any forms such as cash or
gifts seriously.

Whistleblowers can report to the Chairman of the Group’s audit
committee or to the Chairman of the Board. Materials will be
forwarded to the other audit committee members for internal
investigation or to other department for investigations if it is in
line with the best interests of the Group. Meanwhile, we set up
a mailbox for the CEO to receive reports and comments. Regular
evaluations on our management system ensure the compliance
with all relevant laws and regulations and their effectiveness.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

To prevent misconducts such as corruption, the Group has adopted
a series of preventive measures and methods, such as prior
monitoring, checks and balances through segregation of duties,
staff rotation, mandatory leave, review and team strategies; adding
information-based financial system to decrease human intervention;
conducting due diligence on business partners and including
integrity pledges and corruption prevention clauses in relevant
contracts. The Group conducts training on business ethics including
anti-corruption topics for all staff, such as special training on
anti-corruption systems and legal classes to promote and popularise
relevant legal knowledge and cases among staff, so as to further
strengthen the education on the sense of law-abiding for staff.

During 2023, the Group did not notice any issues relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud, money laundering or any misconduct
which may have a material impact on the Group. And there were
no concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its employees.

Supply Chain Management

The Group believes that effective management on suppliers and
good cooperation with suppliers will help us reduce costs and
cooperation risks, improve the quality of products and services, and
build up an excellent brand. As such, we have developed Supplier
Evaluation and Control Procedures to ensure that all the Group’s
suppliers possess adequate capacity and are able to maintain
suitable and reliable quality.

We also maintain regular communication with suppliers to ensure
that both sides are well prepared to forecast capacity (mainly
monthly and quarterly) and supply. Where feasible, we will
prepare multiple suppliers so that, in addition to maintaining the
supply cost advantage, the Group has standby suppliers. Under
this mechanism, when a supplier is at risk in its supply chain, we
can quickly switch to another supplier to ensure that the product
can be completed on time. The Group maintains three or more
suppliers for major materials (financial chips, key base material
for cards, etc.) and smart kiosks. In addition to reasonable prices,
environmental and health considerations are also taken into
account in the procurement review. The Group will sign contracts
with suppliers based on a reasonable account period and payment
method, and suppliers are required to sign an Anti-Corruption
Commitment to emphasise the requirement of honest cooperation
between both sides. At the same time, the Group will cooperate
with suppliers to jointly explore the market, so as to promote
long-term cooperation and achieve win-win results.
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During the year, the Group has 200 suppliers, 185 of which are
in the Chinese mainland and 15 in other regions. According to
2023 annual supplier evaluation, 97% of suppliers assessed as
satisfactory (including 66% as of excellent suppliers) and 3% are
in need of continuous communication and improvement. We keep
building healthy relationships with supplies, achieving mutual
benefits and growth.

We track the daily supply and service quality of our suppliers to
form monthly statistics, which serve as an important basis for
the annual review. Meanwhile, we continue to evaluate new
suppliers, which are assessed from different perspectives by various
departments, including application of new technologies, quality,
delivery, cost, environment, safety management and etc. After
each assessment, we issue the corresponding evaluation report and
update the list of qualified suppliers, so as to provide reference for
screening suppliers.

On the other hand, according to Risk Management Procedures, the
Group regularly conducts supply chain risks assessment, evaluates
the possibility and severity of related environmental and social risk
events, keeps communication with suppliers and formulates and
implements management measures to proactively control related
risks.

In 2023, the Group was qualified the 1SO28000 Supply Chain
Security Management System Certification. As the first batch of
enterprises in the field of smart secure payment to acquire the
ISO28000 certification, we always pay close attention to supply
chain security management to ensure the entire process (from the
procurement, production, services, warehousing to delivery) to stay
safe and controllable.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Increasing the proportion of eco-friendly products or renewable
materials is the key strategy of the Group's long-term development.
We actively promote green procurement practice, and during
supplier assessment, suppliers are required to ensure that their
products comply with 1SO14001 and HSF (Hazardous Substance
Free), and will not contain the materials that are harmful to the
environment and human body and are prohibited by Chinese
standards and EU RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances).
For products using eco-friendly materials, we will evaluate and
record the supplier's environment-related certifications, including
UL safety certification and Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)
certification for the supplier's products and supply chain. In
the meantime, the Group reviews suppliers regularly to check
whether the relevant production control procedures conducive to
environmental protection are properly managed and implemented,
and continuously introduces biodegradable or recycled raw
materials to improve the sustainability of the products. Moreover,
along with the industry’s acceptance and maturity of eco-friendly
products, we will look for new suppliers and run product testing
in advance to gradually increase the proportion of eco-friendly
products.

In 2023, the Group hosted the "Eco-Friendly Smart Card
Technology and Product Conference”. The conference was
attended by senior executives from leading companies in the
global smart card supply chain, as well as important guests from
academia. The conference focused on how the smart card industry
can meet the requirements of low-carbon emission reduction, and
the participants offered suggestions for the green, low-carbon and
ecological development of the industry.
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Eco-Friendly Smart Card Technology and Product Conference hosted by the Group in 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT

Our main principles in environmental sustainability are to
diminish consumption of materials and energy and optimise
waste management, achieving the “energy saving and
emission reduction” goal, and to reduce negative influence on
eco-environment, creating an eco-friendly enterprise.

As a comparatively low-energy consuming enterprise (at average
around 10 MWh/RMB million revenue), the Group still pays high
attention to environmental management. The Group’s major
impacts to the environment were mainly resulted from the energy
consumption and emission caused by daily operations such as
electricity, water, and transportation. Through risk control and
measures on minimising resource usage, we will continue to
monitor the impacts on the human being and the environment.
The Group has strictly abided by all relevant environmental laws
and regulations in the Chinese mainland, Hong Kong and other
regions where the Group’s subsidiaries locate. In 2023, we
complied with the relevant laws and regulations relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste which had a
significant impact on the Group, and we did not find any practices
or issues caused by environmental problems that may significantly
influence the environment or the Group.

Guided by standards under the 1SO14001 Environmental
Management System and referring to environmental factors, the
Group has established an environmental management system
in which Environment and Occupational Health and Safety
Management Manual provides the general guidelines and other
subordinate documents describe the implementation details, in
order to make best utilisation of raw materials and resources
and to reduce pollution, eventually realising the sustainable
development goal. In addition, management designates
environmental management representative to communicate
with stakeholders and understand their opinions, to confirm
environmental management plans and internal approval, and
to report to the CEO to ensure the environmental management
system functions well.

Environmental
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

To maximise the value of stakeholders, the Group integrates
environmental protection concepts with its business to realise
the vision of eco-friendly and a harmonious development mode
between economy and environment.

Resources Consumption

The Group’s energy consumptions are mainly due to electricity
usage in operation facilities and office activities, and fuels used
by vehicles. We have strengthened the management of resource
usage by a series of management procedures, such as Energy
and Resource Consumption Control Procedures, Regulations on
Electricity Consumption, and Regulations on Automobile Safety.
We make timely adjustments to the supply and usage of electricity
including lighting system, air conditioning system, ventilating and
operation facilities. We analyse the energy efficiency based on the
collected data and computed statistics. If any exceptions are noted,
necessary improvements will be carried out. We actively implement
the concept of “energy saving and emission reduction” and adopt
a series of control measures to improve energy efficiency:

o Electrical engineers should be qualified to guarantee an
effective allocation and management of electricity to avoid
waste;

o Electrical facilities shall be switched on and off at the right
time and shall be at closed state when off duty or when
people leave the offices;

o Carrying out energy saving projects, such as air pressure
system improvement, installation of central dust collection
system, using energy-saving lamps in the workshop and
offices;

o Automatic modification of central air conditioning in office
area to achieve smart control;

o Regular maintenance of air conditioning equipment to ensure
cooling effect;

o Considering energy-saving equipment when purchasing new
equipment;

o Regular vehicle inspections and maintenance to maintain
engine efficiency and reduce fuel waste;

o Planning driving routes in advance to optimise fuel
consumption.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

Energy consumption figures are summarised as follows:

ERRERMEZERAHANT -

2023
Resource type Unit 2022 Unit 2022 Target
2023
HERER B B BEFEE IR
Liquefied petroleum
gas ("LPG") KG - 17,103  MWh - 238
BAL A H R, NFr K
Unleaded petrol Litre 9,563 7,134  MWh 93 69
b 7t K B
Diesel oil Litre 7,945 1,173  MWh 85 13
e 7t K
Electricity kwh 13,322,495 14,399,443 MWh 13,322 14,399
g7 F LB Ik BB
Total energy consumption MWh 13,500 14,719
BERHFERE JK LB
Energy intensity MWh/RMB 10 10 10
BEREE million
revenue
KEH,
AR
BERA
Notes: 1B
1. The above consumption figures’ calculation methods and relevant conversion 1. e R U EENtE AR EEEREA T
factors refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting RETFTRITR (LI EEIEBE 2 RER
guidance on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange and Energy RE—[IER = BB IR AE I IZFE #R 5 3] ) LA
Statistics Manual — Annex 3 Units and Conversion Equivalents issued by the T BB A B B ) (BB & 1 F H— [ i = &5
International Energy Agency. T REmEE) -
2. In 2023, the Group’s revenue was approximately RMB1,417 million (2022: 2. M2023F  REBHRANARK,417TEET

approximately RMB1,530 million). This figure is also used to calculate other

intensity data.

REt B E M2 EBUE -

(2022%F - HARH1,5306&7T) - ZEWEHLH

3. Goldpac Tech Park located in Zhuhai closed its canteen, no LPG consumption 3. HEERECEESERE  2023F & BRI A

in 2023.

By effective implementation of various measures, the Group has
successfully achieved its energy consumption target for 2023. The
Group will continue to implement measures to enhance energy
efficiency and strive to achieve the energy consumption intensity

target of 10 MWh/RMB million revenue in 2024.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In terms of water consumption, our operation activities do
not involve massive water usage. Our water consumption is
mainly from daily office and life activities. Our water source is
municipal water supply and we do not face any problem or risk
in accessing sufficient water source. Administration department
and engineering department are responsible for daily management
and control of water consumption, collecting and analysing
monthly consumption figures. We are committed to reducing
water consumption and saving water by taking measures such
as timely renewal and modification of water pipes to prevent
water leakage caused by pipe rupture, replacing traditional
faucets with time-lapse faucets to reduce waste of water,
advocating water-saving information to employees to improve their
water-saving awareness and encourage them to develop a habit of
conscious water use. Water consumption figures are listed below:

HERERERE ®

RIE -

KERERAE  RANELBRETFE
RERKNIF TEKERBERRET
BERL  £EMRTE - HANBKIR A
R K N TE R SR EUE A KR 77 A R
BN TTHRE R TRAAEHKER
HRETTEEEEES N8 A
FEBM - PR A B A REK - BIRAK
REBMERERSERKEE  BHRA
BBWEGEKRAORE ¢ TR BB K EE
BEREERKESE B ARNKERR
E . mEIEEHOKRER RBSET
B EE BB TEKEBHRKNEE -
RKEEZERBEHLLT

Resource type Unit 2022 2023 Target

ERER By 2023 KMz B 1R

Water Tonne 53,742 77,920

PN WA

Water (Zhuhai Fintech Center) Tonne 15,164 26,919

B KK (BRE™ & &k WA

R

Total water consumption Tonne 68,906 104,839

BRkEE 07

Water efficiency Tonne/RMB 49 69 56
million revenue

K WE, AR
BERKA

The Group successfully achieved its water efficiency target for
2023. The main reasons for the significant decrease in water
consumption in 2023 compared with 2022 were: the abolition
of canteen in Goldpac Tech Park located in Zhuhai; and water
consumption for fire hydrant testing, curtain wall water testing
and curtain wall cleaning for the completion of the Zhuhai Fintech
Center project in 2022 was relatively larger, while the water
consumption in 2023 fell to the common level of daily usage. The
Group will continue to implement various measures to conserve
water and endeavour to achieve the water efficiency target of 50
tonnes/RMB million revenue in 2024.

ANE BRI ERE2023F AKSE B 1Z
mni%mi?muiﬁ%@ThmI
ZREAFA HKEERIEERERE : 2022
FHRAEMEmMEHEFROEB ® TRIERH
K BIEEIK  BEBASERAKELERK
20235 BB R AFREATAKERE -
AREBBEERTHHAKOSEER
LHEIR20245F AKME B Z500 AR
BEHBRA -
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Zhuhai Fintech Center has verified in the green building project
and the “Sponge city” project. Its green area rate has up to
30.11%, and it is designed with “sponge” facilities such as sunken
green areas and rain gardens, which can effectively reuse rainwater
and other resources, aiming to build a green park.

In addition, the Group also established OA system to promote
paperless office, achieving paperless operation of office processes
such as document release and process approval. Double-sided
or multi-page printing is encouraged to reduce paper waste. We
post warning signs around printers and copiers to remind staff not
to over-print to avoid unnecessary paper waste. The Group also
advocates the “Clean your plate” initiative to reduce food waste.

In order to effectively reduce the emission of various pollutants,
the Group strictly complies with applicable laws and regulations
and have formulated specific pollution preventing procedures to
standardise pollutant emission processes from business operations
and office activities, and to control the discharge and release of
exhaust air, greenhouse gas, sewage and noise.

Each department is responsible for the control and prevention of
the possible water, air and noise pollutions generated during their
operation and office activities. Engineering department takes the
responsibility of regular maintenance and management of the
equipment. Quality management department works together with
qualified testing organisations to monitor pollutions. They will
compare the testing results with standards set by relevant laws
and regulations and report to the environmental management
representative. Once any inconformity is noted, departments
involved have to investigate and solve the issue in accordance with
Corrective and Preventive Measures Control Procedures, and then
propose improvement measures.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In 2023, independent testing organisation has tested the quality
of noise, sewage and exhaust air in Goldpac Tech Park located in
Zhuhai. It indicates a qualified result when comparing with relevant
national standards or local standards in Guangdong Province.

The main sources of the Group’s exhaust air emission come from
fuel combustion, vehicle exhaust and volatile organic compounds
("VOCs") during operating processes. Based on the Group's
records on fuel and vehicles usage, we calculate and convert the
amount of air pollutant emissions as presented below:

R -#HERERERE (8

M2023F - REBE G E B/ RE R
SRR TT YR - BEAKFIRE
REBETRR GRETIKEBREEFSG
Bl R ek B R A RRIZE -

AEBERFHREZDMALE 7=
ERMEZBEPELNEZLEERY
(VOGs)  iRIBA L BIRF REWMOERB
o MERBERSRAMPERENT

Air pollutants Unit 2023 Target
BREEY By 2022 2023HEMEBZ
Sulfur oxides (SOx) KG 0.3 0.1 0.1
W&k ¥ (SOx) NI
Nitrogen oxides (NOXx) KG 124 16 16
RELH (NOX) N
Particulate matter (PM) KG 6 1 1
R (PM) NS

Note: The above emission figures’ calculation methods and relevant emission factors
refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting guidance on
Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange.

Higher diesel consumption owing to the increase in kilometres
travelled by trucks, so the emissions in 2023 have significantly
increased compared with that of 2022.The Group will continue
to control vehicle usage, regularly inspect and maintain vehicles,
reduce fuel waste and optimise fuel consumption in an effort to
achieve the 2024 emissions target which should be essentially the
same level of emissions as in 2023.

i AL RENFETERBBERERNZE
B2 P THO (N EHR R - M@ REARRE
—Mfsk = IRBRBAENUERERESD -

HMREETRAEH T LaAEE2
£ A 2023F B ¥ £:20224F B #F
BLEA - AEEBHETHEWMER -
THRERREER BIOMERE B
{EmE B HER2024FNHHERIZE
2023 FEBRHMENKFEREFE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

IRE - ﬁé&”ﬁﬁ%ﬁ>

The Group's operation and office activities, such as fuel
combustion, vehicle fuel usage and electricity consumption,
lead to both direct and indirect carbon emissions. We dedicate
to integrating the concept of environmental protection into our
corporate culture and encourage low-carbon office activities.
During daily operation, we actively advocate employees’ awareness
of environmental protection through documents, slogans,
training, publicity boards and etc. Environmental and occupational
health and safety training is not only a mandatory item for new
employees, but also a regular item for all employees every year.
The emissions of greenhouse gases are presented as below:

Scope of greenhouse

$$@W%“ﬁ%ﬁé@ AR IR GE -
TEMRER HEE  2EENE
BELHEN ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁ@
BAR DR EH - BEVEFRRANTR
Eﬁﬁ R RAPIRE AR R B S hm~
FHl - EEMESTARAEIREE
%?ﬂﬁiﬁﬁﬁ%hNTﬁmﬁalA
BOLEERE CLESFE2RBETINER
HE - RERBHRBERIMTRIR

gas (CO,e) emissions  Unit 2022 Intensity Unit 2022 2023 Target
BERE
(ZELREER) 2023
HREE B BEEQ HHAR
Scope [: direct emission  Tonne 47 74 Tonne/RMB 0.033 0.048 0.1
million revenue
HE— BEHER WA B/ AR
BEKA
Scope II: indirect Tonne 10,350 11,577 Tonne/RMB 7 8 8
emission million revenue
HE— REER WA B/ AR
BEKA

Note: The above emission figures’ calculation methods and relevant emission factors
refer to How to Prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting guidance
on Environmental KPIs issued by the Stock Exchange. The calculation of 2022
figures refer to Baseline emission factors of China’s regional power grids for
emission reduction projects in 2019 released by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC, while the calculation of 2023 figures refer to Baseline
emission factors of China’s regional power grids for emission reduction projects
in 2021.

The major sources of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions
are direct greenhouse gases emission from fuel consumption
(Scope 1) and indirect greenhouse gases emission from electricity
consumption (Scope Il). With the abolition of canteen, there was
no consumption of LPG in 2023, resulting to a corresponding
reduction in Scope 1 emissions. The Group achieved 2023 emission
intensity targets. We will endeavor to achieve the 2024 Scope
| and Scope Il emission intensity targets 0.1 tonne/RMB Million
revenue and 8 tonnes/RMB Million revenue, respectively, through
controlling the use of vehicles and energy saving measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

In order to meet the emission standards of exhaust air and reduce
carbon emissions, we have developed a series of control measures:

o Upgrading VOCs exhaust gas processing system, the
processing efficiency increase by 40%. Specifically, the device
has the capacity to filter tiny PMs and VOCs are absorbed by
activated carbon. After desorption and catalytic combustion,
VOCs are finally decomposed into non-hazardous gases
and water, and then discharged into the atmosphere. The
desorbed adsorption material can be reused for adsorption
after cooling, which can largely reduce the replacement
frequency of activated carbon;

o Gradually replacing the high-VOCs printing ink by eco-friendly
UV ink;

o Adopting advanced technologies and processes to reduce
errors and wastes, and improve efficiencies;

o After entering the Tech Park, vehicles must stop and turn off
the engine to reduce exhaust emissions;

o Encouraging employees to choose public transportation;

o Using teleconferencing instead of business travel whenever
possible;

o Provision of rooftop to the green energy strategic partner of
SanXi T.1.0 City to invest in rooftop photovoltaic power.

The Group has been treating sewage and effluent according to
wastewater treatment plan made in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, to mitigate the impacts on the environment.
Zhuhai Fintech Center focuses on R&D-based projects, therefore
there is no discharge of wastewater from factories. The wastewater
treatment facilities, which can handle wastewater including
domestic sewage, can be used to monitor whether the discharge
standards are met.

Waste Reduction and Recycling

Waste management is another key focus for the Group’'s
environmental management. Under the requirements set out
in relevant laws and regulations, we published Waste Disposal
Control Procedures which manages the generation, storage,
marking and disposal of wastes, to pursue wastes deduction in
operation activities and to prevent and lower the negative impacts
on environment.

BE HE2REBHRE &)

BEREREZSH RN OB &
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE #HSKERBRE @

We compile a detailed list of wastes annually to conduct a
comprehensive review on the waste production and treatment
and submit it to environmental management representative for
approval. Wastes are classified into non-hazardous wastes and
hazardous wastes, while the non-hazardous wastes are further
classified into non-recyclable non-hazardous wastes and recyclable
non-hazardous wastes. Through collaboration among departments,
specific waste management is designed to each type of wastes
according to their classifications. Departments where the wastes
are generated account for collection and storage. Administration
department is responsible to contact qualified waste management
contractors for treatment and final disposal of recyclable
non-hazardous wastes and hazardous wastes. For non-recyclable
non-hazardous wastes, they are disposed with the assistance of
the municipal sanitation department contacted by administration
department.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RIE -HERERKE (@)

During reporting period, the Group’s wastes are mainly recyclable WRARIFHFEHRN  KREFEBEZEM T EA0(O
non-hazardous wastes, e.g. leftover materials, wasted packaging W—REEY TZaEMREAR B
materials, wasted paper and etc. Hazardous wastes, mainly from ERNSEYE - ERHARAAE - GREE
printing process, account for only a small part of total wastes. ¥ R{hEEZEMREHN — /3o TBRKE
Our waste management system, following the five principle of ERHR - RPN EEVMEERZXFTERY
“Optimisation, Replace, Reuse, Recycle and Reduction”, allows ZBa{THW[¥WEHEA WK ER - EYF
most of the materials to be recycled so that environmental impacts B - BBHH WA FER]I AKEREL - #EX
were significantly reduced. Wastes-related figures are presented as  E85 ¥E 15 LATBIB K F - 78 2+ [& (K 4 18
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below: BHEEYE  REEYA WK R 2z
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Waste type Unit 2022 Intensity Unit 2022 2023 -
Target g
BRUES Ef REEM 2023 EEE
BiZ & EH
Hazardous wastes ~ Wasted ink Tonne 13 15 KG/RMB million revenue 9 10 i =
EREEY) FEm 2 M AT/ AREEERA g;ﬁi
Developer/fixative  Tonne 12 11 KG/RMB million revenue 8 7 géj‘
solution som
B/ EYRER M AT/ AREEERA S m
Wasted rags and ~ Tonne 18 19 KG/RMB million revenue 12 12 =
gloves with ink _
SHMBEFRN . M AT/ AREEERA See
FE 25
Wasted empty Tonne 5 5 KG/RMB million revenue 4 3 g ey
barrel g .
& 2 1 i AT/ AREEERA -
Others (e.g. Used  Tonne 3 11 KG/RMB million revenue 2 7 4
activated carbon) - %
Hi (BEMRE) M AT/ AREEERA £22m
Total hazardous wastes Tonne 50 60  KG/RMB million revenue 35 40 50 gé Ed?m
EREENAE i INTIN:L I AN = f
GRS
i
Non-hazardous Recyclable Tonne 228 289 KG/RMB million revenue 161 189
wastes a] [2l i I D/ AEREBERA s
—REEY Non-recyclable Tonne 57 36  KG/RMB million revenue 40 23 sgm
A E Y W AT/ AREEERA 5
Total non-hazardous wastes Tonne 285 325 KG/RMB million revenue 201 212 212
—REENEE U] AT/ AREBERA g 1
Note: #Eit - g g‘[i
= K
1. Other hazardous waste in 2022 is mainly waste activated carbon generated 1. 022F KM eREEY IR REREERRE g “
from the replacement of activated carbon in the exhaust gas treatment system BORMREERBEEROSHE BEMEE22FLN S
of approximately 8 tonnes and waste toner cartridges, etc. of approximately 2 2ME o AREEHAR  202FFEMHRBEER
tonnes. The total amount of waste activated carbon in 2022 was higher than R IEFEMEEL = éf
normal due to equipment upgrading. é ;;T

2. Non-recyclable non-hazardous waste mainly includes green waste disposed of 2. TRl —REENEERERARENZL
nearby, and waste coming from takeaway meal leftovers and packaging. B ARINE BB -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

The Group successfully achieved both its 2023 hazardous waste
density target and its 2023 non-hazardous waste density target.
The Group will continue to implement waste disposal control
procedures, properly dispose of waste, reduce waste by improving
technologies. The control target for hazardous waste in 2024 is 35
KG/RMB million revenue, and the control target for non-hazardous
waste in 2024 is 201 KG/RMB million revenue.

In our operation process, packaging materials are mainly composed
of paper boxes, paper carton boxes, tags, tapes and fillers. These
materials are necessary to prevent the smart secure payment
products and smart kiosks from any damage. Packing materials
are strictly forbidden to be discarded randomly, and are regularly
recycled by professional companies.

REBEIRMEK2023FBRERZY R —K
BENTZEBR AREBBENTESR
WMEBEGRRF ZEREEREY UK
M= BERMOES - 2024F Bl BE
EYVHEHEERIAT S ARBAEEK
A —REEMHZESERER0AT
AREBEHRA -

HMELERETPRANBEYHIZERE
e BB R BT EXRWEF B
RREEELZEXNEMMBEERBLR
BENVERRY BRUHNBREBESR
Z R EERFETEHARKERRE -

Packaging type Unit 2022 Intensity Unit 2022
SEMRER B EEEN

Paper box Unit 1,230,176 1,547,418 Unit/RMB Million revenue 868 1,011
=Y 1@l B/ AREEEKRA

Paper carton box Unit 157,494 184,823 Unit/RMB Million revenue 111 121
A & |/ ARBEEEKRA

Tag Piece 4,705,800 4,852,500 Piece/RMB Million revenue 3,321 3,172
2% B ®OARBEERA

Tape Roll 30,180 39,583 Roll/RMB Million revenue 21 26
B4 & B/ AREEBRA

Filler Piece 333,000 256,300 Piece/RMB Million revenue 235 168
B b ®OARBEBRA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Concerns for and Responses to Climate Change

The Group is also concerned with climate change related issues,
constantly identifies and evaluates the risk of climate change on
our business operations, and formulates policies to manage the
identified risks based on Risk Management Procedures.

Physical risks
Acute risks

Chronic risks

These risks are mainly related to extreme
events under climate change and public
health emergencies (such as super typhoons,
floods, epidemics, etc.) which may bring
risks to the assets of the Group, affect
our ability to operate, make damage to
our reputation and cause loss of business.
Through Business Continuity Management
Procedure, we developed business continuity
plans for the events of non-destructive
and destructive natural disasters. By using
flexible working arrangements and preventive
measures to ensure the daily production,
the Group continues to operate and provide
uninterrupted service to our customers.

These risks refer to risks arising from
long-term shifts in climate patterns, such as
chronic heat waves and rising sea level. For
example, an increase in average temperature
would increase the demand for cooling
equipment in data centres and failure to meet
this requirement could adversely affect the
Group's service provision. Thus, we monitor
the risks closely so as to take timely measures.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

Transition risks
Policy and The introduction of policies and measures
legal risks related to carbon peak and carbon neutrality
may bring about legal and regulatory changes.
We will continue to monitor climate change
related trends, policies and regulations to
avoid cost increases and/or compliance risks
caused by delayed response.

Market risks The Group will be at risk if it fails to keep pace
with the growing demand for green products
from its banking and retail customers. After
years of exploration and innovative application
of cutting-edge technology, the Group has
developed a number of “eco-friendly cards”
and implemented a number of projects, which
largely improve our market attractiveness
and competitiveness, and turn risks into
opportunities.

Reputation risks As a responsible fintech company, we must
strongly support sustainable development. If
we fail to address the climate change issues
proactively, we will expose to the risk of losing
recognition from our customers and society.
Therefore, we actively monitor the climate
change issues, continuously assess related
risks and opportunities, and take actions to
control risks and seize opportunities.

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITY

Employees are critical support to our on-going development. We
treat our people well to bring mutual advancement. The Group’s
operations also need to cooperate with the community. Thus, we
proactively contribute to the community and endeavour for mutual
prosperity.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Recruitment Policy

The Group regularly reviews Human Resource Management
Procedure and Staff Manual, which specify the Group’s
requirements and procedures for employment, including
recruitment, dismissal, promotion, remuneration, working hours,
rest periods, diversity and other benefits. Under the principle
of being open, fair and just and merit-based selection, we treat
every candidate equally regardless of their race, ethnicity, colour,
religion, gender, age, region, marital status or disability. However,
child labour is strictly prohibited. We will verify the age of
candidates to avoid child labour. Once we discover that individuals
below the legal working age are hired, the Group will take
immediate action to rectify the situation. The Group also forbids
any form of forced, bonded or forced labour, and no employee
will be required to surrender original identification documents or
lodge deposits as a condition of employment. Candidates need to
pass rigorous written tests and interviews in order to obtain the
offer. Besides specific professional skills and working capabilities,
candidates should be honest, possess a correct working attitude
and a high professional dedication and comply with laws,
regulations and ethics. The Group is committed to creating a
diverse, inclusive, egalitarian and collaborative workplace for
its employees and protecting them from discrimination and
harassment. Any employee who is intimidated, humiliated,
bullied, harassed (including sexual harassment) or discriminated
in any way can report to human resources department or internal
control department or file complaints directly to the management
representative or CEO. Upon receiving the above complaints,
human resources department will cooperate with relevant
departments to investigate, and the relevant personnel will be
seriously dealt with if the complaint is true. Similarly, procedures
for termination or cancellation of employment also follow the
requirements and procedures stated in the above documents and
comply with the statutory requirements of the place of operation.
Human resources department will also conduct exit interviews
with employees in conjunction with employees’ department to
gain insight on employees’ opinions and suggestions to ensure
the implementation of relevant policies. The Group treasures every
staff, pays attention to staff movement and takes action to retain
talents as early as possible.

The Group’s employment policies comply with all relevant labour
laws and regulations at each operation location. During 2023, the
Group observed no violations of any applicable labour laws and
regulations including child labour and forced labour issues.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

As at 31 December 2023 + employee-related figures are as follows:

MR2023F12A31H " EEBEEBELOT :

Total number of active employees
ERESRH

By gender
e E by

Male

Eefes

Female

gegid

By employment type
REREZLES
Direct labour
AR T

Indirect labour
FERTZE T

By age group
RERMERE D
Under 30 years old

L H308%

30 to 50 years old
30%5053%

Over 50 years old
5057 A £

By geographical region
Rt EE D

The Chinese mainland
B A 3

Other regions

H b i[5
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1,507 1,583

854 907
653 676
708 776
799 807
315 403

1,138 1,131

54 49

1,481 1,557

26 26



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R -#HERERERE (8

Employee turnover rate
BERKE

By gender
Qe E By

Male

Bt

Female

Eegid

By age group
RERARNE D
Under 30 years old
L3055,

30 to 50 years old
30E5073%

Over 50 years old
5088 A k=

By geographical region
RihEE 2

The Chinese mainland
A B A3,

Other regions

H b3 [5@

Note:  The turnover rate of age group over 50 years old includes employees retired

at statutory retirement age.

Employee Benefits

The progress and development of the economy and society, and
the change of industrial policies and talent policies increase the
possibility that the human resources policies not achieving their
objectives during the formulation and implementation process.
The loss of talent and the shortage of highly skilled personnel in
line with business development are the main aspects of human
resources risk management and control. Therefore, the Group
offers competitive compensation and provides a platform for talent
development as well as comprehensive and continuous training
programmes.

15% 16%
16% 16%
14% 15%
33% 28%
9% 11%
35% 35%
15% 14%
12% 4%
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Remunerations are determined and adjusted based on factors
including economic conditions, personal experience, performance
assessment and operational results of the Group. To motivate
employees at every level to fully reach their potentials, in addition
to basic salaries, we also offer bonuses, allowances, shares award
schemes and other benefits. Employees are entitled to paid leaves,
including but not limited to annual leave, overtime leave, marital
leave and maternity leave, as stated in applicable laws of their
working places. Working hours also complies with local laws
and regulation, as well as the industry norms. Forced labour is
prevented within the Group and we do not encourage employees
to work overtime under normal circumstances, while legal and
reasonable subsidies will be provided to suitable voluntary overtime
and special positions. Through the cultivation of the talent team
in each department and increasing internal training opportunities,
we strive to enhance the job satisfaction of our staff, and create a
pleasant working environment.

According to Management Method of Performance Appraisal,
employees are assessed on a regular basis, that is, performance
appraisal, to review their work progress, quality and effectiveness,
so as to set further improvement plans and better goals in the
future. Performance appraisals are carried out monthly, quarterly
and annually and its contents should be specific and quantified.
The results serve as a vital reference in deciding salary, promotion
and training opportunities, as well as a platform to strengthen
communications between department and employees. In order to
enhance the overall quality and competitiveness of employees, we
continue to improve our Management Method of Performance
Appraisal and promotion process, and a broader platform is
provided to employees through comprehensive assessments under
the principles of being open, fair and just. The Group becomes
energetic with positive competitions which also lay a good
foundation of greater progresses in the future.

Statutory benefits are offered to employees under the requirements
of local laws and regulations. Such benefits include insurances
and paying entity’s section of accumulation funds on time. The
Group also arranges physical examinations for all staff every year
and bears all expenses. The physical examinations of 2023 were
successfully completed in the fourth quarter. In order to help
employees of the Chinese mainland solve the problems of children’s
education and settlement of residency for fresh graduates, the
Group companies promptly conveyed the settlement policy and
actively assisted employees in settling their residency, so as to solve
their worries. The Group has been providing humanistic care to
its staff by offering holiday benefits to female staff and granting
them half-day holidays for Women’s Day, conducting thematic talks
on female care from time to time to help female staff achieve a
work-life balance, paying attention to the health of female staff
and enhancing the medical check-up programme for female staff
in the annual physical examination, and setting up a separate
mother’s hut (mother and baby room) in the office building to
provide special care to female staff during breastfeeding.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Development and Training

In order to effectively improve the overall quality of staff,
strengthen professional skills, expand career development horizons,
cultivate a group of excellent lecturers, gradually build a learning
organisation and create a career development platform that
integrates learning, communication and interaction, and ultimately
improve the comprehensive ability of individuals and enhance the
core competitiveness of the Group for the purpose of achieving
win-win development, the Group insists on internal lecturer
cultivation and teaching skills improvement.

Data on employee training in 2023 are as follows:

Percentage of employees trained
ZHEEBED

BE HE2REBHRE &)

8 T 3R M3

REVRFTEINGEERE  BIELEER
B MRBEZRAET RAREE—HE
FHBMEL BT ESELMAMY
BE-—EE2E R EHR - RBOR
ERRTE RRESBASZARANLIE
BEBZOBRFNINERARERNEN
AEE R AIENIEE - AR ARBE
I ED R R X BE o

2023 F REFINNABEBBEOT ¢

Average training hours (hours)

F 39 2 I B B (N E)

Total 87% 97% 13.25 14.47

HBES
By gender

gl

Male 87% 97%

B

Female 85% 97%

eglid
By employment type
RESERED

Direct labour 83% 96%

AIARE T

Indirect labour 89% 98%

FRIRET

13.19 15.09

13.32 13.63

14.01 14.26

12.57 14.66
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BiE HE2REBHRE @

The Group has always attached importance to staff training and
development, and is committed to enhancing the professional
skills and professionalism of its staff. The development of staff is
also an important factor in assessing the sustainable development
of a company. The management capability of human resources
should match the needs of the new business model and control
model, and should support the Group’s strategic planning. We
have developed an effective Training Management System to
provide comprehensive internal and external training and a
comprehensive and effective evaluation system for our employees.
Internal training includes mandatory induction training, job skills
training, on-the-job improvement training and information security
training, etc. External training includes conferences and training
courses organised by various organisations, for which the Group
will provide appropriate allowances as appropriate. At the end
of the training, the trained staff is required to participate in the
evaluation to ensure the effectiveness of the training. During the
year, training activities were successfully held in various ways, both
online and offline, such as Excel training, management training,
etc. In order to inherit the corporate culture of innovation, deepen
young employees’ understanding of the Group, establish a good
corporate image, enhance the effectiveness of staff training
through innovative competitions, as well as provide a platform
for employees to present themselves, the Group carried out the
"Golden Messenger” competition in 2023.

EXCEL Training
EXCELFGEIE A
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Occupational Health and Safety

Employee health and safety is a key aspect of human resource risk
management and control. The Group is committed to continuous
investment in occupational health and safety and attaches great
importance to the issue of employee health and safety, through
the introduction of a series of health policy measures, including
the management of the health classification of all employees,
travel control, control of the flow of people in the Tech Parks,
continuous operation protection, environmental cleaning and
disinfection, emergency dormitory allocation, emergency response
and other aspects, which strongly guarantee the efficient and
continuous operation of the Tech Parks. The Group has obtained
OHSAS18001 (upgraded to 1SO45001) Occupational Health and
Safety Management System Certificate since 2012, and has
successfully renewed the certificate. The Group issued Environment
and Occupational Health and Safety Management Manual as a
general policy, together with other subordinated documents as
specific procedures. Our occupational health and safety related
policy complies with all applicable laws, regulations and standards,
aiming to improve the Group’s management on occupational
health and safety, manage risks and mitigate the operational
impacts on employees and create a safe and harmonious
environment.

R -#HERERERE (8
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We encourage employees to engage in the management of
occupational health and safety and work together to establish
a safe workplace. The Group has appointed the management
representative to implement the management of occupational
health and safety. Employee representatives are also selected
to act as a communication bridge with management to reflect
employees’ opinions about matters related to occupational
health and safety. In addition, there are regular internal monitors
organised by quality management department to ensure the
effectiveness and compliance of the health and safety management
system, operational controls and emergency preparation control
procedures. The Group strictly implements employee safety training
to enhance the awareness of occupational health and safety.
During the year, we organised a series of occupational safety
training such as fire drill and safety production.

There was no work-related fatality occurred in the past 3 years.
There were 1,272 lost hours due to work injury (equivalent to
159 lost working days) recorded during the year, at approximately
0.025% of the Group’s total working time (2022: 624 lost
hours due to work injury, equivalent to 78 lost working days, at
0.012% of the Group's total working time). There were 6 cases
of work-related injuries reported in 2023 (2022: 5 cases), which
were caused by employees slipping and falling, knocking by an
obstacle on their way home by accident. In order to ensure that
our employees make a full recovery, we have provided adequate
medical treatment and subsequent rehabilitation periods for our
injured employees. We have also conducted in-depth analysis of
each accident to identify the causes and potential safety hazards,
and carried out appropriate measures to rectify the situation. At
the same time, we have actively placed staff training and guidance
on avoiding accidents in workplace to prevent recurrence of
similar accidents. In order to improve employee’s physical and
mental health as well as their leisure cultural life and let employees
devote themselves to their work in the best condition, the Group
organised yoga courses, which provided employees with a platform
for stretching their bodies and minds and exercising, so that the
employees can better relax themselves after work, and release their
psychological pressure and anxiety. In 2023, the Group complied
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards which had a significant impact on the Group.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Community Engagement

The Group is committed to growing together with the community.
We understand the importance of community engagement and
encourage our employees to participate in community activities to
strengthen our relationship with the local community. As a fintech
company, the Group is also actively taking social responsibilities
while providing quality services and products. Our smart secure
payment products and services not only serve for people’s
livelihood in public services including social security, healthcare,
transportation, etc., but also promote the sustainable development
of charity and philanthropy and spread positive energy. The Group
has participated in charity and donations many times to grow
and progress with the society. Over the years, we have actively
engaged in poverty alleviation, education assistance, anti-epidemic
relief, public facilities construction, voluntary services, etc., to
practice social responsibilities and promote social development.

In addition, the Group has always attached great importance to
the cooperation between industry, university and research, fully
tapping the resources of scientific research teams, promoting
the commercialisation of scientific research achievements, and
realising cutting-edge technologies and talent reserve. We have
established partnerships with colleges and universities on projects
and talent trainings, including joint laboratory of Internet of Things
with Wuhan University, talent training programmes with Zhaoging
Science and Technology School, Zhuhai New Thinking Secondary
Vocational School and Zhongshan Torch Polytechnic, teaching and
practice base for Jinan University, Beijing Normal University Zhuhai
Campus and others.

In response to collaboration and paired assistance between the
eastern and western regions, giving full play to the important
role of labour cooperation in paired assistance, the Group actively
engaged in the labour cooperation between Zhuhai and Zunyi
and went to Fenggang and Wuchuan in Zunyi. The Group studied
the situation of their labour force and employment demand and
released the requirements of recruitment to provide targeted
assistance, and further communicated with two local secondary
vocational colleges in talent training and talent delivery. Over the
years, the Group has proactively carried out activities to promote
the employment of people with disabilities, providing stable
employment for them by combining the characteristics of the
enterprise.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

R -#HERERAERE (&

The Group has also played an important role in the development of
inclusive finance. We have provided a number of small and micro
enterprise cards to a number of banks in China to promote the
long-term sustainable development of small and micro enterprises.
We also provide rural revitalisation cards to dozens of banks in
China. The rural revitalisation card is a series of special bank cards
issued by China UnionPay in conjunction with commercial banks
for users in rural areas for use in scenarios such as agricultural
production and living, to implement financial services for rural
revitalisation and to enhance the efficiency and level of rural
financial services.

The Group actively cooperated with community anti-telecom fraud
activities and invited officers from the Anti-Fraud Centre of Zhuhai
Municipal Public Security Bureau Xiangzhou Branch to conduct a
seminar on anti-telecom and network fraud. During the training
session, the officers introduced the general situation of telecom
fraud and stressed the importance of combating telecom fraud.
By briefly introduced some related cases of fraud and interpreted
the key points of Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Anti-Telecom and Network Fraud from company and individual
perspectives, the seminar powerfully strengthened the community’s
as well as the staff’s vigilance and identification ability of telecom
and network fraud.

By leveraging our experience and expertise, we offer supports in
a wide range of areas in infrastructure construction, technology
development, education, and etc., fostering the development of
the community and giving back to our society.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
RE HERERBRE &)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

REPORT (CONTINUED)

Section/Remarks

- D

KPI A1.2

KPI' A1.3

KPI'A1.4

KPI'A1.5

KPI'A1.6

Aspect A2
B TA2

General Disclosure

— AR 4% 5R

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (FE) ket RHEEE (BE2) AEREFENRE
(LBt E) R (mER) BE (MABEE &M -
BIERIEE) °

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEEAEEEEYRE AEAE) R (Em)
BE(WMAEGESEN  BERKEAE) -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FEAREEEYEAE AEAE) R (Em)
BE(WMUAEBESEN  BERKETE) -

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

BT B AR R REDE LB ZEMER
HREY 28R

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

HAREEEREEEEMN L - RIEMATET
VHBEERERAERELEZAIRNMALSE -

Use of Resources

BERER

Policies on the efficient use of resources including
energy, water and other raw materials.
BRERER(BIEEIR - K REAMRME) B K

o

Eﬁo
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Emissions Reduction

B B IR

Waste Reduction and Recycling

BRI

Waste Reduction and Recycling
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Emissions Reduction
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Waste Reduction and Recycling
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER

Section/Remarks

- P

KPI A2.1

KPI A2.2

KPI' A2.3

KPI'A2.4

KPI'A2.5

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by
type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in
'000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

RENESHEEZER REZER(WE - Fk
) BFEE (UNTHETFRERAE) REE (MAE

s

EEEMN BERBAHE) -

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.qg.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BERKERTEE (WASESEN  BERME
#) o

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set
and steps taken to achieve them.

R FAET Z A REA N B IERARESE LR
EFTEEUA P8 o

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

I SRBGER KR R BERIMRE - A RPIEI L
BVRKES B R R AREDE L B IRATERIEY Z5R -

Total packaging material used for finished
products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.
HEmABEEMBNRE (A E) & (nE
R)BEEEMGE -

Resources Consumption

BIR{ER

Resources Consumption

BIR{ER

Resources Consumption

BIRER

Resources Consumption

BIRER

Waste Reduction and Recycling

BRI
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

FRER - EF@E -

Aspect A3
[EEA3

General Disclosure

—RIE

KPI' A3.1

Aspect A4
B A4

General Disclosure

— AR A% 5R

KPI A4.1

—REERBREARER

The Environment and Natural Resources

BRERRXARER

Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant
impacts on the environment and natural
resources.
WMEZHTAHRERRAEREREAZENK
% o

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and
the actions taken to manage them.

R EBEHHRBERRARERNEATER
RRERBEHETENITE -

Climate Change
RIxE 1

Policies on identification and mitigation of
significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.

ESIPY RS
ﬁ\%ﬁ%$HMﬁ

%Qﬁ% TAEERENE

Description of the significant climate-related
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to
manage them.
HABKRAEEHBTAEEYENEARRK
HEEE  REHTH -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER

Section/Remarks

- P

B. Social
B.iE

Employment and Labour Practices

BRERETIESR
Aspect B1

JEEB1

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI'B1.1

KPI'B1.2

Employment

(3

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,

anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

ERAFTHNRARE BEREM  TERE - &

FERe Lt REGAREMAESREF

Hy -

(a) MR K

by BTFHETABEAZEZMNHBEEIERS
Bley & #E o

Total workforce by gender, employment type
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

ZMR - EEEAL (MEREEE)  Fikdn R
HE 2 S E BB -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

R FRARNRBREDMEERKLE

Recruitment Policy
Employee Benefits
Appendix 1

(e
BTIFE
B 851

Recruitment Policy

(e

Recruitment Policy

(e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERERBRE &)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

Section/Remarks

- D

Aspect B2
& mEB2

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B2.1

KPI B2.2

KPI B2.3

Health and Safety
REHEZ2

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

FHRHZ2IHERREMREREREBEBENRE

=

(@ HER: Rk

by BTHETAREAZENHBEEZLR
{5189 & # o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years including
the reporting year.

BE=ZF (BRERFE)FFRAITHRNHABK
& o

Lost days due to work injury.

AIBEEATIERH -

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R PR ER B R R R e 245 58 - A RABB
TTRERITE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER

Section/Remarks

- P

Aspect B3
[EmB3

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B3.1

KPI B3.2

Aspect B4
[E EIB4

General Disclosure

—RIWE

KPI B4.1

KPI B4.2

Development and Training

B KR

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

BRRTHE B BT TIEBE M AR MR BUR -
B SIEE -

The percentage of employees trained by gender
and employee category (e.g. senior management,
middle management).
BMRIREERMN(NERERRE HRERE)
ENMXIEERDL

The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
mMRIREBERNE S  FREETKIINF
B8 e

Labour Standards

TR

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to preventing child or forced labour.

BREMEEISRHL I

(a) WK K

(b) BFHETABEAZEZNHBEEIERS
BIE B

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

s R B DI BB LA B S T R T -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered.

e IR ERB AR HR A BIE LRI &
%ET% o

Development and Training

o

3 T % & 155

\

Development and Training

B THREF

Development and Training

B TH#REF

Recruitment Policy
Employee Benefits
Appendix 1

(e
BIFE
B 851

Recruitment Policy

(S

Recruitment Policy

(i
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

Operating Practices
EEEM

Aspect B5

& EB5

General Disclosure
— R E

KPI' B5.1

KPI B5.2

KPI B5.3

KPI B5.4

Supply Chain Management
ftEEEE

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain.
ERHERNRE R EEBEBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

iR E D WHEEHEE -

Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.

MO ERERHERNED mENTEBED
MHEHEE  URBRBRITRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify
environmental and social risks along the supply
chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

M AREBAHERESERONREREERAR
BRI ARMEBEATRERTE -

Description of practices used to promote
environmentally preferable products and services
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

M EREHERRREZBRREMIRBEH
BH - ARMEBERITRERTE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER

Section/Remarks

- P

Aspect B6
2 HB6

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B6.1

KPI B6.2

KPI B6.3

KPI B6.4

KPI B6.5

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising,

labelling and privacy matters relating to products

and services provided and methods of redress.

ERAMREERNBRENRERLS B 8

BRLEEEURBRA AR

(@ HR: &

(b) BEBFHBETABEATZENHEBEEEZLR
BIEE# o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons.
EERCEXERMERTALTEERERAMEA
B H B 5L °

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with.

BEEBRERNMRBEORFEHE AREHTTE

Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.
fe it BB M M ARIE R E B AR IE A -

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.
it E B e T AR N E AR FE e

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

i il OH B & BB RE MALBBUOR - A RBBTT
NMEERTTE -

Product and Service Quality
Information Security and Data
Protection

Appendix 1
EmkREES
EETTHEBIERE
B 851

Product and Service Quality

EmLREEE

Product and Service Quality
EmMRFEEE
Product and Service Quality
EmkREEE
Product and Service Quality
EmkRBEE

Information Security and Data
Protection

EEREHBURRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
RE HERERBRE &)

Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs

TEHEE EFEH —REBEREREXER

REPORT (CONTINUED)

Section/Remarks

- D

Aspect B7
[EmEB7

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B7.1

KPI B7.2

KPI B7.3

Anti-corruption

R&ES

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money

laundering.
BRI IEEE - $1R - MFERARES
(@ HER: K

b) BFHBTABEALENAMER LM
B o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RNERPAHBETAREESERDIEFEANE
HRAARMTEEE MFRER -

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

P S R B BET - ARMBBERITRER
& °

Description of anti-corruption training provided
to directors and staff.
MimmEERETIRENREGE -
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Subject Areas, Aspects, General Disclosures and KPIs
TEER EEH —REBERBEEERER

Section/Remarks

- P

Community
#HE
Aspect B8
JE E B8

General Disclosure

— R E

KPI B8.1

KPI B8.2

Community Investment

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BRNHE2ERTHREEMEHLESTEMBER
HEBEHSERBLEFFZABR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

ZIEREB(NHE REFE HIHR-
f2p - xxfb-8B5) -

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EEIHBEMBAER(WEERER) -

EHEREEZRERAT

Community Engagement
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z
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

- HERERTE @)

8 15

APPENDIX 1
LIST OF LAWS AND REGULATIONS WITH
SIGNIFICANT IMPACT ON THE GROUP

The following table presents the list including but not limited to
the laws and regulations relating to ESG issues and with significant
impacts on the Group.

GENERAL

Constitution of the PRC

Civil Code of the PRC

Criminal Law of the PRC

Company Law of the PRC

PRC tax laws

The Basic Law of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region of the PRC

Companies Ordinance (Hong Kong)

Inland Revenue Ordinance (Hong Kong)

LISTING

Listing Rules (Hong Kong)

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Hong Kong)

Rules of Securities and Futures (Listing on Stock Markets)
(Hong Kong)

OPERATION ISSUES

Information security

Measures for the Regulation of Risks in the Information Technology
Outsourcing by Banking and Insurance Institutions

Cybersecurity Law of the PRC

Data Security Law of the PRC

Personal Information Protection Law of the PRC

Patent Law of the PRC

Copyright Law of the PRC

Trademark Law of the PRC

Regulations of the PRC on Customs Protection of Intellectual
Property Rights

Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Hong Kong)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Card organisation

Rules and guidelines on the qualification certifications, quality

control certifications, security management for product
manufacturing and personalisation enterprises

PCI" Card Production Physical Security Requirements

PCI Card Production Logical Security Requirements

PCl Data Security Standard

Product and service quality

Law of the PRC on Work Safety

Product Quality Law of the PRC

Regulation of the PRC on the Administration of
Production License for Industrial Products

Regulation on the Administration of Commercial Cipher Codes

Advertisement Law of the PRC

Regulation on the Administration of Outdoor Advertising Facilities
and Signboard Installations in Special Economic Zone of Zhuhai
Specification for Identification Code and Card Number of Bank

Card Issuer

Specification for Format and Use of Bank Card Magnetic Stripe

Information

Anti-corruption

Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC
Anti-Monopoly Law of the PRC

The Bidding Law of the PRC

Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Hong Kong)

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ISSUES

Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

Energy Conservation Law of the PRC

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Atmospheric Pollution

Law of the PRC on Noise Pollution Prevention and Control

National Catalogue of Hazardous Waste

1 PCl stands for Payment Card Industry
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE HERERBRE &)

EMPLOYEE AND COMMUNITY ISSUES EIRHEZRZEEE

Labour Law of the PRC (P AREMBELEE)

Labour Contract Law of the PRC (PEAREMELEA RE)

Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances (TERE &6

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of Occupational (PEAR LB EBHIEE)
Diseases

Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of Infectious (RE AR EFBEERBRAE)
Diseases

Social Insurance Law of the PRC (pEEAREMBEEZREIE)

Provisions on Prohibition of Child Labour (EILFERETRE)

Provisions of the State Council on Working Hours of (FEERERBR T I ERREMNETE)
Workers and Staff

Labour Relations Ordinance (Hong Kong) CBEBERIEDNY(FH)

Employment Ordinance (Hong Kong) CRIBIED)Y (FE)

Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Hong Kong) CRE®BEERDD (FH)

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Hong Kong) (BRETENEBRGEN)(FH)

Minimum Wage Ordinance (Hong Kong) (HRBEIEERY(FHE)
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The Board hereby presents this Annual Report together with the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is specialised in delivering embedded software, secure
payment products and smart financial self-service kiosks for
global customers and leveraging innovative Fintech to provide
date processing, system platforms and other total solutions for
customers in a wide business range including finance, retails,
public services including social security, healthcare, transportation,
etc. The Group is certified by six of the world-leading credit card
organisations including Visa, MasterCard, American Express, China
UnionPay, JCB and Diners Club. As one of the global leading
secure payment total solutions suppliers, the Group is actively
involved in drafting and formulating industrial standards and
criterion. Driven by customers’ diversified demands and evolving
technologies in innovation, the Group watches the cutting-edge
technological trends with the closest interests, covering digital
currencies, Al, mobile payment, loT, to reinforce the Group’s
leading industrial position and boost the whole industry’s
evolution. Motivated by the strong R&D aptitudes and rich practical
experiences, the Group was not only actively involved in numerous
significant industrial events and projects, including the first EMV
(Europay, MasterCard and Visa) projects in Hong Kong and the
Chinese mainland, the first provincial social security card project,
the first financial social security card project, the first citizen
card project and the first healthcare card project in the Chinese
mainland, but also successfully provided secure payment products
in compliance with the specifications of the local requirements for
more than 30 countries and regions around the world. Adhering
to the spirit of “Virtue, Innovation, Efficiency and Cooperation”
and leveraging its leading technologies, preeminent qualities and
premium services, the Group is fully engaged in promoting a wider
and in-depth Fintech applications. At the same time, the Group is
now continuously extending its superior solutions and services to
a wider geographical area and delivering convenient, secure and
easy payment experiences to people around the globe.

The principal activities of the Group for the year 2023 are set out
in Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements on page 222 to
page 232 of this Annual Report.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @)

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income on pages 190 and 191 of this Annual
Report.

A final dividend of HK10.0 cents (2022: HK12.0 cents) and a
special dividend of HK4.0 cents (2022: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 has been
proposed by the Board.

PERFORMANCE

A discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the
year 2023, the material factors underlying its results and financial
position and details of the Group’s principal activities are provided
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
page 12 to page 27 of this Annual Report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attendance and for voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held
on Tuesday, 21 May 2024, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for
registration by 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 May 2024. The register
of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 16 May
2024 to Tuesday, 21 May 2024, both days inclusive, during which
period, no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final
dividend and special dividend, all transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong
Kong for registration by 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2024. The
register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
3 June 2024 to Wednesday, 5 June 2024, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
Subject to shareholders’ approval of the proposed dividends at the
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 21
May 2024, the dividends will be paid on Friday, 28 June 2024 to
the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on Wednesday, 5 June
2024.

700  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

FENKE DK

AREBENE E2023F12A318 1L FEE
EHNRAFEREI10E K1 BEHFEEG R
HEh2mEBAKRS ©

FEOEZMEAZET2023F12A8318 1L 2
FREIRE RPN E G EBAEE10.01U
(2022F B ABEE12.000) + LA R4S &
B4 0Nl (2022F [F BB ®E4.01L) -

RERE

BN AREE2023FERNKLLERIT - 245
MEEFERZEZ  BERAARKREBRD
FEEKBANNwmEADTEHNAKFRSE
NREE27TERM[EEBEFWMEDM A -

TEMEROBFELFE

ABETKREEELFE I MN2024F5H21H
(EH )BT 2REAFREERE
ERPRBERB AR EAN2024F5 A
148 (BB ) TFHEEB =158 REK
NAIZBHBPERREEBTAETAR
NAE I AFEBEREBICHERSRT
D78 - KA A R2024F5816H (B
V) £2024F5821H (EH =) 28R
WK HERERDBEERLTFE -

AREEREAEERAIERZ 2 KHARK
ERBRIRE  fTABFPRKRERABBRK
ZEMN2024F5A31H (B8 H) TFME
Z+ 98 REARB ZBRMDERLE EE
BEELARAR it AFEBERE6
SRR POTE - AR T R2024
F6A3H (BH—) E2024F6A5H (£ 8
=) BREEMKX EERHERMDBR
BT FE o FRN20245FE5H218 (BH )
BOZERRFAFRS EWMEHER - £l
f% 2 1 N2024%E6 A28 (EHIH) IR & F
MR2024F6A5H (28 =) & 2 H 4 REF
BHNARNB R EZ T 2GR -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, some of which are inherent to the payment solutions
business and some are from external sources. Major risks are
summarised below.

(i) The financial performance of the Group
depends on the future growth of the
consumer financial services industry

As the Group relies on financial institutions, and public
sectors (such as social security, public transportation and
health sectors) and other organisations that issue financial
payment cards and procure digital equipment as its
customers or potential customers, the financial performance
of the Group depends on the future growth of the consumer
financial services industry and trends in that industry
towards greater outsourcing of certain functions such as the
production of financial payment products, digital equipment
and data processing. The consumer financial services industry
is characterised by rapid launches of new products and
services, continuous technological advancement, evolving
industry standards and changing customer needs, all of which
make new products and services not having long life cycles.
Organisations that issue financial cards or other relevant
products, such as the Group’s customers, may face difficulty
in anticipating changes in consumer tastes, preferences and
requirements and designing financial products to meet such
changes, which could lead to a lower demand for financial
payment products and in turn decrease these organisations’
demand for the products and services, which may adversely
affect the financial results of the Group.
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(ii)

As a supplier to financial institutions and
public sectors, the Group is subject to
applicable laws and regulations and/or
industry standards

Many of the industry organisations, government regulatory
agencies and other bodies to which the Group’s customers
belong or are subject to have issued their own sets of
standards, laws and regulations and criteria relating to the
facilities and products of payment solutions providers, which
the Group must satisfy in order to be eligible to supply
products and services to these customers. For example, as
required by the Group’s financial institution customers, the
Group has obtained certifications from all six of the leading
worldwide payment card organisations (Visa, MasterCard,
American Express, China UnionPay, JCB, and Diners Club)
with respect to the Group’s card manufacturing and
personalisation services. To maintain such certifications, the
Group is subject to rigorous periodic audits by these payment
card organisations to review the Group’s compliance with
their standards and criteria. The Group makes significant
investments in order to meet these standards and criteria,
which vary depending on the organisation or body, including
investments required to satisfy changes adopted from time
to time by these organisations and bodies in their respective
standards and criteria. Further investments to meet these
standards and criteria may be costly, and if the Group is
unable to continue to meet these standards and criteria,
the Group may become ineligible to provide products and
services that have constituted in the past an important part
of the Group’s revenue and profitability.

(iii) The Group faces significant competition in

102

each of the markets in which it operates,
which could affect its profitability

The Group’s market position depends upon its ability to
anticipate and proactively deal with changes in economic and
market conditions and evolving industry trends, as well as the
following factors: introduction of new or superior products
and services or more advanced technologies, adoption of
more flexible pricing strategies by the Group’s competitors
and changes in customers’ needs and preferences. The Group
cannot assure that its current or potential competitors will
not produce the same or similar products or products of a
better quality and/or provide similar or higher quality services
at the same or lower prices than the prices at which the
Group’s products and services are provided.
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(iv)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Group's competitors may also react more quickly to
new or emerging technologies or changes in customer
preferences. In addition, the Group may face greater than
expected downward pricing pressure as a result of possible
price competition by competitors seeking to stimulate
demand in order to maintain or increase market share. Such
competition could adversely affect the Group’s results of
operations and business prospects. Any adverse changes in
the Group’s competitive environment could cause a reduction
in the sales quantity, its market share, or the sales price of
its products, which would lower the Group’s profitability.
As one of the suppliers to the major financial institutions
around the world, the Group’s performance and profitability
may be adversely affected if its customers, when faced with
operational difficulties and decreasing profit margins, seek
to demand more favourable trading terms from the Group in
relation to price and credit period. The Group’s performance
and profitability will also be adversely affected if any of its
customers faces cost control or cash flow problems due to
such operational difficulties.

Fluctuations in consumer spending

and financial services may significantly
affect the Group’s business and financial
performance

The Group's sales and growth are dependent on consumer
spending and consumer banking, which in turn depend
on continued improvement of macroeconomic conditions,
around the globe generally but in the Chinese mainland
in particular. There are many factors affecting the level
of consumer spending and consumer banking, including
but not limited to, interest rates, currency exchange rates,
recession, inflation, deflation, political uncertainty, taxation,
stock market performance, unemployment levels and general
consumer confidence. In addition, the Group believes that
the Group’s historical growth rates were largely dependent
on the general growth of the global economy. The Group can
provide no assurance that the global economy will continue
to grow at historical rates, or that it will not grow at all,
and any slowdowns or declines in economy or consumer
spending or consumer banking may adversely affect the
Group's business, financial condition, results of operations
and growth prospects.
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(v)

104

Changes in economic, political and social
conditions as well as policies around the
globe may adversely affect the Group

The risk of material adverse changes to the Group’s business
performance, development prospects and/or ability to deliver
its objectives and strategic goals, caused by changes in the
business, economic, regulatory or political environments in
which the Group operates, may in turn affect and diminish
the competitiveness of the Group and its potential for
business development. The impact of geopolitical turmoil may
lead to changes in trade, investment and other policies and
markets, and may also lead to disruptions in the supply of
certain key raw materials or components. This may exposes
the Group to the risk of rising raw material costs and price
volatility. In addition, changes in the international social
situations may bring about changes in policies and regulations
across the globe, which may impact the development of
different industries in various regions.

The Group will adopt an agile and adaptive mindset in
the changing global economic environment to respond to
challenges such as geopolitical turmoil through strategic
planning and operational adjustments. The Group will
also pay close attention to movements of policies and
markets in order to react in a timely manner and maintain
competitiveness.
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(vi) Natural disasters, health epidemics such

as COVID-19, social disruption and other
outbreaks could significantly disrupt the
Group’s operations

The Group may be vulnerable to social and natural
catastrophic and public health events that are beyond the
Group’s control, such as natural disasters, health epidemics,
and other catastrophes, which may materially and adversely
affect the Group’s business. Natural disasters may give rise
to water supply disruption, electricity disruption, transport
disruption, server interruption and system failures, which
could adversely affect the Group’s operation. For example,
the outbreak of COVID-19 has severely impacted China and
the rest of the world. There is no assurance that outbreak of
epidemic diseases such as COVID-19 will not further escalate
with new variant cases entailing different restrictive measures
in various countries which may in turn have a material
adverse effect on the Group's operations. Consequently, if
any natural disasters, health epidemics or other public safety
concerns were to affect the Group, the Group’s operations
may experience material disruptions, which may materially
and adversely affect the Group’s business, financial conditions
and results.

(vii)Data security risk may adversely affect the

Group

The Group attaches great importance on protecting and
safeguarding data of the customers and itself, and continues
to pay attention to the changes and updates of the laws
and policies related to privacy and data protection in various
countries and regions. As all countries and regions continue
to strengthen their regulation over data security and personal
privacy, the Group is fully aware that any loss or leakage
of such data could have a significant negative impact on
customers, which may cause adverse effect to the Group's
business.
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As one of the global leaders in total solutions in the field
of smart and secure payments, the Group has established
its information and data security management system in
strict compliance with the 1SO27001 information security
management system and the PCl (Payment Card Industry)
Data Security Standard. The Group has also passed the
Security Accreditation Scheme of GSMA, the Global System
for Mobile Communications Association. The Group's
research and development environment has passed on-site
testing for security certification by the International Chip
Card Standardization Organisation (EMVCo). The Group
engages third-party organisations to conduct system
compliance inspections annually, which can effectively ensure
the reliability of the Group’s information and data security
management system.

In the provision of data processing services, the Group
follows the principle of data confidentiality and adopts a
self-developed automated processing system to encrypt and
process data to ensure the confidentiality, integrity and
security of customer data and production data. The Group
strictly controls and implements data security specifications
in accordance with the PCI security standards and the
requirements of regulatory authorities, throughout the data
lifecycle of data transmission, receiving, management, usage,
monitoring and destruction, and has successfully passed
the security compliance audits by international credit card
organisations for more than 25 consecutive years.

In addition, the Group’s secure payment products comply
with the data security norms and standards of international
credit card organisations including Visa, MasterCard,
American Express, JCB, Diners Club and China UnionPay, and
have successfully passed the security tests and anti-attack
tests conducted by the global leading laboratories such
as Applus Services, S.A. in Europe. The Group constantly
conducts regular tests to ensure the security of the products.

The Group has always taken the protection of data and
information security as its primary responsibility. The Group
has strengthened its daily business supervision and control,
and will continue to invest in research and development
of information and data security technologies in order to
maintain its position as an industry leader.
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(viii) The Group’s business may be adversely

(ix)

affected by the introduction of new
payment technologies

The Group faces competition from new payment
technologies, which could reduce the demand for financial
cards as a payment method or the use of digital equipment.
If there are any new payment technologies which reduce
the demand for financial card products, digital equipment
or other new products the Group may introduce from time
to time, including new products arising from the Group’s
research and development activities, the Group may
experience material and adverse effects on its business,
financial condition and results of operations.

The Group’s adoption of contract-based
arrangements and/or structures in certain
lines of businesses brings about certain
risks

Please refer to the paragraph headed “Risks relating to
the Contractual Arrangement” under the section headed
“Information on the Contractual Arrangement” in the Report
of Directors.

Information on the Contractual Arrangement

As disclosed in the announcement of the Group dated
8 February 2021, UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) (the
"WFOE") has entered into the VIE Agreements with Zhirong
Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. (the “OPCO")
and/or Mr. Xian Jun (the “PRC Equity Owner”) on 8
February 2021. Through the following agreements (the “VIE
Agreements”), the Group was able to exercise 100% control
over the OPCO in substance notwithstanding the absence of
legal ownership of the company.
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Particulars of the OPCO and its registered
owners and the WFOE

The OPCO is a limited liability company established and
subsisting under the laws of the PRC. Pursuant to the
VIE Agreements entered into between the OPCO, its
registered shareholders, namely the PRC Equity Owner,
and the WFOE, the WFOE was allowed to exercise
control of and enjoy economic benefits generated from
the OPCO.

The PRC Equity Owner is a nephew of each of Mr. Lu
Run Ting and Mr. Lu Runyi. Mr. Lu Run Ting is the
Chairman, an executive Director and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and Mr. Lu Runyi is an
executive Director of the Company, and therefore, the
PRC Equity Owner is a deemed connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The WFOE is a wholly owned enterprise established
and subsisting under the laws of the PRC. The WFOE
is principally engaged in technical services, technical
development, technical consultation, technology
exchange, technology transfer and technology
promotion. As at 31 December 2023, the entire equity
interest of the WFOE was owned by the Company.

Description of OPCO’s business

The OPCO is principally engaged in (i) computer
software and hardware, (ii) research and development
in network technology, and (iii) information service
platform for online data processing and transactions
processing services as well as information service
businesses (the “Restricted Business”, and collectively,
the “Subject Business”). The OPCO has obtained the
Value-added Telecommunication Business Operation
Licence (“VAT Licence”) under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC to operate the Restricted
Business.
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Summary of the major terms of the underlying
contracts of the Contractual Arrangement (the
“VIE Agreements”)

A summary of the terms of the VIE Agreements is set
out below.

(1) The Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE; and

(i) the OPCO.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until all of the
PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest in the OPCO
is transferred to the WFOE and/or its designated
nominee in accordance with the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement. The WFOE may at any time
terminate the Exclusive Technological Consultation
and Services Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the OPCO and the PRC
Equity Owner. The OPCO has no right to terminate
the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement on its own initiative.

Major terms: The OPCO shall engage the WFOE
on an exclusive basis to provide technological
consultation and services, including but not limited
to consulting services on company management
and business strategy; website design, design,
installation, debugging and maintenance services
for computer network systems; system integration,
system maintenance, server maintenance,
database support and software services; and other
related services at the OPCQO’s request.
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Fee determination: The service fee shall be paid
on an annual basis and calculated by deducting
all costs and expenses approved by the WFOE
from the revenue generated by the OPCO for
the relevant financial year. Furthermore, the
WEFOE shall be entitled to adjust the service fee,
taking into account the scope of services as well
as the operating conditions and development
needs of the OPCO, without the OPCO’s consent.
The WEFOE shall fix the service fee taking into
account the complexity and difficulty of the
services provided by the WFOE, the time incurred
by the WFOE's employees for the provision of
the services, the actual services and commercial
value of the services provided by the WFOE, and
the prevailing market rates for the same type of
services.

Intellectual property rights: The WFOE shall enjoy
exclusively the rights, interests and intellectual
property arising from the performance of
the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Services Agreement, including but not limited
to copyrights, trademarks, patents, technology
secrets and trade secrets, irrespective of whether
they are developed by the WFOE or the OPCO,
unless the relevant government authority requires
such rights to be held by the OPCO or if such
rights are the prerequisites for the OPCO to renew
its operating licence and permit.
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(2) The Exclusive Business Co-operation

Agreement
Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE;
(i)  the OPCO; and
(iii)  the PRC Equity Owner.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until the
OPCO is dissolved in accordance with the PRC
laws. The WFOE may extend the term of the
Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement before
expiry. The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner shall
have no right to terminate the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement before expiry. The WFOE
may at any time terminate the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the OPCO and the PRC
Equity Owner.

Major terms: Unless prior written consent has
been obtained from the WFOE or its designated
nominee(s), the OPCO shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially
adversely affect the assets, business, personnel,
obligations, rights or operation of the OPCO,
including but not limited to: (i) carrying out or
conducting any activities or operating the OPCO
in a manner that is beyond the OPCO’s usual
and ordinary scope of business; (ii) selling to,
acquiring from or otherwise disposing to any
third party any assets or rights (including but not
limited to any intellectual property) worth more
than RMB100,000; and (iii) assigning any rights
and obligations of the OPCO under the Exclusive
Business Co-operation Agreement to any third

party.
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The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner shall accept
and strictly implement the suggestions and
instructions provided by the WFOE from time to
time on matters such as employment and dismissal
of employees, daily operation and management,
and the financial management system of the
OPCO. The OPCO and the PRC Equity Owner
shall elect or appoint persons designated by the
WFOE to serve as directors (or executive directors)
and supervisors of the OPCO in accordance with
the procedures prescribed by laws, regulations
and the OPCO’s articles of association, and shall
procure the election and appointment of such
persons designated by the WFOE as the chairman
(if there is a board of directors), general manager,
chief financial officer and other members of
the senior management of the OPCO. The PRC
Equity Owner shall sign a power of attorney to
irrevocably authorise the WFOE to exercise all his
shareholder’s rights in the OPCO on his behalf (the
“Irrevocable Power of Attorney”). The WFOE
may in its sole discretion designate a nominee to
exercise such shareholders’ rights granted under
the Irrevocable Power of Attorney.
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The Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021

Parties: (i)  the WFOE;

(i) the PRC Equity Owner; and

(iii) the OPCO.

Duration: From 8 February 2021 up until all of the
PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest in the OPCO
is transferred to the WFOE and/or its designated
nominee in accordance with the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement. Notwithstanding, the WFOE
may at any time terminate the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement by giving thirty (30) days’
advance written notice to the PRC Equity Owner
and the OPCO. Neither the PRC Equity Owner nor
the OPCO shall have the right to terminate the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement on his/its own
initiative.

Major terms: The PRC Equity Owner unconditionally
and irrevocably granted the WFOE an exclusive
right to, to the extent permissible under the PRC
laws, purchase or nominate any third party to
purchase, on one or more occasions, all or part
of the PRC Equity Owner’s equity interest in the
OPCO. The purchase price shall be the lower of: (i)
the actual amount contributed by the PRC Equity
Owner to acquire the registered capital of the
OPCO; or (ii) the lowest price permissible under
the PRC laws (the “Permissible Minimum Price”)
(Note 1).
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Unless with the prior written consent of the
WFOE, neither the PRC Equity Owner nor the
OPCO shall assign or transfer any of his/its rights
and obligations under the Exclusive Purchase Right
Agreement. The obligations under the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement shall be binding on the
PRC Equity Owner, the OPCO and any of his/its
successors, assignees and transferees. Upon prior
written notice given to the PRC Equity Owner,
the WFOE may, to the extent permissible under
the PRC laws, assign all or any of its rights and
obligations under the Exclusive Purchase Right
Agreement to any third party.

Note 1: As advised by Jincheng Tongda & Neal (the “PRC Legal
Advisers”), under the PRC laws, there is no legal requirement
on the value of the Permissible Minimum Price. The Permissible
Minimum Price is to be agreed between the parties, and for
illustration purpose, it can be as low as RMB1. Nevertheless,
if the Group is to acquire all the equity interest in the OPCO
(assuming there is no restriction on foreign investment) and if
the consideration/equity transfer income for the equity interest
of the OPCO received by the PRC Equity Owner is regarded as
too low and without any reasonable ground, pursuant to the
Measures for the Administration of Individual Income Tax on
Equity Transfer Income (for Trial Implementation)* (f% # 2 2
FRSEAFTISTLE B #1104 (F197))), the tax authority may assess
such equity transfer income and charge 20% tax thereof.
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Undertaking and covenants: The PRC Equity
Owner undertook (inter alia) that, prior to the
exercise of the exclusive purchase right by the
WFOE or its designated nominee to acquire all
of the equity interest in the OPCO, he shall not,
without prior written consent from the WFOE or
its designated nominee: (i) increase or reduce the
OPCO'’s registered capital or otherwise change
the registered capital structure of the OPCO;
(ii) procure the OPCO to enter into or carry on
any transactions or actions that will materially
adversely affect the assets, responsibilities,
operations, equity, and other legal rights of the
OPCO (except those which are in its usual and
ordinary course of business or those disclosed to
and with the prior written consent of the WFOE),
(iii) sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise dispose
of any legal or beneficial interest in the OPCO’s
equity, or allow any other security interest to
be placed on it, or procure the shareholders’
meetings of the OPCO to approve these acts.

In addition, the PRC Equity Owner and the OPCO
jointly and severally undertook that, prior to
the exercise of the exclusive purchase right and
acquisition of all of the equity interest in the
OPCO by the WFOE or its designated nominee,
the OPCO shall not, without written consent from
the WFOE or its designated nominee commit
certain acts, including but not limited to (i)
entering into any transaction that will or may have
a material adverse effect on the OPCO’s assets,
responsibilities, operations, equity and other legal
rights (other than in its usual and ordinary course
of business, or prior disclosure has been made and
written consent has been given by the WFOE); (ii)
distributing dividends or equity entitlements in
any form to its shareholders; and (iii) dissolving
or liquidating (unless mandatorily required by the
PRC laws).
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(4) The Equity Pledge Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE;

(i) the PRC Equity Owner; and

(iii) the OPCO.

Duration: Effective upon the Equity Pledge
Agreement being duly executed and registered
by the relevant administrative authority and
shall remain binding until the WFOE’s written
confirmation of the discharge by the PRC Equity
Owner and the OPCO of all their obligations
under the Exclusive Technological Consultation
and Services Agreement, the Exclusive Business
Co-operation Agreement, the Loan Agreement,
the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement and the
Irrevocable Power of Attorney (the “Contractual
Obligations”).

Major terms: The PRC Equity Owner agreed to
pledge all of his equity interest in the OPCO
and any interests arising therefrom during the
term of the Equity Pledge Agreement in favour
of the WFOE to secure the due performance of
the Contractual Obligations and as guarantee
for all the representations, undertakings and/
or warranties made to the WFOE by the PRC
Equity Owner or the OPCO under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Services
Agreement, the Exclusive Business Co-operation
Agreement, the Loan Agreement, the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement and the Irrevocable
Power of Attorney.
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(5) The Spousal Consent Letter

Date:

Parties:

8 February 2021

Ms. Zhao (the spouse of the PRC Equity
Owner)

Major terms: Ms. Zhao unconditionally and
irrevocably agreed, confirmed and undertook that:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

she does not possess any rights or
entitlements to the equity interest of the
OPCO;

all the equity interest held by the PRC Equity
Owner in the OPCO and all the benefits
derived therefrom shall not form part of the
matrimonial property between her and the
PRC Equity Owner;

the performance, amendments, termination
and execution by the PRC Equity Owner of
the Equity Pledge Agreement, the Exclusive
Business Co-operation Agreement, the
Irrevocable Power of Attorney and the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement (the
“Transaction Documents”) did not require
her authorisation or consent;

she shall sign all necessary documents and
take all necessary actions to ensure the due
performance of the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time); and

if she shall acquire any equity interest in the
OPCO for any reason, she shall be bound by
and comply with the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time), and upon
the WFOE's request, she shall sign a series
of documents essentially with the same form
and content as the Transaction Documents
(as amended from time to time).
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(6) The Loan Agreement

Date: 8 February 2021
Parties: (i)  the WFOE; and

(i) the PRC Equity Owner.

Duration: The term of the loan granted under the
Loan Agreement shall commence from the date of
the Loan Agreement for five years, which shall be
automatically renewed for another five years and
a further five years after expiration of each period
of automatic renewal.

Major terms: The WFOE shall provide to the PRC
Equity Owner a non-interest bearing loan in the
sum of RMB10,000,000, and the PRC Equity
Owner shall accept such loan in accordance with
the Loan Agreement. Such loans will be used
for the PRC Equity Owner’s contribution to the
paid-up capital of the OPCO. The loan will become
due and payable upon the WFOE's demand under
any of the following circumstances:

(i)  the PRC Equity Owner is dead, or has limited
or no civil capacity;

(i)  the PRC Equity Owner engages in any
criminal acts or is involved in any criminal
activities;

(iiiy  failure of the PRC Equity Owner to repay
any debts owed by him or taking up of any
material personal debts which may affect
his ability to repay the loans under the Loan
Agreement; or

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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(iv) the WFOE gives written notice to the PRC
Equity Owner in accordance with the Loan
Agreement to exercise its right to purchase
the equity interest in the OPCO to the extent
permissible under the PRC laws.

Dispute resolution clauses

The VIE Agreements are governed by and will be
construed in accordance with the PRC laws. Any dispute
arising from the VIE Agreements between the parties
should first be resolved through negotiation. In case the
dispute cannot be resolved within 30 days, any party
may submit the said dispute to the Zhuhai Arbitration
Commission* (/8 {H & Z E €)in accordance with its
arbitration rules. The arbitrators may award remedies
over the equity interest or assets of the OPCO, grant
injunctive relief (e.g. mandatory transfer of assets) and/
or order the winding up of the OPCO. The results of
the arbitration shall be final and binding. When the
arbitral award is granted, any party can apply for its
enforcement in any courts of competent jurisdictions
such as courts in Hong Kong, the PRC and locations
where the principal assets of the WFOE or the OPCO
are located.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangement

The consolidated total revenue of the OPCO for the
year ended 31 December 2023 was approximately
RMBO0.22 million. The consolidated total assets and net
assets of the OPCO as at 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately RMB10.8 million and approximately
RMB-7.47 million respectively.
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Background and reasons for use of the
Contractual Arrangement

Regulations on foreign-invested telecommunications

According to the Regulations on the Administration
of Foreign-invested Telecommunication Enterprises
(2016 Amended)* (K/NEIREBFREERHRTE (2016
F{&%E7))) (the "FITE Regulations”), (i) the ratio of
investment by a foreign investor in a company providing
value-added telecommunications services shall not
exceed 50%, and (ii) a foreign investor who invests in a
value-added telecommunications services company shall
have a good track record and operational experience in
providing value-added telecommunications business (the
"Qualification Requirement”) in the PRC.

According to the Administrative Measures of Foreign
Investment Admission (Negative List) (2020 Revision)*
(A EEAFREERE(BAEFEE) (2020
FhR))) (the “2020 Negative List"”), value-added
telecommunications businesses are classified as
industries where foreign investments are restricted, and
the proportion of foreign investment shall not exceed
50% (except for e-commerce, domestic multi-party
communication, storage and forward, and call centre
businesses).

Reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangement

Pursuant to the FITE Regulations and the 2020 Negative
List, (i) the ratio of investment by a foreign investor in
a company providing value-added telecommunications
services shall not exceed 50%; and (ii) a foreign investor
who invests in a value-added telecommunications
services company shall have the Qualification
Requirement in the PRC.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

BAGHHHENERRER

SEREEEEEHRM

BEGNEEESELEER
#E (2016F 18 35])) ([ FITE.
R ()INBR IR E & 81 g
BEEEREHRANKEE LG
T1BHiB50% : K(i)R &% E
BEEREABNIEKESE
EREREEEER ((ERE
RDAFE BEBROMNES

BRIBFONEEEEAFRIE R
L e (B M5 E) (2020 k) )
(20205 EEBEE] ' EESE
EEBHBEEARHIIINEIEE
RIT%  SNEIIR B BB 115 8
B50% (BT BIRNZ 58
A TEREE B L R MY oD
TEERAN) o

RASHNIHENWER

R AEFITESR 3R F20204 & @ /5
B ()R EEHIREEES
EREN QBN REL NS
HB3850% ¢ M(i)dN B & E Y
BEEEREQRFINLEER
AHFEMERENR -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

As advised by the PRC Legal Advisers, there lacks a
clear guidance or interpretation on the Qualification
Requirement. Furthermore, due to the foreign
ownership restrictions as outlined above and based
on the formal consultation with the officer of the
Guangdong Communications Administration by the
PRC Legal Advisers on 19 November 2020, since the
Group had no operational experience in value-added
telecommunications business in the PRC nor had
it previously acquired any equity interest in a PRC
enterprise engaged in telecommunications business,
the PRC Legal Advisers have taken the view that from a
regulatory perspective, unless it is through Contractual
Arrangement, the Group would not be able to engage
in the value-added telecommunications business in the
PRC directly or hold any equity interest of the OPCO.
In the event that the Group holds any equity interest
in the OPCO, the application to renew the VAT Licence
of the OPCO would not be approved. The PRC Legal
Advisers have confirmed that all possible actions or
steps taken to enable it to reach its legal conclusions
had been taken.

As advised by the PRC Legal Advisers, the Group
has reasonably assessed the requirements under
all applicable rules, committed financial and other
resources and implemented all the PRC Legal Advisers’
recommendations prior to establishing the Contractual
Arrangement.

In view of the above, the VIE Agreements were entered
into among the WFOE, the OPCO and the PRC Equity
Owner. Through the VIE Agreements, the WFOE will
have effective control over the finance and operation of
the OPCO and will enjoy the entire economic interests
and benefits generated by the OPCO despite the lack of
registered equity ownership.
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The Company has discussed with its auditors and
confirms that the financial results of the OPCO has
been and will be consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of the Group under the prevailing
accounting principles. On the basis of the aforesaid
confirmation and pursuant to Rule 1.01 of the Listing
Rules, the Company further confirms that the OPCO is
an indirect subsidiary of the Company as 100% of its
equity interest is attributable to the Company through
the WFOE.

Commercial Benefits of the Transactions

The Group aims to become the world’s leading supplier
of Fintech products and services and a leader in the
financial payment products. Accordingly, the Group
has been actively looking for opportunities to tap into
the Subject Business, including the Restricted Business.
As outlined above, due to the foreign ownership
restriction, the Group would not be able to engage
in the Restricted Business other than adopting the
Contractual Arrangement (namely, entering into the
VIE Agreements). After in-depth discussion of the
management of the Company, it was decided that the
PRC Equity Owner, who is a deemed connected person
of the Company and a current employee of the Group
and as such whose interest would be more aligned
with that of the Group and the potential conflict of
interest would be mitigated, is a suitable person to
establish the OPCO with the principal business of
offering information service platform for online data
processing and transactions processing services as well
as information service businesses which will then enter
into the Contractual Arrangement with the Group.
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Apart from the regulatory benefits, adopting the
Contractual Arrangement will bring the following
commercial benefits to the Group:

(i) It allows the Group to have effective control over
the finance and operation of the OPCO and to
enjoy the entire economic interests and benefits
granted by the OPCO. By introducing the Subject
Business, the OPCO will create a new business
driver to the Company and generate a long-term
return to the Shareholders.

(i) It enables the Group to obtain the VAT Licence
necessary for providing the value-added
telecommunication services in the PRC and
enhances the competitiveness and adaptability of
the Group in the market.

Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangement

The Group will bear economic risks which may
arise from financial difficulties in the operation of
the OPCO

As the primary beneficiary of the OPCO, the Group
will bear economic risks which may arise from financial
difficulties in the operation of business of the OPCO.
In such events, the WFOE will have to provide financial
support to the OPCO. Accordingly, the Group’s financial
results and financial position may be adversely affected
by the worsening financial performance of the OPCO
and the need to provide financial support to the OPCO.
As discussed above, none of the VIE Agreements
provides that the WFOE is obliged to share the losses
of the OPCO or provide financial support to the
OPCO. However, since the Group conducts the Subject
Business through the OPCO and the financial results
of the OPCO would be consolidated into the financial
statements of the Group, any losses suffered by the
OPCO would be reflected in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and the Group’s consolidated
financial position such as the consolidated earnings and
profits would be adversely affected.

EEERE @)

Iz 5N BB A K HE

BrECEF
QRGN S SV NE ik

T FE AN 5 B BE 40 8 AR
OPCOR) BF 5 A1 38 & - A
ZHOPCOFE R My & 2P 4
EAEZREE - BBSA
ZHES  OPCOB A K
ARAE—EFEER
BH WAKREA AR
O3 o

—
=

iy EEAEEEHESESD
EiREIREESERENS
HVATEF A& TR & A
EEEMHE ENEF OM

B2 %35 B AR R

AEMBTREEEAZ EHOPCOXTH
KERNBEMEENLSERR

EBOPCOMEB R R A » A&
B 5% = 0] B HOPCO¥E 5 &
ERNEMEEANEERR - £
EREEBENRT  WFOEB EE M
OPCORME T &% - At -
ESEN WIS EE RS R
EHOPCOMMBRIEEERE
T EOPCOME I B L IE M =2
BIAAMEE - B0 515
VIET) 3% I % R EWFOER & 1§
7 ¥EOPCORY 18 2k 5k AOPCO1R
HEBBZE - AM BREE
B #BOPCOMRIZEMET « M
OPCOMBI B HEEBE W AREE
RISk K - OPCORFRIEM
EERBERBERAEENLGEES W
BREAN AEBNKETH
O (AER A WA Kom F)) #§5%

B TR E -

CHEARZRERAT —S-=FF5K 123

Corporate

2023 Financial

Major Events

Chairman’s
Statement

Iscussion

Managemen

Directors and Senior

Directors
BERERE

Report of

Report

EEREE

Corporate Governance

Financial




REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @)

There is no assurance that the VIE Agreements
could comply with future changes in the regulatory
requirements in the PRC and the PRC Government
may determine that the VIE Agreements do not

comply with applicable regulations

Despite there is currently no indication that the VIE
Agreements will be interfered or objected by any PRC
regulatory authorities, the PRC Legal Advisers have
advised that there is a possibility that the relevant PRC
regulatory authorities may have different opinions on
the interpretation of the relevant regulations and would
not agree that the VIE Agreements comply with the
PRC laws, and the authorities may deny the validity,
effectiveness and enforceability of the VIE Agreements.

Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to
the interpretation and implementation of the
Foreign Investment Law and how it may impact
the viability of the current corporate structure,
corporate governance and business operations

The Foreign Investment Law stipulates certain forms of
foreign investment. However, the Foreign Investment
Law does not explicitly stipulate the contractual

arrangements as a form of foreign investment.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

As discussed above and advised by the PRC Legal
Advisers, since contractual arrangements are not
specified as investments under the Foreign Investment
Law, and if future laws, administrative regulations and
provisions of the State Council do not incorporate
contractual arrangements as a form of foreign
investment, the Contractual Arrangement as a whole
and each of the VIE Agreements will not be affected.
Notwithstanding the above, the Foreign Investment Law
stipulates that foreign investment includes “foreign
investors invest through any other methods under laws,
administrative regulations or provisions prescribed by
the State Council”. Therefore, there are possibilities
that future laws, administrative regulations or provisions
prescribed by the State Council may regard contractual
arrangements as a form of foreign investment, and
in such events it would be uncertain whether the
Contractual Arrangement will be recognised as foreign
investment, and whether the Contractual Arrangement
will be deemed to be in violation of the foreign
investment access requirements. Therefore, there is
no guarantee that the Contractual Arrangement and
the business of the OPCO will not be materially and
adversely affected in the future.

The Contractual Arrangement may not be as
effective as direct ownership in providing control
over the OPCO

The Group relies on the Contractual Arrangement to
operate the business of the OPCO. The Contractual
Arrangement may not be as effective in providing the
WEFOE with control over the OPCO as direct ownership.
If the WFOE has direct ownership of the OPCO, it
will be able to exercise its rights as a shareholder to
effect changes in the board of directors of the OPCO,
which in turn could effect changes, subject to any
applicable fiduciary obligations, at the management
level. However, under the VIE Agreements, the Group
relies on the performance by the PRC Equity Owner of
his obligations under the VIE Agreements to exercise
control over the OPCO. Therefore, the VIE Agreements
with the PRC Equity Owner may not be as effective in
ensuring the WFOE’s control over the OPCO as direct
ownership would be.

EEERE @)

b SCETat o SR AR EA R
MRS - AROMNEIREE)
REBREGHNHEARE W
RARKERZ  TBUERAE
BB EREBALNHEE
BAIEEREN—EREX  BIE
& 4% M E—EVIER = &
TR FE - BEWL - O
BIEER)BRTE IERER
FIINRIEEEREERE T
EIR BT AR E M E M R
EITHIRE] - Bt - ARAE
BCTBUERKBEBRMETE
EAEBAEOHRERBINEEK
EM—REER  EEEBRT
TEEAAMERABEERT
BIINEEKE REHOHBERS
BHEAERIBKZEEANE
Ko A TRE A L R M
OPCOXEBEARRNTEZEERNR
TF 2 -

BRHBRERHAHOPCOZFIE
FHNYATREAREEER
L

AEBEKEREANBRELSE
OPCOMIETS - BAG O E
AWFOELE f#t ¥1OPCOE #ll # 75
FE BRI N B EAE -
MWFOEE BOPCOM HEH A
EERBUTES BREMNRE
FILAZOPCOMESS » #1M
REMERZEEFERTIE
HEREE - R BIBEVIER
EOAKEKERERERS
ABITERVIERZETHEE
ML HIOPCO - [ It - B2 A B f%
WEWEF N ET M BVIER) & 7E AR
WFOE$fOPCOE #I # 75 ™ A 3%
FRAAE T EEHaE -

EHEABERERAT —S-=F8% [25

Financial

2023

oY
9]
>
i

Chairman’s
Statement

Iscussion

Managemen

S
T
n
°
»
2
9]
]
a

Directors
BERERE

Report of

Corporate Governance
Repor
B /r

Financial




REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @)

126

The PRC Equity Owner may potentially have a
conflict of interest with the Group

The Group’s control over the OPCO is based on the
Contractual Arrangement. Therefore, conflict of
interests of the PRC Equity Owner will adversely affect
the interests of the Company. Conflict of interests may
occur when the interest of the PRC Equity Owner no
longer align with that of the Group. In such events,
the PRC Equity Owner may breach or cause the OPCO
to breach the VIE Agreements. If the Group fails to
resolve this internally, it may have to resort to dispute
resolution, other legal means, or ultimately removing
and replacing the PRC Equity Owner, which might affect
the WFOE's business, prospects or results of operation
and the investors’ confidence in the Contractual
Arrangement.

Certain terms of the VIE Agreements may not be
enforceable under the PRC laws

The VIE Agreements provide that the arbitration tribunal
of the PRC may award remedies over the equity interest
or assets of the OPCO (e.g. in relation to its conduct
of business, transfer of assets and equity interest) or
winding up of the OPCO. The VIE Agreements also
provide that any party thereto may seek temporary
injunctive relief from the courts in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the location where the principal assets of the
Company or the OPCO are located.

However, the PRC Legal Advisers have taken the view
that pursuant to the PRC laws, the arbitration tribunal
may have no power to grant the aforementioned
remedies or injunctive relief or to order the winding
up of the OPCO. In addition, even though the VIE
Agreements provide that overseas courts (e.g. courts
in Hong Kong) shall have the power to grant certain
relief or remedies, such relief or remedies may not be
recognised or enforced under the PRC laws. As a result,
in the event that the OPCO or any of the PRC Equity
Owner breaches the terms of the VIE Agreements, the
Company may not be able to obtain sufficient remedies
in a timely manner, and its ability to exert effective
control over the OPCO may be materially and adversely
affected.
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Limitations in acquiring ownership in the equity
interest of the OPCO

In case the WFOE exercises its option to acquire all
or part of the equity interest of the OPCO under the
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, such acquisition
may only be conducted to the extent permissible
under the PRC laws and will be subject to necessary
approvals and relevant procedures under the PRC
laws. In addition, the aforementioned acquisitions may
be subject to a minimum price limitation (such as an
appraised value for the entire equity interest in the
OPCO) or other limitations as imposed by the applicable
PRC laws. Further, a substantial amount of taxes, other
necessary costs (if any), expenses and time may be
involved in acquiring and transferring the ownership of
the OPCO, which may have a material adverse impact
on the WFOE and/or the OPCO’s businesses, prospects
and results of operation.

The Company does not have any insurance which
covers the risks relating to the VIE Agreements and
the transactions contemplated thereunder

The insurance of the Group does not cover the risks
relating to the VIE Agreements and the transactions
contemplated thereunder. If any risk arises from the VIE
Agreements in the future, such as those affecting the
enforceability of the VIE Agreements and the operation
of VIE Agreements, the results of the Group may be
adversely affected. To this end, the Group will monitor
the relevant legal and operational environment from
time to time to comply with the applicable laws and
regulations. The Company will continue evaluating
the feasibility, the cost and the benefit of insuring the
transactions contemplated under the VIE Agreements.
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The VIE Agreements may not be subject to scrutiny
of the PRC tax authorities and additional tax may

be imposed

The Group could face adverse tax consequences if the
PRC tax authorities determine that the arrangements
under the VIE Agreements were not entered into
based on arm’s length negotiations, and as such the
tax authorities may adjust income and expenses of
the WFOE and/or the OPCO for the PRC tax purposes,
which could result in higher tax liabilities on the WFOE
and/or the OPCO. The operating and financial results of
the WFOE may be adversely affected if the tax liabilities
of the OPCO or those of the WFOE increase significantly
or if they are required to pay interest on late payments

and other penalties.

7. Internal control measures implemented by the

Group

With a view to enhancing effective control over and
safeguarding the assets of the OPCO, the Exclusive
Purchase Right Agreement provides that the PRC Equity
Owner shall not sell, transfer, pledge or otherwise
dispose of any of his interests in the OPCO or create
any encumbrances on them without the prior written
consent of the WFOE. Under the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement, the WFOE has the right to request
for the OPCO’s financial information to ascertain its
consolidated profit before tax from time to time.

In addition, the Company has also put in place the

following internal control measures:

(i)  the seals, chops, incorporation documents of the
OPCO are kept at the office of the WFOE to the

extent permissible under the PRC laws;

(i)  the WFOE is involved in making corporate
management and strategic planning of the OPCO;
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(iii) the WFOE shall nominate directors, supervisors,
general manager and other senior management
staffs of the OPCO; and

(iv) the WFOE is involved in assessing financial matters
of the OPCO.

Material change

There has not been any material change in the
Contractual Arrangement and/or the circumstances
under which they were adopted during the year ended
31 December 2023.

Termination of Contractual Arrangement

The Company will unwind the Contractual Arrangement
as soon as the PRC laws allow the Restricted Business
to be operated without the Contractual Arrangement,
and the Company or its nominee may acquire the
equity interest in the OPCO held by the PRC Equity
Owner and/or the assets of the OPCO are allocated to
the Subject Business to the extent permissible under
the PRC laws. In the event the WFOE exercises the
right under the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement to
acquire the equity interest in the OPCO held by the PRC
Equity Owner and/or the assets of the OPCO to unwind
the Contractual Arrangement, each of the PRC Equity
Owner and the OPCO has undertaken to return to the
WEFOE any consideration he/it shall receive.

However, as at 31 December 2023, there has not been
any termination of the Contractual Arrangement.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS

(i)

130

Employees

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group
and the Group regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue
to be an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Group strives to motivate its employees with a
clear career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. The Group provides
pre-employment and on-the-job training and development
opportunities to its employees. The training programs cover
areas such as managerial skills, R&D capacity, innovative
technologies, sales and production, customer services, quality
control, workplace ethics, information security, compliance
and legal and training of other areas relevant to the industry.
In addition, the Group seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from its employees for enhancing workplace
productivity and harmony.

Generally, a salary review is conducted annually. Aside from
basic remuneration, the Group provides employee with
mandatory social security funds, pensions, work-related injury
insurance, maternity insurance, medical and unemployment
insurance, and full coverage of housing provident fund
contributions in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations of the Chinese mainland. For employees outside
the Chinese mainland, the Group also makes contributions
towards relevant insurance schemes, pension schemes
and provident fund required by applicable local laws and
regulations.
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(ii)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Meanwhile, the Group adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme (which has expired on 3 December 2019), Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme to recognize and
motivate the contribution of the employees and attract
suitable personnel for the long-term growth and further
strategic expansion of the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2023, no shares or share options have been
granted or agreed to be granted to any selected participants
or eligible employees (2022: Nil) under the Share Award
Scheme and the Share Option Scheme, respectively.

Suppliers

The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a
number of its suppliers and takes great care to ensure that
they share the Group’s commitment to quality and ethics.
The Group carefully selects its suppliers and requires them
to satisfy certain assessment criteria including track record,
experience, financial strength, reputation, products qualities
and quality control effectiveness. The Group also requires its
suppliers to comply with the Group’s anti-bribery policy and
enter into a supplier integrity undertaking.

(iii) Clients

The Group is committed to maintain and develop its
diversified clients’ portfolio consisting of public sectors
including social security, transportation, healthcare, etc.,
world-leading financial institutions and multinational
companies. The Group maximizes client value by offering
professional and effective operation model and innovative
and differentiated products and services, to intensify the
interaction and viscosity between clients and the Group and
enhances the client experience.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

(ii)

(iii)
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The Group is listed on the Stock Exchange and various subsidiaries
are located in the Chinese mainland and Hong Kong. The Group’s
operations accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and
regulations in the Chinese mainland and Hong Kong. During the
year 2023, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations in the Chinese mainland, Hong Kong and other regions
where the Group’s subsidiaries locate.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year 2023 are set out on pages 194 and 195
of this Annual Report and in Note 39 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 280 of this Annual Report respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

In February 2017, the Group acquired the 50-year land use right of
a land parcel with new industry related use with RMB26,669,442
in Zhuhai. The total area is approximately 20,999.56 square meters
situated in the No. 88, Zhiyun Road, Xiangzhou District, Zhuhai,
Guangdong Province, China, where the operation of the Group is
located, for the future development of the Group.

In October 2018, with the support of Zhuhai municipal
government, the Group started the construction of “Zhuhai Fintech
Center” on this land parcel, with a total construction area of
approximately 56,000 square meters, which has been constructed
in 2022 and put into use in the 4th quarter of 2022 as the Group's
R&D center office and as R&D offices for attracting Fintech
enterprises, and no more than 15% of the area of the center will
be used as commercial rental. The Group’s total investment for the
center amounted to approximately RMB320.0 million. The Group
will leveraging its own industry resources accumulated over the
years in the field of Fintech to bring together global professionals
in the loT, intelligent security payment, data encryption, integrated
circuits and other industries, and will jointly make forward-looking
technological exploration and technological innovation in areas
such as block chain, A.l,, big data, biometrics and other areas.

In 2016, the Group acquired the property located in 13th Floor,
Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre No. 56 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for HKD178 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB159.0 million) with a total area of 7857 feet.
More than half of this property is used as the headquarters office
of the Group, and the remainder is currently leased for office use
by an independent third-party enterprise for 3 years from 1 March
2022.

132  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year 2023 are set out in Note 15 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 246 and 247 of this
Annual Report.

BANK LOANS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no bank loans (2022:
approximately RMB44.8 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year 2023 are set out in Note 31 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on page 269 of this Annual Report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for the distribution to the
shareholders as at 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
RMB8.0 million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB74.1
million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FINANCIAL KEY
PERFORMANCE

The business review of the Group for the year 2023 is set out in
the Management Discussion and Analysis of this Annual Report,
which forms part of this Directors’ Report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance during the year 2023 using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the section headed “Financial
Highlights” on page 5 of this Annual Report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF THE PAST FIVE
YEARS

The results, assets and liabilities of the past five years of the Group
are set out in the Financial Summary on page 312 of this Annual
Report.
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INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(a) Share Option Scheme

134

The share option scheme was conditionally adopted pursuant
to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 15 November 2013 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of recognising and
acknowledging the contributions of any full-time or part-time
employees, executives or officers, any Directors, any advisors,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents of the Group,
or such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the Board,
will contribute or have contributed to the Group, and the
principle terms are as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted shall not exceed 10% of the
total number of shares in issue at the date of listing of
the shares of the Company on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange;

the maximum entitlement of each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of offer to grant
shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of offer to grant;

options granted should be taken up on payment of
HKD1.0 by the grantee on or before the relevant
acceptance date. The exercise price is determined by the
Directors of the Company at their discretion and will not
be lower than the highest of: (a) the closing price of the
ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange at the offer date,
which must be a trading day; (b) the average closing
price of the ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; and (c) the nominal value of the Company’s share.
The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
except that no option may be exercised more than ten
years after it has been granted; and

there is no definite vesting period under the Share
Option Scheme and the vesting period may be decided
by the Board from time to time. There is no minimum
period for which an option granted must be held before
it can be exercised except otherwise imposed by the
Board.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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(b)

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023, no options were granted
or agreed to be granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
and no options were exercised, cancelled and lapsed. As at 1
January 2023 and 31 December 2023, there was no outstanding
option not exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

Assuming all options under the Share Option Scheme have been
granted, the total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme shall be 80,000,000 ordinary shares
of the Company, representing approximately 9.76% of the total
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of this
Annual Report. As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023,
the total number of shares of the Company available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme were both 80,000,000 shares.

Subject to early termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective to 4 December 2023 from the adoption date. As at 31
December 2023, the Share Option Scheme expired.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from 11
December 2015. As at 31 December 2023, the remaining
life of the Share Award Scheme is approximately 7 years.
The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are to (i)
align the interests of any employee, adviser, consultant,
agent, contractor, client or supplier of any member of the
Group whom the Directors in their sole discretion consider
may contribute or have contributed to the Group (the
“Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate the contribution
of the Participants and to provide incentives in retaining the
Participants for future operation and development of the
Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel for the long-term
growth and further strategic expansion of the Group, and the
principal terms are as follows:

(b)
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136

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the Company has engaged BOCI-Prudential Trustee
Limited (the “Trustee”) to administer and hold
the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market at the prevailing market price with funds
provided by the Company by way of contribution;

the maximum number of restricted shares in respect of
which awards may be granted shall not exceed 10%
of the total number of issued shares of the Company
at the Adoption Date (restricted shares awarded but
cancelled, lapsed and/or not yet vested are all excluded);

unless specifically approved by the shareholders of the
Company, the aggregate number of new shares to be
granted as restricted shares in each financial year shall
not exceed 3% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at the Adoption Date;

the maximum number of restricted shares which may be
awarded to each Participant under the scheme shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company as at the Adoption Date; and

there is no restrictions on vesting period, the purchase
price or the amount payable on application or
acceptance of the restricted shares awarded except
otherwise imposed by the Board.

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares under
the Share Award Scheme to the Participants. The shares
awarded shall be vested in three years on each anniversary
of the first vesting date, which is 26 November 2017,
in equal portions. The estimated fair value of the shares
award granted at the grant date were approximately
HKD27,564,000 (equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the
market price of the relevant shares at the grant date.
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As at 31 December 2020, all these shares were either vested
or lapsed.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Trustee did
not acquire any ordinary shares of the Company (2022: Nil),
no shares have been granted or agreed to be granted to
any selected participants during 2023 (2022: Nil), and the
Group did not recognise any expense for the year ended
31 December 2023 in relation to the share awards (for year
ended 31 December 2022: Nil).

As at 31 December 2023, 8,146,000 shares of the Company
under the Share Award Scheme were held by the Trustee (As
at 31 December 2022: 8,146,000 shares).

Under the Share Award Scheme, the maximum number
of new shares available for issue shall be 24,990,900
shares of the Company in each financial year, representing
approximately 3.0% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this Annual Report.

As at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, the total
number of shares of the Company available for grant under
the Share Award Scheme were both 72,929,000 shares.

In any event, any grant of the share awards under the Share
Award Scheme shall comply with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules taking effect from 1 January 2023.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year 2023 and up to the
date of this Annual Report were:

Executive Directors

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Ms.

LU Run Ting (Chairman)
HOU Ping

LU Runyi

WU Sigiang

LU Wai Lim

LI Yijin
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin
Ms. YE Lu
Mr. LAl Tung Kwok

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Details of the Directors’ profiles are set out in the “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 28 to 39 of this Annual Report.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries
of the Company during the year 2023 and up to the date of this
Annual Report are as follows:

Goldpac Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting
Mr. HOU Ping
Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqin)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Mr. LU Wai Lim

Mr. WU Sigiang

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

Goldpac Investment Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

Goldpac Innovation Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

SecureTech Holdings Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. LU Wai Lim
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Goldpac Fintech Private Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. YAP Mung Hong

Ms. HUANG Minjie

Mr. LU Wai Lim

Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. HUI Oliver Siu-Pang

Mr. LU Wai Lim

Goldpac Fintech Philippines Limited Inc.

Mr. NG Chun Hung (resigned on 21 June 2023)
Mr. Marcos Joao Fernandes

Mr. XU Muping (resigned on 21 June 2023)

Mr. Marvin Pico

Ms. Jennifer Del Villar (resigned on 21 June 2023)

Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company
Mr. LU Run Ting

Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Runyi

UMV International Holding Limited
Mr. LU Run Ting

UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai)
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Wai Lim

Mr. WU Yixiang

Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai) Co.
Mr. HOU Ping

Mr. LU Wai Lim

Mr. WU Yixiang

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years, which
shall be terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company.
Each of independent non-executive Directors has signed an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.
The appointment of each Director is subject to the provisions of
appointment and retirement of directors under the Articles of
Association of the Company.
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In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. LU Wai Lim and Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alum
shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. HOU
Ping and Mr. LU Wai Lim, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-elections at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. MAK
Wing Sum Alvin has informed the Company that he will not offer
himself for re-election at the annual general meeting due to his
intention to devote more time to his family and personal affairs,
and accordingly will retire as independent non-executive Director
upon the conclusion of the annual general meeting.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM
THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE
Lu and Mr. LAl Tung Kwok, the confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has duly reviewed the confirmation of independence
of each of these Directors. The Company considers that the
independent non-executive Directors had been independent from
the date of their appointment to 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (all within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (“SFO")), which were required (a) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix C3
of the Listing Rules (“Model Code”), were as follows:

140  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

REALBDERMAA - RFEE - EHE
A A BB KT EHERNK F A RER
BEAGELRIEERH - EKFEERE
BEEEMEEREBRENEK B MK
RBERG LBEEEE - BXKRELDS
MARBAEBBRMEZNEEEFR
ARBLIZEAEE - R EREE RS
ég%&fﬂ%ﬁ#%ﬂﬁ%%ﬂ%% B EE
L o

BERENSEFANRREFAE LEE
BRI A AR —F AR A H B
RERRIEMEAE L E OXE/ERIN)
MR BIEIR TS A 4

BYFHNITESNELMERE

A
Fo

RIEWR B IFRTES /]
R ERLTMBRERLE R
AR B &3, 13«@%&%:@%&5@&
RE - AR TE%«}E TT: iz
%%é’*ﬁjﬂ’%jli{ﬁ&u Zli FAY=IN
QTWWi?EﬁLﬁ%%KEEEﬁZEl:.:2023
F12ANEHAEEBE LT -

Xk S5 5t B

ﬁ%l—r% ™
=g e |

EENESTHAEREL
AREMEEERG - 46
BORES > BEREA

MR2023F12A31H  EENESTHAE
AR R B s E A4 wil(t%ﬁi?/%/i
B £5715 & %&Hﬂfﬂﬂl(r‘%#&ﬁa
ﬁﬁu);ﬁxwﬁ)mfﬂﬂx CHEERD R
BEEZEZRAR  BRQBEESH L
‘WM@J%XV*B%NSZ%S”* JBERMAR R
LEBEEZXSGH (BEREZESLBAEEDM
&%MXW SEBEBNERERAE)

DIRIEE H R B E 5P 5E3521% » 7B I%
qﬂﬁﬁua)\i‘iuaﬂﬁ ()R 1B _E TR B
ﬁzcﬁﬁﬁﬁ%tﬁé’éﬁ/\%%_‘ﬁ%ﬁ%
SHZES R ([ZEESFR ) BEMAL
EIDSE:E- 38 I (N

D)>< E)Iﬂi



Interests in Shares

REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @

Approximate
percentage of
interest in the

Company (%)®

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interests Number of securities held”  fi{5 &2 A #
EEgs ERnME FREsgE” BMABEIH(%)®
Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman) Founder of a discretionary trust 299,759,422 shares (L) 36.57%
who can influence how the trustee
exercise his discretion®”
EEELE(FE) FEXREAMATEARBRES 299,759,422 (L)
B R IA
Beneficial owner?® 1,740,000 shares (L) 0.21%
Zm AP0 1,740,0000%(L)
Mr. HOU Ping Beneficial owner® 12,000,000 shares (L) 1.46%
% x4 HaHAY 12,000,000 (L)
Mr. LU Runyi Beneficial owner® 48,321,000 shares (L) 5.90%
EEEEE HaEAY 48,321,000 (L)
Mr. WU Sigiang Beneficial owner® 725,004 shares (L) 0.09%
REBAL HaEAY 725,0040%(L)
Mr. LU Wai Lim Beneficial owner® 16,000 shares (L) 0.002%
EBREE HaHAC 16,0008 (L)
Ms. LI Yijin Beneficial owner” 2,044,000 shares (L) 0.25%
FHgLt FHA” 2,044,000 (L)
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Notes:

142

The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the
Company.

Mr. LU Run Ting's interests were consisted of: (i) 299,759,422 shares held by
GIHL. On 8 November 2022, through allotment of shares and conversion of
shares, the 100% control in GIHL was changed from Chairman LU to Golden
Wellness Investment Limited, a company 100% controlled by GLIL * which was
in turn 100% held by Cititrust Private Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of
a family trust set up by Chairman LU. This family trust is a discretionary trust.
As the founder of this discretionary trust, Chairman LU can influence how the
trustee exercises his discretion. Accordingly, Chairman LU was still deemed to
be interested in GIHL's interest in the Company by virtue of the SFO; and (ii)
1,740,000 shares held directly by Mr. LU Run Ting as beneficial owner.

Mr. HOU Ping’s interests were consisted of: (i) 300,000 shares issued by
options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (this scheme had
expired on 3 December 2019) and exercised on 25 August 2015; and (ii)
1,200,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share Award Scheme;
(iii) 10,500,000 shares transferred from GIHL on 10 June 2020.

Mr. LU Runyi's interests were consisted of: (i) 2,120,000 shares and 45,000,000
shares respectively transferred from GIHL on 20 March 2015 and 10 June
2020; (i) 400,000 shares issued by options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme (this scheme had expired on 3 December 2019) and exercised
on 25 August 2015; and (iii) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under
the Share Award Scheme.

Mr. WU Sigiang'’s interests were consisted of: (i) 130,000 shares as beneficial
owner; and (i) 801,000 shares awarded on 26 May 2017 under the Share
Award Scheme, and because of the expenses caused by this scheme, 205,996
shares were deducted on 26 November 2019 which was the final vesting date.

Mr. LU Wai Lim holds 16,000 shares as beneficial owner. From 18 March 2024,
Mr. LU no longer has any discloseable interest in the family trust established by
Chairman LU.

Mr. LI Yijin held 2,044,000 shares as beneficial owner.

As at 31 December 2023, the number of issued shares of the Company was
819,577,000 shares.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023 none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), which were required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which he/she was taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), (b) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or (c) pursuant to the Model
Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which
the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with any
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2023 or as at 31
December 2023.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this report, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2023 or as at 31 December 2023 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance had been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders
of the Company or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2023. There was no contract of significance for the
provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries
by the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of their
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

Pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules, for the year ended 31
December 2023, no Director had interests in any business apart
from the Company’s business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors and Senior Management in respect of certain liabilities
arising out of corporate activities. As required by Section 470(1)
and (2) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), it is
confirmed that the permitted indemnity provision mentioned above
is/was in force for the benefit of the Directors/then Directors of
Company, and the directors/then directors of any of its subsidiaries
when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance;
and has been in force throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2023, respectively. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles
of Association, subject to the provisions of the Companies
Ordinance, every Director or other officer or auditor may be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against any liability,
loss or expenditure incurred by him in defending any proceedings,
whether civil or criminal, which relate to anything done or omitted
to be done or alleged to have been done or omitted to be done
by him as an officer or auditor of the Company and in which
judgment is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted, or
incurred in connection with any application in which relief is
granted to him by the court from liability in respect of any such act
or omission.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Incentive Schemes” above.

Save as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreement that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares or that require the
Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in
the Company issuing Shares, was entered into by the Company
during the year 2023 or subsisted at the end of the year 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year 2023.

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements on pages 236 to 241 of this Annual Report.
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NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the
Company of his/its compliance with the non-compete undertakings
provided to the Company under the Deed of Non-Competition
(as defined in the Prospectus). The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition have
been complied with by the controlling shareholders.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
Remuneration Committee to the Board and are decided by the
Board, having regard to the Group's operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted one share option scheme and one share
award scheme to motivate and reward its Directors and eligible
employees. Details of these schemes are set out in the paragraph
headed “Incentive Schemes” above and Note 32 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements on the pages 270 to 271 of this Annual Report.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year 2023.

PENSION SCHEMES

The qualifying employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the
Chinese mainland are members of the basic old-age insurance
pension schemes operated by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of the PRC (MOHRSS) and relevant authorities.
The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll to the pension schemes to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the Group with respect to the pension
schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes.
The Group participates in Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
schemes for its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Under
the rules of MPF schemes, the employer and its employees are
required to contribute 5% of the employee’s salaries, up to a
maximum of HKD1,500 per employee per month. For qualifying
employees in other countries, the local subsidiaries also pays
a certain percentage of their payroll to the legally required
pension contributions in accordance with local laws. The pension
contributions paid above are defined contribution plans, the
Group does not have the right to confiscate the contributions and
therefore has no use of the contributions.

Save for the above contributions, the Group does not have any
other major payment obligation in respect of pension benefits.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES OR
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, so far as was known to the Directors,
the following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) and entities had interests or short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Name

# &

Capacity/Nature of Interests

BEME

Number of securities held™

FTERRR QARG M EEH
Rz EBER AR

MR2023F12A318 - MEBEBFESHAM - AT
AT (RAREEXESTHRABERIIN K
B REBE(EFLIPEEN) EXVIIE2
NEIDHAETURBESRE(EERTE
1&51) 33615 Bt N AR AIBEFHER
MR- RARRBRMHRBBEROTEEDN

CEET T

Approximate
shareholding
percentage®

FiERsua” BOBRES LY

Interest of Controlled Corporation®
T E R

Cititrust Private Trust
(Cayman) Limited
Spouse®

[

Ms. ZHANG Jian
wiEZ T

Interest of Controlled Corporation
R E R

Agende des participations de
I'Etat (“APE")

Notes:
(1) The letter “L" denotes a person’s long position in the shares of the Company.

(2) 299,759,422 shares were held by GIHL. On 8 November 2022, through
allotment of shares and conversion of shares, the 100% control in GIHL was
changed from Chairman LU to Golden Wellness Investment Limited, a company
100% controlled by GLIL, which was in turn 100% held by Cititrust Private
Trust (Cayman) Limited as the trustee of a family trust set up by Chairman LU.
This family trust is a discretionary trust. As the founder of this discretionary
trust, Chairman LU can influence how the trustee exercises his discretion.
Accordingly, Chairman LU was still deemed to be interested in GIHL's interest
in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(3) Ms. ZHANG lJian, the spouse of Chairman LU, was deemed to be interested in
Chairman LU's interests in the Company by virtue of the SFO.

(4) The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company held by
Gemplus International S.A. (“GISA"), which is wholly-owned by Gemalto
N.V. (“Gemalto”). Based on the disclosure of interests forms filed by Thales,
Gemalto is owned by Thales as to 85.51% and Thales is owned by APE as to
35.68%. Therefore, APE was deemed to be interested in GISA’s interest in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.

(5) As at 31 December 2023, the number of issued shares of the Company was
819,577,000 shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, so far as the
Directors were aware, no other persons (other than the Directors
or chief executives of the Company) or entities had any interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company,
which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company purchased
1,642,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate price of approximately HKD2,367,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB2,158,000) in order to simplify the company’s
capital structure. The shares were acquired at an average price
of HKD1.44 per share, with prices ranging from HKD1.40 to
HKD1.46. All the shares purchased have not been cancelled.

The details of the purchase of shares are as follows:

BEEERE @)

B XX E A E2023F12A318 0 BE
EeHA EEMAL (ARFEZTSR
BITHRABRIN REE  BEGEHF KB
EIEF) BXVIBE2RFE3D AT AEE
HIREC(EF R E KO E336MK A 8
RARBEENZEZMBA - RAR GG
NIRRT EBESIAR °

BE LEIBEELHES

NEE2023F12A31B L2 EE - ATH
{EERGEE KAAREEEHAEL ST
LAA 54978 82,367,000 (3T & A R4
2,158,0007T) i & 7K A A)1,642,000% i
f% - RS EHREBE1 40T HEE1.46
TZE - FHERZSHEREBE1.447T -
Fra R B R IFH -

Pefn MEFHIBHT

Aggregate

consideration

Highest price  Lowest price paid

Number of per share per share (HKD)

shares (HKD) (HKD) CEil

Month purchased BREBESENR SRREER EXfHE
B & RGBS () (B (M)
November 2023 2023F11H 357,000 1.44 1.42 512,053.45
December 2023 2023%12H 1,285,000 1.46 1.40 1,855,037.67
Total &5t 1,642,000 2,367,091.12
Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its B Fii#EIN AT RERB QTR E

subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Directors were of the view that the purchases and subsequent
cancellation of the shares can result in an enhancement of the net
asset value per share and earnings per share and were therefore
beneficial to the company and the shareholders as a whole.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Aggregate sales to the Group’s largest and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 11.4% (2022: 9.0%) and
approximately 34.4% (2022: approximately 30.3%), respectively,
of the Group’s total revenue from continuing operations.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 20.4% (2022: approximately
20.9%) and approximately 57.5% (2022: approximately 53.8%),
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases from suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates or shareholders of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the shares of the Company in issue) had interests in any of
such suppliers and customers of the Group.

148  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

TEEFREER

AEBGEREFPERIARAEFPNEERE
DRKMEREE R B R/ELEEZBHHUEA
BEEX)11.4% (2022 © 499.0% ) N #134.4%
(2022 : #930.3%) °

AEEZAEER LA AANHERNRE
BEHIRNHEEAEENHEDNRRE
BH#4920.4% (2022 : #J20.9% ) K #157.5%
(2022 : #)53.8%) °

ARAREEFHHETHE ALRNRBNK
RBARAEEMA  BEARRFS%MA
EEETRDG)  HMERNEAAKEZ I
BHERREFPTEHA TR -



REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Contractual Arrangement

According to the section headed “Information on the Contractual
Arrangement” disclosed above, certain transactions contemplated
under the VIE Agreements constitute connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the transactions contemplated under the Exclusive Purchase
Right Agreement, as the Group has discretion to exercise the right
to purchase all or part of the PRC Equity Owner's equity interest
in the OPCO under the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement,
the acquisition of the right is classified based on the amount of
premium payable by the Group in accordance to Rule 14A.79(2)
of the Listing Rules. As no premium is payable by the Group under
the Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, all of the applicable
percentage ratios (other than profits ratio) with reference to the
Exclusive Purchase Option Agreement are less than 0.1%, the
connected transaction contemplated thereunder is fully exempt
under Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules.

For the transactions contemplated under the Loan Agreement,
as all the applicable percentage ratios (other than profits ratio)
exceed 0.1% but all are less than 5%, the connected transaction
contemplated thereunder is subject to the reporting requirement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Moreover, the transactions contemplated under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Service Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
BEEERE @)

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has
granted, a waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules
from (i) setting a fixed term for each of the VIE Agreements for
a period of not exceeding three years pursuant to Rule 14A.52
of the Listing Rules; and (ii) setting a maximum aggregate annual
cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules for the services
fees payable by the OPCO to the WFOE under the Exclusive
Technological Consultation and Services Agreement.

The independent non-executive Directors noted that the
transaction amount of the continuing connected transactions was
nil for the year ended 31 December 2023, and accordingly:

(i)  no services have been provided by the Group to the OPCO
under the Exclusive Technological Consultation and Service
Agreement during the year ended 31 December 2023 and no
profit was generated by the OPCO for the year;

(i) no dividends or other distributions were made by the OPCO
to its equity owner, which were not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group; and

(iii)  no new contract was entered into, renewed nor reproduced
between the Group and the OPCO during the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2023 in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised)
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued a letter to
the Directors confirming that they have reviewed the Contractual
Arrangement and confirmed that no transaction amount had
been incurred under the Exclusive Technological Consultation and
Service Agreement during the year ended 31 December 2023 and
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that there have been any transactions which (i) have not received
the approval of the Directors; (ii) have not been entered into in
accordance with the relevant VIE Agreements; or (iii) any dividends
or distributions which have been made by the OPCO to the
PRC Equity Owner which have not been otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Please also refer to the details set out in the section headed
“Information on the Contractual Arrangement” above and the
announcement of the Company dated 8 February 2021.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” in this report, none
of the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements fall under the definition of
“connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to annual
review, reporting, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirement sunder Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The Company has fully complied with the disclosure requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF THE PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that was publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had
maintained the prescribed minimum percentage of public float
permitted under the Listing Rules since the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange until the
date of this Annual Report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out in the “Corporate Governance Report” in this Annual Report.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No material events occurred subsequent to 31 December 2023 and
up to the date of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 19 June 2020. The Board appointed
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the new auditor of the Company with
effect from 19 June 2020 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting on 21 May
2024.

Save as disclosed above, there has been no other change in auditor
of the Company in the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

LU Run Ting
Chairman & Executive Director

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good
corporate governance standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are
essential in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard
the interests of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

The Company has adopted the code provisions (“Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the year under review,
the Company has complied with all the Code Provisions as set out
in the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions.

Specific enquiry was made with all the Directors and the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Company has also established written guidelines as stringent
as the Model Code for securities transactions of employees who are
likely to be in possession of unpublished price-sensitive information
of the Company (the "Employees Written Guidelines”). No
incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEEREKE (@)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises nine members, consisting of six
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
Below is the list of Directors:

Executive Directors:

Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman and Chairman of the Nomination
Committee and Member of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. HOU Ping (Chief Executive Officer and Member of the
Nomination Committee)

Mr. LU Runyi (Senior Vice President)

Mr. WU Sigiang (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. LU Wai Lim (Senior Vice President)

Ms. LI Yijin (Chief Audit Executive and Company Secretary)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of the Audit Committee and
Member of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee)

Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Member
of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee)

Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (Member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee)

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28
to 39 of this Annual Report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed
under “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 28 to 39 of
this Annual Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held
by Mr. LU Run Ting and Mr. HOU Ping respectively. The Chairman
provides leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer focuses
on the Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board at all times
had complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code Provision B.2.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every Director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Each of
the Directors is appointed for a term of three years and is subject
to retirement in accordance with the Company’'s Articles of
Association.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being,
or if their number is not three of a multiple of three, the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election.

The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that all
Directors appointed by the Directors, either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an additional director, shall retire at the next following
annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions
of the Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The
Board takes decisions objectively in the interests of the Company.
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All Directors have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its
efficient and effective functioning.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution
required from each Director to perform his/her responsibilities to
the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating
to corporate culture, policy matters, strategies and budgets,
internal control and risk management, environmental and social
responsibilities, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of Directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of
the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep themselves abreast of responsibilities as Directors
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company.

Every newly-appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on his or her first appointment to the
Board to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Company and full awareness of director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, each of Mr. LU Run
Ting (Chairman), Mr. HOU Ping, Mr. LU Runyi, Mr. WU Sigiang,
Mr. LU Wai Lim, Ms. LI Yijin, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE
Lu and Mr. LAI Tung Kwok has read books/journals and attended
relevant training to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

In addition, relevant reading materials including legal and
regulatory update have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying. Continuing briefing and professional
development for Directors will be arranged where necessary.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each board committee of the
Company are independent non-executive Directors and the list of
the Chairman and members of each board committee is set out
under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this Annual
Report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
reviewing the financial information and reporting process, internal
control procedures and risk management system, audit plan and
relationship with external auditors, and arrangements to enable
employees of the Company to raise, in confidence, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The Board has also delegated the corporate governance duties to
the Audit Committee for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s annual results and
Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings to review
the annual financial results and the annual report in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2022, the interim results and the
interim report in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2023
and significant issues on the financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
work and appointment of external auditors, connected transactions,
arrangements for employees to raise concerns about possible
improprieties, the Company’s corporate governance policies and
practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
compliance of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines,
and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report. The Audit Committee comprises
three members, namely, Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (Chairman of
Audit Committee), Ms. YE Lu and Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (all being
independent non-executive Directors).
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The Audit Committee also met with the external Auditor twice
without the presence of the executive Directors.

Remuneration of the Senior Management

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration of the
senior management (other than the Directors) is listed as below by
band:

ERZBENMENTEETESNERT -
BN A AT T MASH -

= A& E HE E /Y N

REE2023F12A31HIEZFE e
BE (BREEIN OFIIZETIRIDT

Number of person

Band of remuneration ¥ B 48 51 A
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 AR#500,0017TE AR #1,000,0007T 1
Further details of the remuneration of Directors, Chief Executive £FHZEZ BEDNTELEEENHFMES
and Employees are set out in Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial &R AREHRT F236E £241 B 44 B 5 R
Statements on the pages 236 to 241 of this Annual Report. =M e

Remuneration Committee

According to the amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules
relating to Share Scheme, the Company has updated the Terms of
Reference of the Remuneration Committee, and published it on
16 December 2022. The primary functions of the Remuneration
Committee include reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration adjustment principle of all employees
as a whole, the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, the remuneration policy and
structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates
will participate in deciding his own remuneration; approve the new
grant of share awards or options, and any changes to terms of the
granted share awards or options.

In determining the remuneration of the Directors and the senior
management, the Remuneration Committee would consider factors
such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
performance and contributions of the Directors and the senior
management and the change in market conditions.
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review
and make recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
adjustment principle of all employees as a whole, the remuneration
policy and structure of the Company, and the remuneration
packages of the Executive Directors and other related matters. At
the same time, the Remuneration Committee has reviewed the
share award scheme and share option scheme which are still in
effect during the year. For the year ended 31 December 2023,
no options were granted or agreed to be granted pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme and no shares were granted or agreed
to be granted to any selected participants pursuant to the Share
Award Scheme (2022: Nil). As at the date of this Annual Report,
there was no outstanding option not exercised under the Share
Option Scheme. Currently the Remuneration Committee comprises
three members, namely, Ms. YE Lu (Chairman of Remuneration
Committee), Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin (each being an independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. LU Run Ting (being an executive
Director).

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take the Board Diversity Policy and Director Nomination
Policy into consideration, to ensure that the Board has the
appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives necessary. In the case of a candidate for independent
non-executive Director, satisfaction of independent requirements
of the Listing Rules and Policy on Independence of Directors of the
Company is needed. All of these can enhance the effectiveness of
the Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance.
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In evaluating and selecting any candidate for directorship, the
Nomination Committee should consider the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to character and integrity, qualifications
(including professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience and diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy), any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board, independent aspects under the Policy on
Independence of Directors for independent non-executive Director
and whether the candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules, any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience, independence
and gender diversity, and willingness and ability to devote
adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/
or Board committees of the Company.

The Nomination Committee evaluates such candidate (include any
person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company) based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee should rank them by order
of preference based on the needs of the Company and reference
check of each candidate (where applicable), and recommend to the
Board (as applicable).

For the re-election of Director at General Meeting, the Nomination
Committee should review the overall contribution and service to
the Company of the retiring director and the level of participation
and performance on the Board, review and determine whether the
retiring director continues to meet the criteria as set out above,
and make recommendation to shareholders. The Nomination
Committee will conduct regular review on the structure, size and
composition of the Board and this Policy and where appropriate,
make recommendations on changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy and business needs.

At the same time, in assessing the board composition, the
Nomination Committee would take into account various aspects
set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry and
regional experience. The Nomination Committee would review the
Board Diversity Policy at least annually and discuss and agree on
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where
necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors, and
to consider the qualifications of the retiring Directors standing
for re-election and to consider and recommend to the Board on
the appointment of an independent non-executive Director at the
annual general meeting. The Nomination Committee considered
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is
maintained. The Nomination Committee comprises five members
currently, namely, Mr. LU Run Ting (Chairman of Nomination
Committee), Mr. HOU Ping (each being an executive Director),
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin, Ms. YE Lu and Mr. LAl Tung Kwok (each
being an independent non-executive Director).

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. It aims to maintain
an appropriate balance of diversity perspectives that are relevant to
the Company’s business growth.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee
will review annually the structure, size and composition of
the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy and to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced
diverse profile. In relation to reviewing and assessing the Board
composition, the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity
at all levels and will consider a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, skills, knowledge, industry experience and
professional experience.
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At present, the Board comprises nine members with extensive
experience in the fields of management, banking, law, finance,
sales, operation and public services, which provide favourable
support and protection to ensure the good functioning of the
Board. Among them, there are three independent non-executive
Directors, representing one third of the Board. At the same time,
two members of the Board are women, representing a 7:2 ratio of
men to women. As a result of review, the Nomination Committee
considers that the Board Diversity Policy is effective and will
continue to ensure that there is at least one woman on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. At the same time, the
Company will examine such objectives from time to time to review
their appropriateness and effectiveness, and ensure the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

STAFF DIVERSITY

The Company is preparing a staff diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the staff.

The Company has always been committed to promote diversity in
the teams, and is able to achieve through a number of measures.
The Company strictly complies with relevant laws and regulations,
and the code of conduct to prevent discrimination or harassment
has been set out in staff manual. The Company also offers
diversity training to new and old staff and applies the principle
of equal opportunity to all policies related to human resources,
remuneration and benefits, to ensure employment opportunities
for people of all kinds. Any discrimination or harassment against
employees owing to their marital status, pregnancy, disability,
family status, race or gender are prohibited. During the year, our
female employees accounted for approximately 43.3% of the total
workforce; the senior management consists of one female member
and one male member.

Going forward, the Company will further diversify the staff team
in various aspects, to enhance the Company’s culture in inclusion.
Recently, the Company is establishing the related policies on
eliminating discrimination to help the Company exercise more
comprehensive consideration and judgment in appointment and
promotion. At the same time, the Company is also formulating
measurable goals and will strive to keep the proportion level of
female employees at 40% or above, and the proportion level of
female members in senior management no less than 20%.
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The Company will review the staff diversity policy, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness. At the same time, the Company
will examine such objectives from time to time to review their
appropriateness and effectiveness, and ensure the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

DIRECTOR NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for
selection and appointment of Directors to the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Director Nomination Policy which
sets out the selection criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing
the suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a
proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity.

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy.

o Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board.

o Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

o Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

o Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge
duties as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s)
of the Company.
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Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings, details are as follows:

(a)

164

Appointment of new director

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should,
upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of new
director and the biographical information (or relevant
details) of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the factors as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship.

If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should rank them by order of preference based
on the needs of the Company and reference check of
each candidate (where applicable).

The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate
for directorship, as applicable.

For any person that is nominated by a shareholder
for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the
factors as set out above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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(b) Re-election of director at general meeting

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
review the overall contribution and service to the
Company of the retiring director and the level of
participation and performance on the Board.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
also review and determine whether the retiring
director continues to meet the factors as set out
above.

(iii) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
then make recommendation to shareholders in
respect of the proposed re-election of director at the
general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

POLICY ON INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS

To ensure independent views and input are available to the Board,
and the sustainable and healthy development, the Company has
adopted Policy on Independence of Directors which assesses the
independence of the Board, particularly independent non-executive
Directors, and deals clearly with the further appointment of the
independent non-executive Directors served more than nine years
on the Board.
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The General Principles of the Policy on Independence of Directors
for evaluating the independence of independent non-executive
Directors are that independent non-executive Directors should
not have any substantive or material interest with the Group,
the management of the Group or the controlling shareholder of
the Company. In assessing the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Policy on Independence of Directors
sets out factors that the Board should take into account, including
but not limited to the following:

o stock ownership relationship;

o employment and compensation relationship;

° business relationship;

o professional service relationship;

° cross-directorships and other links;

o financial dependence relationship; and

o other: notwithstanding the absence of the abovementioned

circumstances, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee will assess the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors in accordance with
the guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board reviewed the implementation and
effectiveness of the Policy on Independence of Directors and the
results were satisfactory.

The Board will review Policy on Independence of Directors, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has adopted terms of reference for corporate
governance functions set out in the CG Code and is responsible
for performing the corporate governance duties set out therein.
The Board has reviewed the Company’'s compliance with the CG
Code for the year ended 31 December 2023 and other legal and
regulatory requirements.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends, it aims to provide the Shareholders with stable and
sustainable returns. According to the Dividend Policy, the Company
intends to distribute no less than 20% of its annual net profits
as dividends to its shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board will depend on the financial results, cash flow
situation, business conditions and strategies, future operations and
earnings, capital requirements and expenditure plans, interests of
shareholders, any restrictions on payment of dividends and any
other factors that the Board may consider relevant, to propose and/
or declare dividends during a financial year and any final dividend
for a financial year will be subject to the Shareholders’ approval.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION AND
COMMUNICATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a policy on disclosure of information
and communication with outsiders which provides a general guide
to the Company’s directors, senior management and relevant
employees in handling confidential information and monitoring
information disclosure. The Company has formulated an inside
information and insider policy and has implemented control
procedures to ensure that the inside information of the Company
is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and timely manner
in accordance with the applicable laws and regulations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Ms. LI Yijin. Details of
the biography of the company secretary of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of
this Annual Report. Ms. LI confirmed that she took no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in the year ended 31
December 2023 as required by the Listing Rules.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each Director at the Board and board
committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company
held during the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out in the
table below:

EERZEERENHERT

B2

BUEFL2BARNANE 2023412831
BEtzFEREBTHNESS 28823

MERAGHHELEINTRAT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERE, EFRE
Annual

Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpA BE=g REZES FMZEES ERERE RRBEFAS
Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. LU Run Ting 4/4 11 m N/A 11
EEELLE
Mr. HOU Ping 4/4 11 N/A N/A 11
& FEAE
Mr. LU Runyi 4/4 N/A N/A N/A m
EEfRELE
Mr. WU Sigiang 4/4 N/A N/A N/A m
REB@ELE
Mr. LU Wai Lim 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
ERBETE
Ms. LI Yijin 4/4 N/A N/A N/A 171
FHERT
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYKBITES
Mr. MAK Wing Sum Alvin 4/4 171 il 2/2 1”71
BRBREE
Ms. YE Lu 4/4 171 1”7 2/2 1”7
® x&t
Mr. LAl Tung Kwok 4/4 1”71 N/A 2/2 171
RRE K&

168  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Apart from regular board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with independent non-executive Directors without the
presence of executive Directors during the year 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2023.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out
in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 178 to 189 of this
Annual Report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the
year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB1,841,000 and
RMB468,000 respectively.

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services
and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set
out below:

EREB®RS (@)

BTEENESZEE N2023FEFET
MBI TEET AR TRBENTESH
fﬂﬁ;;m"

ESHUBERROBE

EFEHEREMNBREEA QR EE2023F12
A31BLZ2FEHBERENBE

BEEUNANEALMF AT B NCIESH
ZE”«%@W]*”'JEXE%&E’J%#‘XIﬁ/RE’J
ERTHERR -

B B S AR BT B B TS R E
MR E RN RN FR 2B L ZBEDRE S
178EB £189H -

BT AVEN =

S FARRBINEZBATE B E £2023F
128318 1L 2 FEMWZ BRI & IEZEUR
HzE s Bl A ARE1,841,000T AR
#468,0007T °

ST FARRBINEZBENEZFH K EE
BB B B E E2023F 124318 12 4F
[ H AR M I BRTE 2 Bl & &9 5 47 40
T

Fees Paid/Payable

Service Category RisESE BN EAEAR

RMB

AR

Audit Services ZE R 1,841,000
Non-audit Services IEZEB R

— Interim review — hHEIEH 468,000

2,309,000
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for continually
overseeing the Group’s risk management and internal control
system and reviewing their effectiveness at least annually through
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board in
fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance role in the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance, risk management and internal
controls and the resourcing of the finance and internal audit
functions.

Risk Management Structure

The Group has established an organizational structure with
defined level of responsibility and reporting procedures. The Board
oversees the overall management of Group’s risks, with assistance
from the Audit Committee on reviewing and monitoring key risks.
Management is responsible for designing and implementing the
risk management and internal control system. Management is
also committed to fostering a risk aware and control conscious
environment. Operating units are responsible for the identification
and management of risks in their operations and a comprehensive
approach is adopted for enterprise-wide risk. Responsibility for risk
management resides at all levels within the Group, from the Board
through the organisation to each manager and employee.

The Group’s risk management framework is guided by the Three
Lines of Defense model as shown below:

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Bz

GROUP
MANAGEMENT

SEEERE

1ST LINE OF DEFENSE
E—EHR

2ND LINE OF DEFENSE
FEER AR
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Risk Management Framework

The Group has in place a risk management framework to
effectively identify, assess, mitigate and monitor key business,
financial, operational, compliance and environment, social and
governance risks. The framework enables the Group to adopt a
proactive and systematic approach to identifying and managing
risks across the organisation to evaluate risk severity and likelihood
of occurrence. The framework also sets out the procedures of risk
management and clarifies the roles and responsibilities of various
departments in relation to risk management.

ERER ﬁ%(

2 B B B o S

5L S T R E A LB RS - 3P
e MBEMEZETEER EL WK
ARRBE HERERAR - ZIEA

S EEMH 1/ﬁﬂ$ﬁ$ﬂ%#vtﬁ’])?/££3%}“ulﬁrﬂ
BRI RFFEE R BRE M EE

igks - B ZIEEE T SENRER
EERE EHEET%%BFEJEEWEAE%EIVE

FHBES T

RISK MONITORING

AND REPORTING
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RISK
IDENTIFICATION

CORPORATE STRATEGIC

OBJECTIVES
& W B BE B AR

RISK
ASSESSMENT
RS

The Group has embedded its risk management systems into the
core operating practices of the business. On an ongoing basis,
the respective operating units of the Company review and access
the status of potential risks which may impact on their ability
to achieve their business objectives and/or those of the Group,
determine and implement treatment plans where risk mitigations
are actionable. This review process includes assessment as to
whether the existing internal controls continue to remain relevant,
adequately address potential risks, and/or should be supplemented.

LB Bl

ACTION AND
CONTROL ACTIVITIES
TEH IR EHE

$§%@EH—;HI§A%‘I¥§E§%1V®¥%
Moo FRBPIFE B AR BT I 5T M AT A ¥TiEAK
E&: BF?‘X$%@%F§ME’J EER R
RBTERRARN - Bl FEREEAIITHRE
BREATEEE - BRSNS RERENERE
NBERZGREEEVNAEBRTE 2
CRABHBERREEEEFE T UM

SHEERZREARAT —s-=F88 /]

Corporate

Financial
Highlights

BsHE

2023

Chairman'’s

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Report of

)
o]
c
©
c
9]
>
(=]

(V)
)

g
©
[e]
=
o

)

Financial

Environmental,
Social and

Information
AR

Major Events
2023F RFL

W&

Statement
I

=

and Analysis
ERE W RO

EREERRE

Management

BEFER

Governance Report
CHEREARE

5

R

&

Directors
M

Statements
B RS



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

TEEREE (@)

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are adhered to
and complied with, reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance to relevant accounting standards
and regulatory reporting requirements, and key risks that may
impact the Group’s performance are appropriately identified
and managed. The system and internal controls can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, as they are designed to be managed, rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives.

A description of the Group’s main risk factors is shown on pages
101 to 129 of this Annual Report. The Group continuously works
to improve its risk management framework in order to keep pace
with the changing business environment.

Internal Control

Internal Control Department conducts independent reviews on the
Group's risk management and internal control system. Internal
Control Department reports directly to the Audit Committee to
ensure identified internal control weaknesses are communicated
and rectified effectively.

Internal Control Department adopts a risk-oriented audit approach.
The annual audit plan covers major activities and processes of
the Group’s compliance, financial, procurement, operations and
environment, social and governance. On a regular basis, Internal
Control Department reports to the Audit Committee the results
of their activities during the preceding period pertaining to the
adequacy and effectiveness of internal controls, and follows up the
progress of rectification for control weaknesses.

The Group has established and oversees a whistleblower policy and
a set of comprehensive procedures whereby employees, customers,
suppliers and other concerned parties can report any actual or
suspected occurrence of improper conduct involving the Company,
and for such matters to be investigated and dealt with efficiently
in an appropriate and transparent manner.

The Company formulated the insider information policy and
regularly reminds the Directors and employees about due
compliance with all policies regarding the insider information. The
Company shall prepare or update appropriate guidelines or policies
to ensure the compliance with regulatory requirements.
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The Board reviews annually the Group’s risk management and
internal control system. During the year, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group, including the adequacy of resources
of environmental, social and governance performance and report,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function.
The key areas of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems are effectively implemented, thus the Board and the Audit
Committee considered the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems are effective and sufficient.

In addition to the review of risk management and internal controls
undertaken within the Group, the external auditor also assessed
the adequacy and effectiveness of certain key risk management
and internal controls as part of their statutory audits. The external
auditor’'s recommendations also provide enhancements to the risk
management and internal controls.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.

Right to call a General Meeting

General meetings may be convened by the Board on requisition
of shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings or by such shareholder(s) who made
the requisition (as the case may be) pursuant to Sections 566 and
568 respectively of the Companies Ordinance. The general nature
of the business to be dealt with at the meeting must be stated
in the request. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for convening a
general meeting.
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Right to Circulate Resolution at Annual
General Meeting

Pursuant to Section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights
of all shareholders; or at least 50 shareholders (as the case may be)
who have a right to vote at the relevant Annual General Meeting,
may request to circulate a resolution to be moved at an Annual
General Meeting. Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance for circulating a
resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may
send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1301, 13th Floor

Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre

No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: +852 2834 6759

Email: goldpac@goldpac.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement,
or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give
effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by law.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders’ communications policy
("Shareholders’ Communication Policy”), and commits
to maintain on-going and effective communication with its
shareholders. The Board attaches a high degree of importance to
continuous communication with shareholders, and firmly believes
that effective learning of shareholders’ views and needs will help
the Company to develop and improve its future development
strategy.

In additional to the direct dialogue with shareholders at
the Company’s annual general meeting, the Company also
communicates actively with the investment community in the
forms of meetings, conferences, roadshows, and one-to-one
communication. In the event of public health emergency and
subject to the local restrictive measures, the Company will adjust
the mode of convening the annual general meeting flexibly,
ensuring effective communication with shareholders while
complying with the Companies Ordinance and other applicable
disease prevention regulations as well as the requirements of the
Company’s Articles of Association.

In order that shareholders can have a better understanding of the
agenda items to be discussed at the annual general meeting and to
encourage their active participation so that exchange of views and
communication can be further enhanced, the Company has always
provided detailed information on the annual general meeting
in a circular to shareholders which will include introduction to
the proposed resolutions to be approved at the annual general
meeting, information on the retiring Directors who are eligible
for re-election, as well as information on voting, live webcast (if
applicable) and other issues relating to the annual general meeting
voting.

All the Board members were present at the Company’s 2022
annual general meeting held on 15 May 2023 at Room 1301,
13th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, No. 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. Representatives of
PricewaterhouseCoopers, being the auditor of the Company, and
Mayer Brown, being the legal advisor of the Company, were also
present at the Company’s 2022 annual general meeting to respond
to enquiries raised by shareholders.
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Apart from the Shareholders’ Communication Policy, the
Company’s investor relations also follows investor relations
management system, and communicates with existing and
potential investors of the Company’s securities, analysts and
securities market professionals in meetings, conferences and
road-shows to enhance their knowledge and understanding of the
Company’s development and strategies, aiming to provide clear
and timely information that is reasonably required for them to
make a fair investment decision. These discussions generally involve
public information, including disclosed financial information and
historical data, markets and product strategies, business strengths
and weaknesses, growth opportunities and threats. Any topic
will be discussed so long as it is not considered to be material
non-public information.

The Shareholders’” Communication Policy will be reviewed by
the Board annually to ensure effectiveness. During the year, the
Board reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
Shareholders” Communication Policy by receiving an annual work
report from the Company’s investor relations, and reviewed it with
the internal control department, confirming that the Shareholders’
Communication Policy continues to be effective. For the year
under review, the Board was of the view that such policy remained
sufficient and effective in that:

(i) during the year, the Company conducted briefings via
teleconferences and network broadcast with analysts
and the press to apprise them of the Company's strategy
implementation, operating results, business development
and outlook as well as to answer their questions;

(ii) the Company conducted one-to-one communication with
major institutional shareholders and potential shareholders
via email, teleconferences, and communication software and
platforms; and

(i)  the Company published latest information of the Group
on its official website and financial investment platforms,
including financial results and reports, announcements and
circulars.
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In addition, the Company can collect investors’ opinions,
understand the market expectations and assist in the Company’s
strategic formulation. The consistent innovative practices
and market recognition from the capital market promote the
improvement of investor relations practices. In future, the
Company would improve the multiple communication mechanism,
connect with global investors and keep a good transparency in
information disclosure.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year 2023, the Company has not made any changes to
its Articles of Association. An up to date version of the Company’s
Articles of Association is also available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B RS

i
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To the Shareholders of Goldpac Group Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Goldpac Group Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 190 to 311, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising

material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

OPINION (continued)
Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

° Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

o Impairment assessment of trade receivables

BIZEMEET (@

ERm
EPMWER
HMR A ZEGANBHREDRESS

S ASEMACEBMEHRE LA
EmMPsRET BEEBMN2023F12A8
STHMEGEEAEBRAREHEZRIEFE
MEEUBREARGERESRE  YEE
BEBCRBHEDI)Z RB#HE -

RRNER

BMERBEELSSFIMASEMNC(ER
B EA)ETE - RMAEZXFEAT
AENEETCEARS [ZXBED TR
EMBHRRABENRETI BT EE—F

HPHAE BRAMESHETGIEERTE
MEEHWRBRMNEA TR IZHER -

B

REFESAMOGRMO(EXSFED
BRESTADATEEISFALD - RFABL
EEE YERBTTAPHEMER

BIEEME -

FREFTER

RREFFFHERBERMANEXRHE R
REAPGAVBRENBIAR[/EEDN
FH ELFEHESEUMEABREBEAY
BHRRMBASERETEEN - HMAT
SUHELEHEREBNER -

fi %

AT T BRI B0 B 5 5t IR a0
I

s REFEEAERFE
o  BREIRERHE
179

EHRERELERERAT —B-=FFR

Financial

2023

»
©
©

(@]

o
A
a
=
v}
Ea
[a)
7}
[}
o
©

Directors and Senior

Corporate Governance Report of

Financial
Statements

Corporate

Environmental,
Social and

2
[
>
[}

@
o]
g
©
)

©

Directors

L

Report

Report

Gover

2023F K&+

S ¥R

P=f 4=

%
Bzt

< EIAME

A

40
&
8
=




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B 3% BAT 3R & (|)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FERETTEE W

Write-down of inventories to net realisable values
B FEZN 2R FE

Refer to notes 4(a), 19 and 40.11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

B2 RARAUMIEME M 5E4a) « BIFET19F BT 5£40.11 ©

’

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of the
Group’s inventories amounted to RMB301,577,000
(2022: RMB362,621,000), after net of a write-down of
inventories to net realisable value of RMB63,915,000
(2022: RMB68,266,000).

B E2023F12A318 - ZR B EERCE R R FE
e B AR #63,915,0007T (20224 : AR 68,266,000
T ECAEEFENEREEESE R ARE301,577,0007T
(2022%F : AR™362,621,0007T) °

7180  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Our procedures in relation to the write-down of
inventories to net realisable values included:

BB FREEAZRFECEFEE

—  We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal controls and process of the write-down
of inventories to net realisable values
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

— BMTHTEREYURGSFEZNERFEN

MBS A EAR - WiBEE BT AT HEE 1L
DET@I%H&I%(&D%’E%‘EIE ITEMT - #
EMBXEBRBIHRLAKF)NEE - %LT
Ekﬁ‘é%ﬁﬁmﬁ’\]ﬁﬁwﬁ 1THE -

— We understood, evaluated and tested key
controls over the write-down of inventories to
net realisable values.

— BMTH - FEMARTE@EARCSGEEEZRE
IRFEEEA RS -

—  We evaluated the outcome of prior period
assessment of write-down of inventories to net
realisable values to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process.

— BMFTETAHAGTEEREENZHR FENFTMG
R A EBEEBMATAEN AR -

—  We understood the basis of the write-down
of inventories to net realisable values and
evaluated the appropriateness of the basis
adopted.

— EMTHTREFEZRERFEMNER I
P TR AN S EY -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B B AR (E)

B ESTEE W)

Write-down of inventories to net realisable values
(Continued)
BEFEZASEFE(E)

Management estimated net realisable values based on
ageing of inventories, current market price and estimated
future market demand. Such estimation required the use
of significant judgments and key assumptions which take
into consideration of historical sales records, utilisation
records, ageing and expectations for future sales orders.
Such judgments were subject to uncertainties as a
result of future changes in market trends and customer
demands.

ERERBHEFERE ERMSERMENRRTS
SRIGET A # I FE - L%ﬁ#ﬁgﬁﬁiﬁmﬂwﬂ@
RER SLHABMBRERTELHELHE AL
BoBRERMAREETENTERA -ARTEBENER
FREORRE L EERABFETEE G -

Our procedures in relation to the write-down of
inventories to net realisable values included:(Continued)

BMYEREFEENERFELRFEE  (B)

— We tested the accuracy of the inventories
ageing report on a sample basis by tracing to
the purchase invoices and delivery documents.

— HMERBEZENIERIETHERSES AU
AATFE R RS RN

— We tested key assumptions used in the
assessment process, including expectations for
future sales orders by tracing to the related
source documents, such as the historical sales
records and usage records.

— HBMYFEEETEANERER (BRYEAKR
FHETENTAY) RBEMEFELHE RER
RO ER YRS T ORI

— On a sample basis, we examined the
subsequent selling invoices to check if any
significant differences between the estimated
selling prices and subsequent actual selling
prices.

— FHMMETHRHEEET  UEHMEFANEE
BREAZRENERHEERZHAREFEEX
ERe

EHEARZERERAT —S-=FF5K 3]

j<)
2
o
S
2
S]
)

Financial

2023
Major Events

2023F KRFEL

©n
©
=
‘©
<
(@]

Management Discussion

Directors and Senior

Report of

Corporate Governance

=
o]
c
<
=
ic

Environmental,
Social and

o
o
=
©
=
o
L
&

9]
s
9]
D
©
&H

Directors

EEE R

Statements

Governance Report

DRAH

T RESR
JE S

A

1
MNE

b

IRIE %




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B S LA 3R & (|

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FERETTEE W

Write-down of inventories to net realisable values
(Continued)
B FEZEEFE(E)

We focused on this area because of the significance
of the inventories balance in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and significant judgments were
involved in estimating the net realisable values of
inventories.

HY ESEEGAMBHREPEESRESEEA A E
EEFENRAIERHES RERFIE - B TUEHET -
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Our procedures in relation to the write-down of
inventories to net realisable values included:(Continued)

B REFEEAERFEZRFERE  (B)

— We assessed the reasonableness and the
accuracy of the estimated costs to completion,
other costs necessary to make the sale and the
related taxes by comparing with the historical
costs to completion, other costs necessary to
make the sale and the related taxes for the
similar inventories.

— BMBBRETHRELRAN  ETHEMBENHE
i A A RBEUFENHET BETLER - 5T
BTREFTTEREKAN  ETHEMEHEMER
LR EN SR EREFE -

—  We tested the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation of the write-down of inventories to
net realisable values.

— BMARATREFEEAEZR FEAENHS
HERENE o

Based on our work performed, we considered the
judgments and estimates made by management in
relation to their write-down of inventories to net
realisable values to be supportable.

BB THE BMRAREEBRAINAIFER
B R TF & & Al #3575 E 5 i H &9 #I BT A0k 51 o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B B AR (E)

B ESTEE W)

Impairment loss of trade receivables

FE W & SR E R K

Refer to notes 3.1(a), 3.1(b), 4(b), 20 and 40.12 to the
consolidated financial statements
BRRGREUBIRRMES 1(a) ~ H5E3.1(b) ~ B 7E4(b)
Bt 5E20H0 B 5540.12 ©

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had gross trade
receivables of RMB336,018,000 (2022: RMB345,271,000)
against which expected credit loss (“ECL") provision of
RMB5,023,000 (2022: RMB4,949,000) were made. ECL
provision for impairment losses on trade receivables was
made using lifetime ECL approach.

M2023F12A31B AEBNERERLER/ARE
336,018,0007T (20224 : A R #345,271,0007T) * &4
BERONFEREEBE R ARKS023,0007T (20224 - A
K #4,949,0007T) ° fE W E A 42 1= R B (8 17 & Bl A 51
RBEER -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:

BFIEEREFRENGEZETFEE

—  We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal control and assessment process of the
provision for impairment of trade receivables
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors, such as complexity,
subjectivity, changes and susceptibility to
management bias or fraud.

— HMTMTEEEHRKERNRETHOA
G MTEBE - WiBBE RGN TETE
MREMESRREZE (WEME T8ML -
BUMSZXEEREFHIER R NRE
HERERR A E A R EITT A

—  We understood, evaluated and tested the key
controls that the Group has implemented over
trade receivables portfolio grouping and ECL
determination.

— HMTER FAHENARATERHEKERES
DHENMBHEEEBETERMBARITT -

—  We evaluated the outcome of prior period
assessment of impairment loss on trade
receivables to assess the effectiveness of
management’s estimation process.

—  FHFIFHE T R EFORER KA A BT AR
NFHEER BT RENB RN -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 E R E (®)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

BEREITEE W)

Impairment loss of trade receivables (Continued)

FE W & SR E 18 K (8T

The approach was assessed based on the provision matrix
through grouping of various debtors that have similar
credit risk characteristics, with consideration of their
corresponding estimated default rates and loss rates,
together with the forward-looking information.
AARAERERBHBER  BABAGHEUGEERRE
BHEREBADE WERHEMERENMTENENE
KE - ARATIE NS SR

Management used estimations and judgments to estimate
default rates and loss rates by making reference to
the credit rating given by external ranking agency and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.
ERERBE2ZIBIAKBLEENGEATRNEHEAER
BRBREZNAEMEES ARG MABRETED
KFBEREK o
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:(Continued)

BPEREKRERENEZEFERE  (B)

— We evaluated the reasonableness of the
judgments that management made in grouping
various debtors by assessing credit risk
characteristics.

— BMBBTEEERRSE FHTEREEY
BEEEBADERETHEN S -

—  We evaluated the reliability of the key data
input to calculate estimated default rate,
including related credit rating and current
status of each portfolio, trade receivables
lifetime recovery information and other relevant
data.

— BMFETERBBERANASED  UEL
AHENX  BREEENERIRNEEEK
FAENERIRE BRERXRNFERALKE
BUAREMAEEEE -

—  We understood and evaluated the reasonableness
of the factors used in making forward-looking
estimation, including changes of future
economics, GDP growth rate forecast and
market environment.

— BMTHLTEHETRARETIEMGATNREE
WalBElt SELEEEEARREELS - GDP
BREBANMTHBRENE L -

— On a sample basis, we tested the accuracy
of the ageing analysis of trade receivables by
tracing to the relevant supporting documents,
including the sales invoice.

— HMBAEMBREESEZEEANNERAMY
OB T B R BR e D ATV ERE L o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

B B AR (E)

FAREITEIE W

Impairment loss of trade receivables (Continued)

FE W & SR E 18 & (D)

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
the trade receivables and the assessment of the ECL
provision involved significant accounting estimations and
judgments.
HRERERHEABRERBEEERBEENE
B REARAEBGE - B MTUASEET -

Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of trade receivables included:(Continued)

BPEREKRERRENEZEFERE  (B)

— We obtained ECL determination documents
of each portfolio of trade receivables and
examined their mathematical accuracy.

— HMDRGEKERSECHNTEREEEETE
X BEBEATERNERIE -

— On a sample basis, we also tested the
subsequent settlement of trade receivables
after 31 December 2023 by tracing to the
related supporting documents including the
bank receipts.

—  HMHEERE T RITUEGRE E AR RE I
FEREEHE2023F12A31BHERERHE
B e WKIE R °

Based on the procedures performed, we considered
that the judgments and estimates adopted by
management in determining the expected credit
losses of the trade receivables were supported by the
obtained evidence.

REBEMATHRF  HMRREEEETRWER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)

B2 E R E (®)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

186  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)
B ZE AR E (@)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Chun Wah, Ryan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AEREREMEEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

2022
Notes RMB’'000
k=3 ARET T
Revenue /PN 5 1,416,573 1,530,251
Cost of sales 8 & B AR 8 (996,521) (1,127,115)
Gross profit EF 420,052 403,136
Other income H b A 6 50,665 49,169
Other gains — net Hhles — F5 7 309 47,889
Research and development expenses  #ff 2 & M 8 (102,451) (112,955)
Selling and distribution expenses HENRDIHER 8 (143,596) (172,822)
Administrative expenses THRX 8 (48,302) (41,623)
(Provision for)/reversal of impairment  JEW & & CRE%ER)
loss on trade receivables B 1B 5 18 #E B 3.1(b) (199) 169
Impairment loss on amount due JE W Bk 8 R R RIE 2
from an associate WEEE 23 (36) (394)
Impairment loss KEMEZ REEE
of investment properties 17 (4,974) -
Finance income/(costs) — net BISWA (B A) —F58 9 2,265 (8,499)
Profit before income tax BR BT 18 %% A0 & A 173,733 164,070
Income tax expense e &R 12 (22,568) (3,091)
Profit for the year FEFE 151,165 160,979
Other comprehensive income FEHEMPEEA
for the year
[tem that may be subsequently AR B 7 2B
reclassified to profit or loss: ZIHEE -
— exchange differences arising on —MEBIINEBEERN
translation of foreign operations PE W =% 1,805 5,709
Total comprehensive income FEZHKRAELE
for the year 152,970 166,688
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)
GEBRaRhEMEZEW AR @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A318 L2 FE

2022 054
Notes RMB’000 B EX
i E ARMET T gL«
Profit for the year attributable to: FEHEERNE - \Ef@i
Owners of the Company FiN/NECTE ¥ =N 132,051 147,427 E%g
Non-controlling interests FEPE A RE S 19,114 13,552
151,165 160,979 get
Total comprehensive income G2 WA K
attributable to: [t
Owners of the Company RAFEE A 133,856 153,136 E%;E
Non-controlling interests FEI AR RE 25 19,114 13,552 oo
152,970 166,688
2
Earnings per share R & F| 13 i
— Basic (RMB cents) —EX(ARES) 16.3 18.1
— Diluted (RMB cents) —#HE(ARED) 16.3 18.1 -
S [
The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other  Fit4R 41825 & EH 42 m Uk A Z FE B2 12 Kt ﬁéfﬂ
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the itz — @& - E%jﬁ
accompanying notes. géf_
s ®
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B AR R &

At 31 December 2023 2023412 A31H

2022
Notes RMB’'000
ok AREFIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BENXEE 15 295,069 312,722
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 16 36,165 32,896
Investment properties KREWMHE 17 190,832 192,436
Deferred tax assets EETIRE E 29 28,708 25,946
Other receivables H b fE R 22 67,933 84,500
Pledged bank deposits EEARITHER 24 - 219,841
Fixed bank deposits RITE TR 24 122,349 126,500
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 741,056 994,841
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 19 301,577 362,621
Trade receivables FEU & = 20 330,995 340,322
Contract assets SEHEE 21 12,038 10,637
Other receivables and prepayments H A e W R M TR AR 22 77,564 102,587
Pledged bank deposits EERRITER 24 156,656 7,112
Fixed bank deposits R1TE BT R 24 669,471 368,143
Cash and cash equivalents HEe RIREZEEY 24 404,550 627,594
Total current assets mENE ERRE 1,952,851 1,819,016
Total assets EEHR 2,693,907 2,813,857
EQUITY i
Share capital & 7 31 1,192,362 1,192,362
Reserves EE 880,969 864,563
Equity attributable to owners RNRFEE ANELES
of the Company 2,073,331 2,056,925
Non-controlling interests JEFE RS RE S 21,740 13,638
Total equity ERAE 2,095,071 2,070,563
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
B MR AR ()

At 31 December 2023 72023412 A31H

2022 s,
Notes RMB’'000 s
ot ARBT T Sgd
LIABILITIES e 3
Non-current liabilities FREBEE g
Lease liabilities HE&E 16 7,382 2,991
Deferred tax liabilities EERTE B (& 29 37,399 33,397 2
R EK
Total non-current liabilities EREBEFEEEE 44,781 36,388 B z%§
Current liabilities 78 & 1 E
Trade and bills payables BN ERRENRE 25 399,788 336,693 g
Contract liabilities EMEE 27 25,332 177,298 oo
Other payables A FE A 5K 28 82,552 114,559
Bank borrowings IRITER 26 — 44,818 S
Lease liabilities HERE 16 4,584 5,883 5
Income tax payables A TS AR 41,799 27,655 5
Total current liabilities mEBEARE 554,055 706,906 .
Total liabilities BEAE 598,836 743,294 é
Total equity and liabilities EEEEAR 2,693,907 2,813,857 g

The consolidated financial statements on pages 190 to 311 were ZEEH& P2 HR2024F3H820B T BBFE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20 190B E£311 B4 B REMEMH - WH

March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by: LTEEeREEE g
5 0l
LU RUN TING HOU PING é?fn
ERE &F £ O
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
EFRFERNTEE HITEEREENTE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

L LN T
Shares
held under ~ Exchange Non-
Share sharesaward translation Other  Statutory Retained controlling
capital scheme reserves reserves reserves earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Rk
L4 B |

K& BERG  ERRE  HeBE  ARRE  SR4E At FERER fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRE ARET: ARETR ARET:R
(Note i) (Note i)
(Wti) i)

At 1 January 2022 W2022E1518 1,192,362 (13,516) (3,306) 108,440 172,655 550,776 2,007,411 1,194 2,008,605
Proft for the year FEHE - - - - — WD wWa BS2 160979
Other comprehensive income EREp2ENA

for the year - - 5,709 - - - 5,709 - 5,709

Total comprehensive income ERREMAES

for the year - - 5709 - - 147,427 153,136 13,552 166,688
Repurchase of shares RhEE = = = - - (6,867) (6,867) - (6,367)
Dividends recognised as distribution 2RIk 2 (472 14)

(Note 14) — — — — — (97,008) (97,008) — (97,008)
Transaction with non-controlling ~ E3HERERZETR S

interest (Note 38) (H1i38) - = = 253 = = 253 (1,108) (855)

- - - 253 - (103,875) (103,622) (1,108) (104,730)
At 31 December 2022 R20225128318 1,192,362 (13,516) 2,403 108,693 172,655 594,328 2,056,925 13,638 2,070,563
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)
ERESE R E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATREARLES
Shares
held under ~ Exchange Non-
Share shares award translation Other  Statutory  Retained controlling
capital scheme reserves reserves reserves earnings  Sub-total interests Total
Rk
RBa

KA HERR EsiffE bt EERE BilsE £ FERER &it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARET:R
(Note i) (Note i)
(Wi Wz i)

2023

At 1 January 2023 202351818 1,192,362 (13,516) 2,403 108,693 172,655 594,328 2,056,925 13,638 2,070,563 B
Profit for the year EEFE - - - - - 132,051 132,051 19,114 151,165
Other comprehensive income EREp2ENA

for the year - - 1,805 - - - 1,805 - 1,805

Total comprehensive income ERREMAES

for the year - - 1,805 - - 132,051 133,856 19,114 152,970
Repurchase of shares (Note 31) R EE (frz31) - - - - - (2,158) (2,158) - (2,158)
Dividends recognised as distribution 7k & (473t 14)
(Note 14) - - - - - (115,292) (115,292) - (115,292)
Dividends paid to non-controlling iﬁ%i PR
interests e - - - - - - - (11,012) (11,012)
- - - - - (117,450) (117,450) (11,012) (128,462)
At 31 December 2023 20235127318 1,192,362 (13,516) 4,208 108,693 172,655 608929 2,073,331 21,740 2,095,071
Notes: it
(i) Other reserves represent the aggregate of capitalisation of statutory reserves (i) HEEIEECHEEERMBEFERZRE AN EF
and retained earnings into capital of subsidiaries, contribution from a BAGIEAN BRELHZE - %%’AETFEME@E% 2o
shareholder and share of other reserves of associates and amounts arising BUARBEFZERERETRIETFEHERE 62
from transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a loss of P ER SRR - s 2
control. o
There was capitalisation of statutory reserves into capital of a subsidiary of the R20114F A EREBEHE AN BA R E KB
Company, Goldpac Limited, in 2011. RRIEBEERAAMNER © .
There was a transaction with non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of the 120224 - B [f} /& 2 F]SecureTech Holdings 2%3
Company, SecureTech Holdings Limited, in 2022. Limited B JEFE R AR R ETTRR 5 © %g'f
= =
(i) Under the relevant regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), (ii) BEFEARELNMT ((REA)NEBER &
certain subsidiaries of the Company which established in the PRC are required TRAPBEKIZARRZHMB AR BIREELE v
to make appropriation to the statutory reserves at 10% of their profit after tax BTGRP R R E R EM10%EH R = EHE 2
based on their statutory financial statements until their statutory reserves reach B HEEREEENERARNS0%  ZETER S
50% of their share capital individually. The statutory reserves may only be RS EEIF AR AR ERBE® 52
used, upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses ZEMB AT R EEREEIMEER - B E b S
or to increase the capital of those subsidiaries. Except for those subsidiaries SAEENMB AR HA—XWEBAFEE © T
with losses during the year, an eligible subsidiary of the Company had made LB EEBHIREPNETHE  BEE— 5t g <
enough appropriation to the statutory reserves during previous years and no I e S

further appropriation required.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  E#li4R & 25 & &) 3% fE BA 2 B B 5 — OF B3
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. E=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

2022
Notes RMB’000
k=3 ARET T
Cash flows from RETHEEZ
operating activities ReRE
Cash generated from operations KEEBFRE 30 252,429 44,172
Income tax paid BB (7,184) (9,054)
Net cash inflow from operating RETHEECHESFE
activities 245,245 35,118
Cash flows from RETBHEEZ
investing activities ReRE
Redemption of financial assets BRZEARBES AR
at fair value through profit or loss ZEMEE
(“FVTPL") - 181,467
Withdrawals of fixed bank deposits RERITEHIFE 361,839 1,028,419
Increase in amount due from an JE LU BS: & R R FRIRE N
associate = (394)
Placement of fixed bank deposits FHEBEITEEHER (651,493) (829,845)
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE BELRXRE
equipment (29,304) (66,961)
Interest received 2 F E 25,979 24,326
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from BREZE (FFA) EE£2
investing activities BEFE (292,979) 337,012
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

HMERERER E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIEZ2FE

2022
Notes RMB’000
ot ARBT T
Cash flows from MEETHEEZ
financing activities HEeERE
Draw down of bank borrowings IREVIRITIE X - 140,664
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIBITER (44,479) (96,000)
Interest paid for bank borrowings TS ERITERFE (339) (2,166)
Principal elements of lease payments (EEHEBEZ AL I D (6,165) (6,028)
Payments for shares bought back % 7 (2] B8 =2 1~ B9 F00E (2,158) (6,867)
Repayment of interest portion of BEHERBZNEED
leases liabilities (332) (593)
Dividends paid to the Company’s AR RRELFRE
shareholders (115,292) (97,008)
Transactions with non-controlling BRI RS AR R A2 5
interests = (855)
Dividends paid to non-controlling L PNGIE 2 e o
interests in subsidiaries AR E (11,012) —
Net cash outflow from financing ®EEBHFERELEE
activities (179,777) (68,853)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERBREEEY
and cash equivalents CRA) /18 nE 58 (227,511) 303,277
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURERIAESEEY
beginning of the financial year 627,594 316,744
Effects of exchange rate changes on  [EXE 8/ H R4 RIS
cash and cash equivalents ZEVHTE 4,467 7,573
Cash and cash equivalents at the HEXHRERBEELZEY
end of the year 24 404,550 627,594
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRFEcEEYWER
and cash equivalents 2
Bank balances and cash RITERRBE S 404,550 438,003
Fixed bank deposits which matured 31E A A 2| B3 #Y $R 17 %E HA
within three months T - 189,591
404,550 627,594

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMB BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

198

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
are engaged in embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment and provision of data
processing services, digital equipment, system platform,
Artificial Intelligence (“Al") self-service kiosks and other total
solutions for customers in a wide business range including
financial, retails, public services including social security,
healthcare, transportation, etc. by leveraging innovative
financial technology (“Fintech”).

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in
Hong Kong and its shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the registered office is Room
1301, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia, Harbour View Centre,
No. 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Cititrust
Private Trust (Cayman) Limited, the trustee of a family
trust established by Mr. Lu Run Ting (the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company). The ultimate controlling
party of the Company is Mr. Lu Run Ting.

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"”) as issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and requirements of the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES
IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in
Note 4.

New and amended standards adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2023:

. HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

o Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments
to HKAS 8

. International Tax Reform — Pillar Two Model Rules
— Amendments to HKAS 12

o Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction — Amendments
to HKAS 12

o Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments
to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

The amendments listed above did not have any impact
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the current or future
periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e FTE L EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES REEBRESTHEREE

IN ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES (Continued) (48)

2.3 New standards and interpretations 2.3 B EMEEKRKR2024F
that have been issued but are not 1)%1 B =k 2 &4 X E
yet effective for the financial year HAREE KXEBHI
beginning on or after 1 January 2024 ,mj% B 40
and have not been early adopted by
the Group
The following new and amended standards and LRABREBREEREMAOHDEMAE
interpretations have been issued but are not yet T AR AE A ET M AS ST AL B G fRFE -
effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RUAT Bk
ZEARZ
B HBEN
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or 1 January 2024
BERGHENFE IR ZER] Non-current 2024F1A1H
MBHFERBDEEND A
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
BB G EAE 1R 2EFT ERAMIERBEE 20241 18
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
BRVBHREEINFE 165 2 EF] EREOEPHEEAR 2024%1R18
Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements 1 January 2024
ER G EAETRREBUBERE HEMRE L 20241 18
RERIE T 2 BT
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2024
BHEREREESH (20209F) Classification by the Borrower of a Term 2024F 1818
Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause
IBBEER—ERAHFERER
EEGRANTHERNS R
Amendment to HKFRS 21 Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
BRVBHREEMNFE2H2EF] e BN 20251818
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
BB BHREENE10RREB G Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture Ie) K T
R F285 2 1BFT REEEHABEDNARAELELH
MEEHEFLE
The Group has commenced, but not yet completed, $;,1E<IEF;‘EJ 1418 15 2Rk 52 AR 5 27 1E 2 f1
an assessment of the impact of the new standards and 1 Y (& 2T 4 HL 4% 48 K B2 0 B 78 4R SR Y
amendments to standards on its results of operations SEBEELL o ANEE MR AL AR E
and financial position. The Group is not yet in a position %ﬂﬁfﬁ BEEEINFERES YA
to state whether these new standards, amendments to AR BB AR R E AT A E A
standards and interpretations would have any significant 2& °
impact on its results of operations and financial
positions.
200  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBEmREE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and cash flow
and fair value interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of the financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by
the directors of the Company. The Directors provide principles
for an overall risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas.

3.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC
with most of the transactions originally
denominated and settled in RMB. The Group
is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising
from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the US dollars (“USD")
and Hong Kong dollars (“"HKD"). Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities,
which are denominated in these currencies.

During the year ended 31 December
2023, the Group has not entered into any
derivative instruments to hedge its foreign
exchange exposures (2022: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

202

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

B EEEE m

3.1 BIEEREZE @
(a) MEE K @

(i) SPEEfE (&)

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency AREFRFHEHARA
risk at the end of the reporting period, & /9 INEE LB (A A
expressed in RMB, was as follows: REXRR)OT :
2022
usb HKD
ETT 7B
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARBTT
Trade receivables FEWE = 4,981 — 2,940 =
Other receivables H b fE Y 3k 316 1,863 3,470 3,954
Fixed bank deposits #2717 & HifE 5%
and Cash and cash  MI}E 4 KIF
equivalents SEEY 92,169 122,278 367,114 224,478
Trade payables FET B (61,272) - (15,440) =
Other payables H A FE AT R = (2,338) - (2,704)
Bank borrowings RITIE N = = = (44,818)
Net monetary assets H & EE 36,194 121,803 358,084 180,910
If RMB had strengthened/weakened by 5% i AR 5 FE R8I
against the relevant foreign currencies, with HEBEES% M
all other variable held constant, the post-tax HibFrEEEHET
profit would have been (lower)/higher as o BREENBES
follows: CRA) /EmmT :
2022
usD HKD
ETT ok
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT
(Lower)/higher on [ 75 12 K B
post-tax profit CRA)
=il
— Strengthened by 5%— F{E5% (1,357) (4,568) (13,428) (6,784)
— Weakened by 5% - EZ21H5% 1,357 4,568 13,428 6,784
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk

The Group’s main interest rate risk arises
from fixed rate pledged bank deposits, fixed
bank deposits and bank borrowings (see
Note 24 and Note 26 for details), which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on interest bearing financial assets and
liabilities, mainly interest bearing bank
balances and bank borrowings. The Group
cash flow interest rate related to financial
assets is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of interest rates quoted by the
People’s Bank of China arising from the
Group’s RMB denominated bank balances.
The Group cash flow interest rate related
to financial liabilities is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates quoted
by the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate
arising from the Group’s HKD denominated
bank borrowings. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for interest bearing bank balances at
the end of the reporting period and assumed
that the amount of assets outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding
for the whole year. 50 basis points were
used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

3

B 7% B b B 12 ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R AR P ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate

risk (Continued)

If interest rates on interest bearing bank
balances had been 50 basis points higher
(lower) and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on profit for
the year is as follows:

B EEEE m

3.1 BIEEREZE @
(a) MEE K @

(i) RERERLAE
18 7 71 Bz (48)

fifist B4R 1T 77 BRI
EF (TR 50EE
% W AMAHLE
BT HEEFHE

Increase/(decrease) in FEABEEM
profit for the year ORt2)
— 50 basis points higher - F501E 25
— 50 basis points lower — T B&5O01E = 2

BENEZENT
2022
RMB'000
ARBTT
3,557 2,706
(3,557) (2,706)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest risk as at the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

MR REE m

Corporate

1 B#ERREZE @
(b) EERK

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the
counterparties at the end of the reporting period
in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements to
cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

Trade receivables and contract assets

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit approvals.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under Expected Credit
Loss (“ECL"”) model upon application of HKFRS 9
on trade receivables and contract assets based on
credit rating. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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The Group's concentration of credit risk by N EE R EE DK EF 2 Oy
geographical locations is mainly in the Chinese FEERBTIEEHARNFEH B

mainland and Hong Kong. AL FNE A o s

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 49% KREBFEEFEER fgﬂ

(2022: 52%) of the total trade receivables as at 31 ke & A# £2023F 128 § g
December 2023 which was due from customers 3MHEWERBEREF49% S

engaged in the banking industry.

(20224 : 52%) /& FE YU iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3

206

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and bank balances

The Group also has concentration of credit risk
on pledged bank deposits and fixed bank deposits
which are deposited with banks with high credit
rating. Other than the above, the Group does
not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. The credit risks on pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
are limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

The Group has considered that credit risk on other
receivables, pledged bank deposits, fixed bank
deposits and bank balances has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and has
assessed the expected credit loss rate under
12-month expected credit loss (“ECL"”) method
based on the Group’s assessment in the risk of
default of the respective counterparties.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has assessed
that the expected loss rates for other receivables,
pledged bank deposits, fixed bank deposits and
bank balances were insignificant. Thus, no loss
allowance for other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, fixed bank deposits and bank balances
was recognised.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE @m

Corporate
Information
BEREHR

3.1 B EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Amount due from an associate V-3 ANk ] o2l
The directors of the Company make periodic RKABESREREL G 28
individual assessment on the expected credit B NEER URE o
loss of amount due from an associate based on SEMEMEE (BEEM - §§ﬂ
historical settlement records, past experience, TRMENAIEENER) - 55t
and also quantitative and qualitative information WEWKEZE AT ZED o
that is reasonable and supportive forward-looking EHEEEBERETEY 5
information. The directors of the Company MBY e KRARIES RS
considered that there is a significant increase in RAE BYIETEZLANRK - §:<
credit risk of this amount since initial recognition e RN E B R R E o
and the Group assessed its impairment loss mn REBRKETEHE %Q’r‘
based on lifetime ECL approach (also called as EEEtRAEEE (I -
“simplified approach”). For the year ended Mae ((Eexl)) - &#E=E -
31 December 2023 and 2022, loss allowance of 20234128318 K20224 2 o
RMB36,000 (2022: RMB394,000) was recognised. 12A31BLLEFE A& HE 2
SRS ARRER
HEEBESE BR 55{‘
AR#36,0007T (20224 : -
A R #394,0007T) #) 6 18 L
B o < oF
SEem
égg&
v ok
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B 75 B b B 12 )

3.1 BIEEREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment NEE RN E R TR

208

comprises the following categories:

B TR

Trade receivables

Other financial

Category  Description and contract assets assets
5l i g BRERRENEE HemEE
Performing  The counterparty has a low risk of  Lifetime ECL 12 month ECL
default and does not have any - not credit-impaired
past-due amounts
E% HHEYNEARREEEAHRER REBBEEERR 12 AFEHEEBR
— RERARIE
Watch list ~ Debtor frequently repays after due  Lifetime ECL 12 month ECL
dates but usually settles after due - not credit-impaired
date
Bx BBAZ AR ERBEBRERS REBBEEERR 1A FEHEEBR
wE — RERARIE
Doubtful There has been a significant Lifetime ECL 12 month ECL
increase in credit risk since initial - not credit-impaired
recognition through information
developed internally or external
resources
] k¢ NEEENFINPERNERET KEBEHREEEBE 1A FEREEBR
EERRBVNHERELRRE — RERRIE
i
Loss There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
asset is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
g BEBRRAZEECDERARE REBBEEEBR reRBEEER
—EfERARE —BERRE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written
the debtor is in severe financial off
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
% 5 BEEBRRABKALEREVH T R T BRI

PR % B A 5 [ R SR 2 U ol
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE @m

Corporate
Information
1 ¥ & R

3.1 B EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on

BRABEXZREBEBLA

estimate default rates and loss rates by making REBHEHANBLRZINE §2L
reference to the credit rating given by external TR EAESEATR 25
ranking agency over the expected lives of the RAGFFE A EMBREIL ;
debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking EAETBZHRASIED E?
information, including but not limited to changes BRI BB KR EEE (8 E%f[
of future economics, GDP growth rate forecast EERRRERERREER o
and market environment, that available without . GDPE K X TE R M H 5
undue cost or effort. SIRIE ) #10) k15 RS
5|8 - S
s
For trade receivables and contract assets, the NEBEH QTS E R %%J:
Group has applied the lifetime ECL approach in 4RI FNE R R B B g
HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime FEEBIERIERR -
ECL. Trade receivables and contract assets are BHEEMNREEHER O
assessed based on the provision matrix through ERENEEEE BRE E%l
grouping of various debtors that have similar RMEHNEERBERE é?j
credit risk characteristics, with consideration of B BB AR A B 5§
their corresponding estimated default rates and FERBEBNSERR 5 -
loss rates, together with the forward-looking AP WEEEFEED "
information. BEFERNEMBLRE - oF
RAIHE 15 B R - §EoE
v ok
5 ol
g5k
P
&
$9u
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e FTE L EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The table below details the credit risk exposures
of the Group’s financial assets and contract assets,

which are subject to ECL assessment:

3 BIXEERERE@m

3.1 BIEEREZE @
(b) FERK @

TRFJNAEEEREE
MENEEENRTRHEER

EIEFHENEERR

Internal
Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL
ABER 1NEARHMEESR
hit F& FRGEREEER
Financial assets at amortised cost
RBHEEATECEREE
Trade receivables 20 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix
- contracts with customers - not credit-impaired
BRER-BEFAH 13 BARBEREESNEIREE
EEFR-RERRE
Watch list ~ Lifetime ECL by provision matrix
- not credit-impaired
2pad BREBEREESNEIREE
EFR-RERRE
Doubtful Lifetime ECL by provision matrix
- not credit-impaired
A& BRRBEREESNEIREE
EFR-RERRE
Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired
E#R REBBEEBR-EEAME
Other receivables 22 Performing  12-month ECL
iR % REARSREEER

210  Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

Gross carrying amount

RAEEAE

241,345

91,880

1,197

1,596

110,947

2022

RMB'000
ARBTT

261,952

80,057

1,692

1,570

131,456



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R R EERC D

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BRERER @ 95
(Continued) ggﬁ
Sz

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B EKREE @ - 2
2 oiE

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEEK @ EER
Internal - gf

Notes credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount Qs

ABER  NEARMEEFA &

Hit FR FREGEMEEER REEEAR o

2022 Eis

RMB'000 gg%

ARBTT

Financial assets at amortised cost g éé

(Continued) £
RBHEEAGTECEREE (8) s2m

Amount due from an associate 23 Loss Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired 14,331 14,295 -

FE Y Btk ' 12 Rl FRIR B REBBEEBR-EEAME c

Pledged bank deposits, fixed bank 24 Performing ~ 12-month ECL 1,353,026 1,349,190 3 3

deposits and bank balances E gi“]‘
BEMARTEN  RITTHERM % REARSREEER g5

BEH £

Other items o
SR N

Contract assets 21 Performing  Lifetime ECL by provision matrix 12,038 10,637 s gF
- not credit-impaired 28 g—[
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 HEREREE@
(Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BIEEREZE @
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER B (&

As part of the Group's credit risk management, EAREBEERREERN—
the Group applies internal credit rating for its o REBHEELHEBN
customers in relations to its operation. The EEHETANBERATR - TR
following table provides information about the ERWEZMENEENEE
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables BERERETEHREESR (K=
and contract assets which are assessed based AR (B ) 18 2 T EE R B 5 B fE 5T
on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (Not HREERE - K2023F12A8
credit-impaired). A debtor with credit-impaired S1E-HEREEEAEAEAAR
with gross carrying amount of RMB1,596,000 as #1,596,0007T (2022%F : AR
at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB1,570,000) was #1,570,0007T) B 2 15 AR (E
assessed individually. HEBAEIT T BRI
Gross carrying amount FREEEAR 5

At 31 December 2023
7#2023%12831H

Internal credit rating A3 AR

Performing Eg 0.90% 241,345 0.00% 12,038
Watch list zpzd 1.27% 91,880 - -
Doubtful A &t 7.72% 1,197 - -

334,422 12,038
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE @m

Corporate
Information
1 ¥ & R

3.1 B EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Gross carrying amount (Continued) BREE (B4 58 (4) o2l
Average Trade Average Contract 28
At 31 December 2022 loss rate  receivables loss rate assets o
742022128318 THERE  ERER TUBREX  AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 s
ARETT ARETT N
Internal credit rating RS AR § 5?
Performing i 0.85% 261,952 0.85% 10,637 2%*
Watch list haa 1.30% 80,057 — — Eom
Doubtful L 6.29% 1,692 - - 2
=
343,701 10,637 S m
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, EEINALZHERERZIET %%]‘
the trade receivables within performing, watch list WEMBEANESER %;“
and doubtful at the end of the reporting period ERARNBNEERAER 5
which have been past due over 90 days are not R 45 HA ok 30 HA A 3890 R -
considered as in default with the consideration BRIES B IMA st ‘ g%!
that most of the customers are banking institutes B R EREU 5 2R RIE L o Eogn
and the historical repayment from trade debtors. %%: g
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, RNRFEERAEMEE B g;
the amount due from an associate was within NEIFEBREEER - i}
the category of loss. There is evidence indicating EREBEBAEREHEASEH -
that the debtor is credit-impaired. The impairment B o (A Ut ¥ FE Uk B = N %?T’H
loss on amount due from an associate provided in RIRIEIRBEERE AR 5?5;
2023 is RMB36,000 (2022: RMB394,000). #36,0007T (20224 : A
K #394,0007T) °
s £
§e
$9u
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BIXEERERE@m

(Continued)

3.1 B b2 A & (&)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EER B (&

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

214

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the contract assets was within the category
of performing. Since the assessed probability
of default of contract assets is minimal, no
impairment loss (2022: nil) is provided.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group performed impairment assessment and
did not provide allowance for credit losses for
financial assets other than trade receivables,
contract assets and amount due from an associate
as the calculated provision is insignificant after
considering the probability of default, loss rate
and adjustment with forward-looking information.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE @m

Corporate
Information
tEEH

3.1 B EREZE @
(b) FERK @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

Financial

(b) Credit risk (continued)

The following table shows the movement in TRETIRKXREEHEZE

lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade EiEIEERERE ER %2;
receivables under the lifetime ECL approach. MR FEHREEEENE 25
g o P ez
Sl
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL E £ ““
(Non-credit (credit- o
impaired) impaired) Total 5
REHEH RERH S
FEE#R FEE#R 5
(RERFE) (BEARE) G g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 %’ ‘r
ARETT ARETRE ARETR 3
As at 1 January 2022 #202251818 3,508 1,437 5035 .
Changes due to financial instruments MIATEEAZ &I A E ES
recognised as at 1 January: SlEMEL £ §;‘
- Impairment losses reversed - REBERER (3.479) - (3,479) £=u
New financial assets originated HEsRARE 3,310 - 3,310 -
Currency translation difference B ER (50) 133 83 i
As at 31 December 2022 120224128318 3,379 1,570 4949  E5g-
Changes due to financial instruments HIAIEERZE¢BIA g §i[
recognised as at 1 January: S| fEREL = S
— Impairment losses reversed - REBEER (3,117) = (3,117) -
New financial assets originated MEemAE 3,316 - 3,316 _y
Currency translation difference fEHERE (151) 26 (125) 251}
As at 31 December 2023 RW2023%12831H 3,427 1,596 5,023 .
X
g S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R AR P ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EEEE m

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

3.1 i EKREZE @

(c) Liquidity risk () REERBE

216

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents.
Our Group’s liquidity risk is further mitigated
through the availability of financing through
its own cash resources to meet its financial
commitments. In the opinion of our directors, our
Group does not have any significant liquidity risk.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can
be required to pay. The maturity dates for other
non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

RENTRIUERARERE
REEFRANRE RA
TEEY - -AKBEAAR
HESGRGERETRE
AEITHE M # AR - (&M
E-—FREERER
- AEBEEZRSAE
ErAEBERNRB LR

TRAJNAEEFETES
MEENRBREOHR -
FZRDERAEEAEL
XN RFARHMNESRE
BOARMRBES R -
HipEpTE B E2
BZMmEMMNER B - %
REBEMNEMEALRENR

At 31 December 2023 R203£12831R

Trade and bill payables ERERREREE 399,788 - - g 399,788 399,788

Other payables EthERZ 31,825 - - - 31,825 31,825

Lease liabilities fEafk 2,297 4,584 1121 5,655 14,263 11,966
433,910 4,584 1121 5,655 445,876 443,579
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 MEREEREm

(Continued)

Corporate
Information
e

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 B E ke E E @)

Financial
Highlights
HBHmE

(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () AREMHER K (H)

Repayable
on demand Total
or less than 3 months 1 year 2years  undiscounted Carrying
3 months t0 1 year t0 2 years to5years  cash flows amount
AR
FHR=1AA =fiA —£ mE ABR
nER E-f EmE F0f  HeR#E  RAfE

2023
Major Events
2023F KFi

Chairman’s
Statement
TS

RMB000  RMB'000  RMBO0  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'000 5
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR  ARETR s
8 L
=~ 2
At 31 December 2022 025128318 Eoh
Trade and bill payables ERERREMNER 336,693 - - - 336,693 336,693 : C
Other payables EtERZ 62,984 - - - 62,984 62,984 =
Bank borrowings BT 741 45,158 - - 45,899 44818 .
Lease liabiites REAE 1,466 4738 2976 9 9273 8874 Sem
EL
5 S
401,884 49,89 2976 9 454,849 453,369 £ 55
S o
[a)

4o

SRR

]

Environmental,
Social and

B.xe

Governance Report
HER

R

Report of
Directors
& s

EET

=

BEERR

Corporate Governance
Report

MBS

0
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group'’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial assets
are determined (in particular, the valuation
technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level
of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to
3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (that
is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that
include inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(that is, unobservable inputs).

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3

(Continued)

B EREEE @m

DRAH

Corporate
Information

3.2 AREBEME @

(a) BARBEEEEL
ENFEEEREE

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair value

on a recurring basis (Continued) WA LEE@E g%T
RMB'000 ik
AREEF T L
£5E
At 1 January 2022 R20224F1 /818 180,205 Sat
Net gain on financial assets TREEFKR 1,262 B
Redemption of financial assets ERe/mEE (181,467) 7 =
At 31 December 2022 7202212 831H - :EUH
Net gain on financial assets SRIEEFEWE — %%;H
Redemption of financial assets B ®/mEE - 5@
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12H31H - %EQ
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 20234 M2022F B 15 4= §§j
during the year ended 31 December 2023 and A HFEIBA o 227‘
2022.
L
There is no realised or unrealised gain relating to 2023 mEEALBEME = g’t
financial assets that are measured at fair value in HENEREEDER 55 i
2023 (2022: a realised gain of RMB1,262,000). W 25 A0 oK 2= 18 Y 25 (2022 55 &
Such fair value gains are included in “other gains F - EHRKZIARK g” 8
Ot;

- net”. 1,262,0007T) ° Z A 7t (B
BEEHEEMKSTATE ]
fb s —F 58] o 8=

o 5&'{%]1

Fair value measurements and valuation RABHEERIEES -

processes é-‘g é

S m

In estimating the fair value of unlisted equity £ 1f 5T 3F £ Ba ()l g5

(Sichuan Zhongruan Technology Ltd. (“SCZR")), PEEBEAERAG T g2y

the Group uses the investee’s financial statements TN AEBEE K g «
SEBEURIRE BALH ¥

as the basis for calculating the fair value of
unlisted equity (“SCZR") under the asset-based
valuation method.

BRAER KAEET
ok Et B3 E AR ([T
IRk ) 82 Ao (B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e FTE L EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BREMERE @
(Continued)
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 A RAEEMES @

(a) Fair value of the Group’s financial () BEAREBELKLE M
assets that are measured at fair value ENAEESREE
on a recurring basis (Continued) N REE @
Reconciliation of Level 3 measurement FIERFTTEH K
The following table presents the reconciliation of TREJN S RMEERNSE3
Level 3 measurement of the financial assets: [ GT 2 ¥R

Valuation Relationship
Fair value technique(s) and key ~ Significant unobservable inputs to
Financial asset Fair value hierarchy input(s) unobservable input(s) fair value
HETER EXFAER FUBERA\HER
SHEE AMER MEEER  IERAHE BAEE MEEZRRE
Unlisted equity ("SCZR") ~ Asat 31 December 2023:  Level 3 Asset-based valuation  Discount ratio The higher the discount
RMB nil (as at 31 December method - fair ratio, the lower the
2022: RMB nil) value is estimated fair value and vice
by multiplying the versa.
carrying amount of
the recoverable net
assets of investee
which is in the state
of bankruptcy and
liquidation, with
a certain discount
ratio.
FETRE(mIGE])  2M03ENA31R: ARE  $3ER BEMEE-DABE HRE NA%EE  DABEEY
27 (02612A318 : PRSI £ R2H%
ARBET) ERERENTHE
FEENEREER
N-RRAEEE
Information about the valuation techniques and REKBEBEEANLBER
inputs used in determining the fair value of various BeEEFERERN&E
assets are disclosed above. Please refer to Note 18 AHEBEZHBEEZEER L
for more details. WM E A E ZAME
o B2 BEHEE18 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(b) Fair value of financial instruments at
amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate
their fair values at the end of each reporting
period.

4 CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

(a)

(b)

Write-down of inventories to net
realisable values

Management estimated net realisable values based
on ageing of inventories, current market price and
estimated future market demand. Such estimation
required the use of significant judgments and key
assumptions which take into consideration of historical
sales record, utilisation records, ageing and expectations
for future sales orders. Such judgments were subject
to uncertainties as a result of future changes in market
trends and customer demands.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are
assessed based on the provision matrix through
grouping of various debtors that have similar credit
risk characteristics, with consideration of their
corresponding estimated default rates and loss rates,
together with the forward-looking information. The
Group uses estimations and judgments to estimate
default rates and loss rates by making reference to
the credit rating given by external ranking agency and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(b).

3 BKRERERE @

3.2 A REEME @

(b) BBEKETENE
MTANAREE

AEEEEERAS RE
1 ¥ &= B3 K 12 S A AR 5
REAMBERENERE
ElEBABEMNERERE
BEANAEEES

4 BAREETEERAE

(a)

(b)

EHEREEZRERAT

WM FEZEAERFE

EEEBREBEFERK EA™
LERMBET RRT HF KM
AAATERRE  BLEGEFFE
EREZNHEMERRKRR
BEEHEMBERERE T ELH
R AL REMR
KEEFNTENEH - HH
BEMEPFERNRRE
B H TN -

TREEZRE

TREERERERENER
- BAKAEHEUEER

REBNSBEKSADE I
ZEEMEBNGEENETME
KE AR ATIESEE B KRG
Mo AEEBB2EINBFR
KREENERIRNERE
BRENZMAIEEER &
PR i & 70 4 [ 2R i 512 K9 R A0
BRE o AR B PTER MR R
R A% A0 8 A BUR 5 15 4 B 0 MY
3 1()EREF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

222

INFORMATION

5.1 Description of segments and principal

activities

Segment information has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports which are reviewed by the
Chairman of the Company, being the chief operating
decision maker, in order to allocate resources to the
operating and reportable segments and to assess their
performance.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 are as follows:

Embedded software and secure payment products

BMARKH ML 2T Em -

Platform and service -

F e kR =

Each operating and reportable segment derives its
revenue from the sales of products and provision of
data processing services. They are managed separately
because each product requires different production and
marketing strategies.

Segment results represent the gross profits earned by
each segment.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

5 WARZDEEHR

5.1 ZEBHH MR F EIRE

SBARNRANBERRE
RIS TR S - Ut P HE IR R
EMEARADREEREE—A
ARERBHN - LFIRAEE
R AT 5 35 B R AL
TR

RIBEFEM B HRE LR -
AEEEERAHREDBAT ¢

Design, development, manufacture and sale
of embedded software and secure payment
products for smart secure payment.

REt - B RHENHEEEL 2 NE
MBRAAKEMLZ 2 ER °

Provision of data processing, digital
equipment, system platforms and other
total solutions for customers in a wide
business range including financial, retails,
public services including social security,
healthcare, transportation, etc. by
leveraging innovative Fintech.

REAFERME  RE TE  REH
SRE L RBELAARBEZEAR
FREBBERE BFLERE ZREFeR
HMEBBRTER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDEER @
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Corporate
Information
1 ¥ & R

5.1 Description of segments and principal 5.1 7 EB 4l B4 F EIE ) () -
activities (continued) 5
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTAREEZEITHRE DI o
results by reportable segment: WA R 24~ DT mé‘}
Revenue Results g%
A E4

2022 2022 5
RMB'000 RMB'OOO "
ARBTT ARETT o

Sales to external parties of AINBEFEZHE

- embedded software and - ARG NL 2 2
secure payment products S Em 949,781 1,009,115 264,059 221,250 5
— platform and service - ¥ & kER% 466,792 521,136 155,993 181,886 g
=
1,416,573 1,530,251 420,052 403,136
o} g
5 e
Other income H b U A 50,665 49,169 5 gin
Other gains - net o W zs — %5 309 47,889 5 S
Research and development  #f% & H 258
expenses (102,451) (112,955) 5 W
Selling and distribution HERDHER
expenses (143,596) (172,822) o
Administrative expenses THREX (48,302) (41,623) T ;%t
(Provision for)/reversal of U s (REERE) %E EQ“
impairment loss on trade JREE B 55 &
receivables (199) 169 o2
Impairment loss on amount  FEUREE S A R FHIE 2 o
due from an associate HEEE (36) (394)
Impairment loss of investment & & ¥% 7 5 (B 518 5 n 4
properties (4,974) = S
Finance income/(costs) - net  Bf U A/ (A7) §5g
—REE 2,265 (8,499)
Profit before income tax Bk BT 15 4 A A 173,733 164,070 g 4
5} 3}1
The management of the Group makes decisions NEFBETEBEREBREIESD I EF %L(J
according to the gross profit of each segment. No EERAE - HMEHSIPEEXA 5
information of segment assets and liabilities is available BEERNITBUEETREERL S -
for the assessment of performance of different business BHRIB-FH  WEZRS = £
activities. Therefore, no information about segment HAREREEBEEE o ge
assets and liabilities is presented. cE

EHEARERERAT —S-=FF5K 23



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARZDFER @
INFORMATION (continued)
5.2 Revenue 5.2 LA
The segment information for the year ended 31 #H E2023F 128318 K2022%12A
December 2023 and 2022 by business segment were as BTHIEFEREBE»BZ D BER
follows: N

Types of goods or services E¥ = REESE
Embedded software and HONE b

secure payment products Em 949,781 - 949,781
Data processing HIERE - 183,005 183,005
Digital equipment TR E - 283,787 283,787
Total A&t 949,781 466,792 1,416,573

Revenue from sale of embedded software and secure MARBENEZE S NE S HEL
payment products and sale of digital equipment are AREBFLHEOHEEWALTE @R
recognised at a point in time, and revenue from data I BERERR - 1 BUE R 12 AR A5 BV M A B
processing services are recognised over time. R— B ARER ©

224 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDHER @
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

Corporate
Information
BEER

5.2 Revenue (Continued) 5.2 WA ()

Financial
Highlights
HBHmE

2023
Major Events
2023F RE&E

Chairman’s
Statement
EREHE

oS

Geographical markets 1t & T 35 2sk
The Chinese mainland B A3 653,112 443,611 1,096,723 %5%
Non-Chinese mainland JERE A 296,669 23,181 319,850 5 e
Total EEr 949,781 466,792 1,416,573 L

For the year ended 31 December 2022

Directors and Senior
Management
FRERER

BZE2022F12A31A L2 FE :
Embedded -
software
and secure Platform ‘ gf—é
payment and R
products service Total £ g
WA B c82a
IEES T 57 8x
E ¥ e kRS A&t G
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

==

ARETT ARBTT ARETT

R

Report of
Directors
o

EET

Types of goods or services &Y HREEE
Embedded software and BARBGEMNZ 2

secure payment products Em 1,009,115 - 1,009,115 %
Data processing HIRRE = 203,385 203,385 § %
Digital equipment BTFLHRE - 317,751 317,751 8 g%
B
X

Total aaEr 1,009,115 521,136 1,530,251 S

0
_ 2
=25
s}

c €
T o
c =
[
%]

MBS

CHEABZRERAT —S-=F8 275



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

5

226

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

5.2 Revenue (Continued)

Revenue from sale of embedded software and secure
payment products and sale of digital equipment are
recognised at a point in time, and revenue from data
processing services are recognised over time.

5 WARDZEHER @

5.2 WA @)

BMAXBHMLZEXNERD
HEWRARBFLRENHEE
Yo A FE 5 M B B RE AR - T &K
1R Ba AR 75 B M A RIS — BR B

MANER o
For the year ended 31 December 2022
BZ202F12R3181L2FE
Embedded
software
and secure Platform
payment and
products service Total
BRARBMY
MZ 2%
Em Ta kR &%
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT AR®T T

Geographical markets 1t & 3%

The Chinese mainland B A i 775,798 503,553 1,279,351

Non-Chinese mainland JERE A 233,317 17,583 250,900

Total aFr 1,009,115 521,136 1,530,251
Information about major customer EFHEXTEEFHER

For the year ended 31 December 2023, there was
one customer with revenue of RMB161,148,000 in
aggregate from the segments of both embedded
software and secure payment products and platform
and service which accounted for more than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue (2022: none).

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5 WARDHER wm 25%
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued) g%%
SES

5.3 Segment assets 5.3 DEfEE = £
S Sim

Information about the Group’s non-current assets NEB KSR T A RIELERIEEE £ IR
except for financial instruments and deferred tax assets SNZ BT IERE B EIRE E TR E e

by location of assets is presented as below: SE2RMT : . ET
2022 g8

RMB'000

ARETF T 554

c EW

=S

Hong Kong &% 136,903 141,105 -

The Chinese mainland o B A 390,125 396,949 5
527,028 538,054 -

Exim

o © &Y

5.4 Accounting policies of revenue 5.4 IWARBRZETHE 5 ©

recognition -

S [

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a AREBERFEABHNEERER é%m
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” WA BIFAETENE TN ;gi

of the goods and services underlying the particular EYSRE [ITHE #EkEe g%F
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. ZER o 5
4
A performance obligation represents a good or service BHBEEBEAR—{Hk—EA . &%
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a Eo0EY (KREsx—HE §§§<ﬂ
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially R  KEZEAE HEE é% éﬁ[

the same. TE D K DA - L
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT

228

IN FORMAT'ON (Continued)

5.4 Accounting policies of revenue

recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
and service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for goods and services
that the Group has transferred to a customer that is
not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment
in accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

5.4 Accounting policies of revenue
recognition (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods and services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a

net basis.

(a) Performance obligation for contracts
with customers

(i)

Sales of embedded software and
secure payment products

The Group sells embedded software and
secure payment products to financial
institutions, retail businesses, public sectors
including social security, healthcare,
transportation and others. Revenue on sales
of embedded software and secure payment
products is recognised at the point of time
when control of the goods has transferred to
the customers, being when the goods have
been shipped to the designed location.

5 WARDZHER @

5.4 IWABR Z2ETBE @)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

230

5.4 Accounting policies of revenue
recognition (Continued)

(a) Performance obligation for contracts
with customers (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Sales of data processing services

The data processing services, including
encode cardholder information and/
or develop and load custom software
applications to embedded software and
secure payment products, which are
considered to be a distinct service as it is
regularly supplied by the Group to customers
on a stand-alone basis. The transaction
price of data processing service each activity
makes reference to the quotation that the
Group offered to the customers and revenue
is recognised over time as the performance
obligation is satisfied through creating
or enhancing an asset that the customer
controls.

Sales of digital equipment

The Group also provides self-service kiosks
and on-site, instant card issuance system
solutions to its customers. The revenue
is recognised at the point of time when
control of the goods has transferred to the
customers, being when the goods have
been shipped to the designed location
and installation of the digital equipment is
completed with customers’ acceptance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT 5
INFORMATION (continued)

WA R D EHE R @

Corporate
Information
O EEH

5.4 Accounting policies of revenue 5.4 WWAER z2E5HBUR @)

recognition (Continued)

Financial

(b) Contracts with multiple performance (b) EZEBBAHNEEZ2E 2%
obligations (including allocation of A (BEXZEBED g@
transaction price) o2 8e) "5

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligation (i.e. embedded software
and secure payment products for smart secure
payment and data processing solution) the
Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone

HRBEE-—HBALBEOE
BOaH (MBRELEX
RN RARE ML
EXNEM RBEEE
fRIRFTR)  NEHEIZMA
HEBEVHWHEERASTA

©n
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(@]
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JE S

2 2
selling price basis. BARE DR ZERE - B
£ O a1
% 5oy
The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good HIEENEBIKEDNT § for
or service underlying each performance obligation I 79 78 om 2k AR 7% B9 98 N7 6
is determined at contract inception. It represents E BN A 4 E] 3 RE 5 |
the price at which the Group would sell a T oZBRERANAERE &“g*ﬁ
promised good or service separately to a customer. AEERE DB REEE 5 %H
BEREFHER - g;;
s ®
If a stand-alone selling price is not directly IMRBIHEBRNAIE
4

observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance
obligation reflects the amount of consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring the promised goods or
services to the customer.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

5

232

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
|NFORMAT|ON (Continued)

5.4 Accounting policies of revenue
recognition (Continued)

(b) Contracts with multiple performance

obligations (including allocation of
transaction price) (Continued)

The normal credit period is 30-150 days upon
delivery. Retentions held by customers are
normally payable between 6 months to 1 year
by the customers from the date of issuance of
invoice. Such retentions include retentions for
embedded software and secure payment products
required by customers to insure performance of
Integrated Circuit (“1C") chips during the warranty
period. The card issuance system solutions also
have retentions ranging from 5% to 10%, which
are payable after the expiration of the warranty
period. These warranties associated with the
goods cannot be purchased separately and they
serve as an assurance that the goods sold comply
with agreed— upon specifications. Accordingly, the
Group accounts for warranties in accordance with
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets

The contracts for embedded software and secure
payment products, digital equipment and data
processing services are for periods of one year or
less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B R R M (®|)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HlA
2022
RMB’000
AREF T
Government grants BT 78 B 951 4,186
Interest income from bank deposits 81T 1% 3% F & W A 32,649 27,681
Value-added tax refund 18 (8 T R F 12,776 14,195
Rental income from investment REWENHES KA
property 3,675 2,034
Others Hib 614 1,073
50,665 49,169
7 OTHER GAIN - NET 7 Htlkzm-—FE
2022
RMB'000
AREF T
Net exchange gains b s EE 333 46,301
Investment income from financial LWAnBEFTEEEEZS
assets at FVTPL (Note 3.2) FTAEHERZNESR
BEREWRA (F1i23.2) - 1,262
Gain on lease modification 1& B 7R 49 IR 25 = 741
Loss on disposal of property, plant B EWZE HEKREER
and equipment (24) (447)
Others Hib - 32
309 47,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

234

EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 BRMELSENEHR
2022
Note RMB’'000
k=3 AR®BT T
Cost of inventories sold EEFESEKAE 19 848,085 933,325
(Reversal of write-down)/ GFERE(BERD)
write-down of inventories SORE R 19 (4,351) 22,006
Employee benefits expenses BTIHFBER 10 224,680 250,861
Depreciation of property, plant and %1% - /& R 5
equipment e 15 36,186 33,232
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ([FREEEITE 16 5,987 6,244
Depreciation of investment REMENE
properties 17 9,266 3,879
Legal and professional fees EENMBEEER 3,163 3,571
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B &
— audit services - ZER T 1,841 1,377
— non-audit services - ERERTE 468 402
Business entertainment expenses XBRFER 4,416 6,803
Freight and duties EE NN 30,571 13,552
Professional service fees HERKE 26,987 69,656
Testing fees iR B 8,609 9,561
Travelling and transportation =IRE
expenses 14,726 13,032
Other expenses EMEA 80,236 87,014
Total cost of sales, research and SHERKAN - HEER
development expenses, selling CHHEROHEER
and distribution expenses and ARATE A &5
administrative expenses 1,290,870 1,454,515
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B R R M (®|)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

9 FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS) — NET 9 BBWKA(EA)—FE s
2022 Se4
RMB'000

AREF T © 2

Unwinding interest income from HEFRZESITEEL Y =
deposits paid to suppliers B U A 2,936 2,498 o

= b

R

Finance income g 3N 2,936 2,498 Neo
=R

Interest expense discounted from HEERRBSIFTRELEZ Cyo.
deposits paid to suppliers IS E=g=! — (8,084) z E?f

o = S e

Borrowing costs ER=UD PN (339) (2,320) o

Interest expense on lease liabilities MHE&BEMNEER (332) (593)
Finance costs B 78 AR A< (671) (10,997) gﬁ;
Net finance income/(costs) B A (RA) S5 2,265 (8,499) %gﬁ
10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 10 ETHFEBEH i

S [

2022 2 %[

RMB’000 oS4

ARETT g

Directors’ emoluments (Note 17) BEME (AET1) 17,123 16,218 R
Retirement benefits scheme SR ARTRFI S B 3k 5. 28
contributions 14,462 14,417 ég £
Staff costs BIRA 193,095 220226  §%ie
Total employee benefits expenses ETIFBERA 224,680 250,861 O

R &

o
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R AR Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

(Continued)

Note: The Group participates in MPF for its qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. Under the rules of MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employee’s salaries, up to a
maximum of HKD1,500 per employee per month. The assets of MPF are
held separately from those of the Group companies in an independently
administered fund.

The qualifying employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Chinese
mainland are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
scheme operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

Save for the above, the Group has no other obligation. No forfeited
contributions (by employers on behalf of employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in such contributions) may be used by the
employer to reduce the existing level of contributions.

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES

11

ETISEBERw

ﬁ_&

REBREBNEEEISMEBRTE
T AU ARS% - LAEF A #¥1,5007T
BLER - BREESHNEEHRAEBEHH -
HEZAABLERE -

AEERFEAMHBARNEGRET
2 ERFEENBEREERKE
MEtdl - ZEMBRARARETIERLR
B — 5E Lo i A AR PR AR R AT ISR - A&
B gt RABA B E B EEREX
FTEIM R E R

BEmE AKREYEHEMEE - BHE

BERORKz R (AREERZFEHRKE
BEARNGEZ 8 TR ATHEE

FRAHBR B K 2 5K

ES BERITERAN
REFHETHS

2022

RMB’'000

ARET T

Directors’ fees e 594 565
Other emoluments to executive EMFHITESHEINS

directors

— basic salaries and allowances - B & EEE, 10,795 10,224

— bonus - %45 5,665 5,348
— retirement benefits scheme - RIRERFTEIH R

contributions 69 81

17,123 16,218

Unless indicated otherwise, bonus of the directors was
discretionary and determined with reference to the Group’s
performance, individual performances and comparable market
statistics.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R B TR R AR P A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11 EE - BEEFEITEERNX
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID ESH¥METME @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Corporate
Information
GHRER

T 2
Mr. Hou Ping is also the chief executive (the “Chief EEEEHBWRARFREENITE @ fib éziﬂx:
Executive”) of the Company and his emoluments disclosed M T TRER  BIEHEETE L
below include those for services rendered by him as the Chief FBHITEMREREOME - i
Executive. 5

SoK
Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments for the year, WiEEB 2 iR B A FHEEY §§
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and FiEBEC EENEERTEAFEZ B
Companies Ordinance is as follows: e ééfx

S 3
For the year ended 31 December 2023: BZE2023F12831HLLFE G

Management Discussion
and Analysis
IR W B KD

=

22l
(A) Executive directors (A BTEE g gf[u
Mr. Lu Run Ting EBELLE 3,761 - 2,409 = 6,170 -
Mr. Lu Runyi BRRLE 1,311 - 585 = 1,896 4
Mr. Hou Ping &EEE 2,679 - 1,927 16 4,622 = ;“
Mr. Wu Sigiang REHLE 635 - 300 21 956 55
Mr. Lu Wai Lim ERELL 888 = 333 16 1,237 5558
Ms. Li Yijin 3 e 1,521 - 11 16 1,648 M“OL

R

(B) Independent non-executive (B) By EHTEE

directors 5 ok

Ms. Ye Lu Rrat = 178 = = 178 ge

Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin EXEEE - 238 - - 238 =l
Mr. Lai Tung Kwok (Note) RGELE () - 178 - - 178 B

in

10,795 594 5,665 69 17,123 ssh

gl

g «
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 11 EE - BEEITEEHRX
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID ESHME TS @
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022: HZE2022F12A31HLEFE -
Retirement
Basic benefits
salaries and Directors’ scheme
allowances fees Bonus  contributions Total
358 RINET
H2E ik ®e HEIfET R

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARET:R

(A) Executive directors (A BTEE
Mr. Lu Run Ting EHELE 3,576 - 2,290 = 5,866
Mr. Lu Runyi EEREE 1,247 - 556 15 1818
Mr. Hou Ping S 2,548 - 1,832 15 4,395
Mr. Wu Sigiang REBREE 642 - 300 2 963
Mr. Lu Wai Lim ERRAE 765 - 264 15 1,044
Ms. Li Yijin THELL 1,446 = 106 15 1,567
(B) Independent non-executive (B) By EHTEE
directors
Ms. Ye Lu Rt - 169 - = 169
Mr. Mak Wing Sum Alvin BXREAE - 26 - - 226
Mr. Lai Tung Kwok (Note) RRB %4 () = 106 - = 106
Mr. Yang Geng (Note) BERE(H) = 64 - = 64
10,224 565 5,348 81 16,218
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i B RS R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

11 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1M ES BEFATEERAfL .5
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EEHEMEIME @ 2tn
G ES
EMPLOYEES (Continued) _
= 28
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for bt TEE2ME AETIEARAANT Ezi“j
their services in connection with the management of the RAREBEBHBZRESE - TR
affairs of the Company and the Group. o
£
Dok
The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown LB IERITEST ST EAHE S
above were for their services as directors of the Company. EBRNATIEEZREE o S
Note: it é 555
o
- Mr. Yang Geng retired as an independent non-executive Director with — BB ER2022658178 EEB fﬂjg"
effect from 17 May 2022. JEHITES o

= Mr. Lai Tung Kwok was appointed as an independent non-executive — RIRE % AEN202265817THEZE A %

Director with effect from 17 May 2022. BYIERITES - a

The five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 #HZE2023F12A31H L FE AR A %

December 2023 included four (2022: four) directors of the RfusmFEMATEFELA (20224 5

Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above.

M) EFE HMeFBEHAR LR

The remuneration of the remaining one (2022: one) highest BRAAREZENEFERITEIN » KE S m
paid individuals who is neither a director nor Chief Executive EHBTH—AL (20226 : — () &5 2 S
of the Company during the year was as follows: HMATHBESIT : §
2022 5
RMB’000
ARBFE 5
fpce
Employees 8T ég giﬁ,&
— basic salaries and allowances — B KR4 HERL 1,799 1,711 ég gf
— bonus - 124 86 ko
— retirement benefits scheme — R ET &I g5k
contributions - 1 5ol
2oy
1,923 1,798 =

Corporate Governance
Report

=
o]
c
<
=
ic

Statements

EHEABZRERAT —S-=F8% 39



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE
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240

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose fell within the following
bands is as follows:

11 E BEEIHTEEHAN

EaFME IS @

BRARAERAIIESHMALHOA
BETRBER :

Number of employees
ETIAE

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000
2,000,0007T

AER#1,500,001 TE AR

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or the five highest paid individuals (including
directors and employees) as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. There
was no arrangement under which a director or the Chief
Executive waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year.

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
and termination benefits during the year (2022: nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by any third
parties for making available directors’ services during the year
(2022: nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors of the Company, or controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

11

12

mEMBEmREE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
each of the year or at any time during the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

This note provides an analysis of the Group’s income tax
expense, and shows what amounts are recognised directly in
equity and how the tax expense is affected by non-assessable
and non-deductible items. It also explains significant
estimates made in relation to the Group’s tax position.

1

12

EEX BHEHTEEHRAN
BEoyME T @

EERNRS  RBEIEHF
A

R SR F NERERE - AR A
BIVEASEEXBEHAARRE
ERETEERAMERREREREEN
BERRG  REREH -

FreHER

RIEHEIT T AEENAEHRE
B XWIRTERRESERN SR
AR R RS A IR B ) %2
EREAXL  BERETREANKEON
B ARRE R E AR ET

2022
RMB'000
ARET T
Current income tax BN ER 1S #4186

The Chinese mainland corporate FR B At 1 TS AR
income tax - 3,972
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFEH 21,329 11,427
21,239 15,399
Deferred income tax B IEF T 1,239 (12,308)
Income tax expense Fristi & A 22,568 3,091

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

EHEREEZRERAT

1 B R BB FI S iR b st B iR
TR EY16.5%5T & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

12

242

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HKD2,000,000 of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HKD2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat
rate of 16.5%. Accordingly, starting from the year ended
31 December 2019, the Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated
at 8.25% on the first HKD2,000,000 of the estimated
assessable profits and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits above HKD2,000,000 for Goldpac Datacard Solutions
Company Limited.

The Chinese mainland corporate income tax is calculated at
the applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the Chinese mainland.

The Company’s subsidiaries in the Chinese mainland are
subject to the Chinese mainland corporate income tax at
25%, except that Goldpac Limited which is approved for 3
years as an enterprise satisfied as a High-New Technology
Enterprise and is entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15%
in 2020, 2021 and 2022. Goldpac Limited has obtained
the renewal in 2023 and continued to be entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% in 2023, 2024 and 2025.

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and
the State Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui (2008) No.
1, only the profits earned prior to 1 January 2008, when
distributed to foreign investors, can be grandfathered with
the exemption from withholding tax. Whereas, pursuant
to Articles 3 and 27 of the Corporate Income Tax Law and
Article 91 of its Implementation Rules, dividend distributed
out of the profit generated thereafter, shall be subject to
corporate income tax at 10% or reduced tax rate if tax treaty
or arrangement applies. Under the relevant tax arrangement,
withholding tax rate on dividend distribution to the qualifying
Hong Kong resident companies is 5%. Deferred tax liabilities
on the undistributed profits earned by Goldpac Limited since
1 January 2008 have been accrued at the tax rate of 5%.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R R EERC D

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12 FiSBEA @ 95
< T Ky
S Ew
Income tax expense for the year is reconciled to profit before FERTER B A B R A S F) 89 Y ER Sed
tax as follows: N
2022 E
RMB’000
R EK

Profit before tax B B A 2 173,733 164,070 " ER

Tax at PRC tax rate of 25% 1£25%+ BIF KA E /IR S
(2022: 25%) (20224 : 25%) 43,433 41,018 o

Tax effect of amounts not taxable BENMRSENREEE 5o
for tax purpose (585) (13,934) -

Tax effect of tax losses not RERRBEENHIETEE R
recognised 2,924 2,955 Z

Previously unrecognised tax losses LA Bl 4F & oK fE 7R B 765 /65 18 74K HA 5
now recouped to reduce current BREHMEHER S
tax expenses - (580) g

Tax effect of tax concession HMEEENHETE (18,697) (23,330)

Tax effect of different tax rate of TEHEMFHE R AERELH 5 m
subsidiaries operating in other tax [ /& 2 7] &) A #¢ & A9 §1 75 2 S
jurisdiction 2 (10,312) (5.838)

Withholding EIT on undistributed AR B v A1 9 R B TR 04 2 g
profits in the PRC FTiS#% 2,907 2,743 5

Others Hib 2,898 57 }

il

Income tax expense for the year FEMESHER 22,568 3,091 éjcj %m
s3ie
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

13

244

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the Company

o by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year

13 BKRER

BERARRHER ANSRELREF
ERBEATTEETFHE

o  ARFEHEEARENE

s KBRUAXEBFFEZEEHITHM
T 15 3% i A A B

2022
RMB’000
ART T
Profit for the year attributable RAEEA ANEGEFEFHE
to owners of the Company (AR¥TIT)
(RMB’000) 132,051 147,427
Weighted average number of STEERERZFAMEAD
ordinary shares for the purpose DOAE 35 38 A% AR B
of basic earnings per share (FAE) (i)
(thousand) (Note) 811,326 814,817
Basic earnings per share EXBRENANEES)
(RMB cents) 16.3 18.1

Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the
calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have
been arrived at after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company
by an independent trustee under the shares award scheme of the
Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, diluted
earnings per share were same as the basic earnings per share
as there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding
during the years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

14 DIVIDENDS

2022 524
RMB’000
ARBFT
2023 Interim — nil 2035 FEHRH -—FRERRK
(2022 Interim — nil) per ordinary BT T(2022F F X F H é]‘;‘j‘
share —ERLEBRBEZTT) = - ST
2022 Final - HK12.0 cents 2022 FEARH - TR L BB "2y
(2021 Final - HK10.0 cents) FEE12.01(20214F & [E R 3 -
per ordinary share — BT @REE10.010) 86,469 69,292 2
2022 Special - HK4.0 cents 20225 FERBRIRE - FRE
(2021 Special — HK4.0 cents) BB EA.01LQ021FEEE SEH
per ordinary share FRIIR B — TR mARE 1
4.01) 28,823 27,716 =
115,292 97,008

Management Discussion

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend of HK10.0 cents (2022: HK12.0 cents) and a special

WEHRKRE  EFZEZMEE2023
FI2A3MEHIEFERZERBRE T

dividend of HK4.0 cents (2022: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary P% 3 3@ B% A B510.01L (20224F : B Eyg
share in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023 have 12.01l0) + LA R =R B &A% L im A% iél
been proposed by the Board and is subject to approval by E R4 Ol (20224 : Ei#k4 01L) - B ilﬁn
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual BEESHENBERTHOBREREAS i;“
general meeting. The dividend declared after 31 December EFARADNFTIEE ZHEE - R2023%F12 s
2023 has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December A3 R EREERAR B
2023. 2023F12A31HZ A& - = 5%
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15 MI% -  BERRE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor  Plantand Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
HA - £8
BT k& RE  BRERES hHEIRE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETn ARETn AREBTT ARETT ARETR
Cost BA&
At 1 January 2022 R2022E1 B1H 156,148 78,686 6,268 336,950 219,061 797,113
Additions NE - 2,774 133 5,334 58,720 66,961
Disposals RE — (1,411) (94) (21,855) - (23,360)
Transfers & 262,502 - - 8,407 (270,909) =
Transfer to investment BYRERENE
properties (Note 17) (Hit17) (140,692) - - - - (140,692)
Exchange realignment I AR 9,109 9% 181 - - 9,386
At 31 December 2022 720225128318 287,067 80,145 6488 328,836 6872 709,408
Additions NE 177 1,536 - 3,765 23,826 29,304
Disposals RE - (129) - (3,339) - (3,464)
Transfers &7 22,140 4,726 - 501 (27,367) -
Transfer to investment ERERENE
properties (Note 17) (Hit17) (11,876) - = = - (11,876)
Transfer to inventory EYERYE - - - - 97) 97)
Exchange realignment 3z 1,558 15 32 1 1 1,605
At 31 December 2023 M2023%E12A31A 299,066 86,293 6,520 329,766 3,235 724,880
Depreciation il
At 1 January 2022 R2022%1818 52,499 65,974 4,350 260,925 - 383,748
Provided for the year EREE 9,190 4,464 498 20,839 - 34,991
Transfer to investment BYRERENE
properties (Note 17) (Hit17) (1,759) = = = = (1,759)
Eliminated on disposals RER L - (1,049) (84) (21,780) - (22,913)
Exchange realignment [ AR 1,619 899 101 = = 2,619
At 31 December 2022 R2022612A318 61,549 70,288 4,865 259,984 - 396,686
Provided for the year FREE 12,734 4,882 481 18,641 - 36,738
Transfer to investment BYRERENE
properties (Note 17) (Hit17) (552) - - - - (552)
Eliminated on disposals RERHHE = (129) = (3,296) - (3,425)
Exchange realignment EiRE 330 14 20 - - 364
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12831H 74,061 75,055 5,366 275,329 - 429,811
Carrying values REER
At 31 December 2023 R2023F12A310 225,005 11,238 1,154 54,437 3,235 295,069
At 31 December 2022 #2022612 5318 225,518 9,857 1,623 68,852 6872 312,722
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B R R M (®|)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 % - BERRE@® 95
(Continued) g %Iﬁ
8~_E<H
Depreciation methods and useful lives ITE 5 E o] 5 A & Hf = £
Q oiE
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method WERANLN TN EREEEE £ IR
to allocate cost to their residual values over their estimated AR BE G E DM H R EETE o
useful lives, as follows: R ET
Buildings 20 to 30 years s
EF 20E304F
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 to 5 years £ égg
=~ N S 2
KL~ HERFZE 3ESF 5
Motor vehicles 5 to 10 years D&
RE 5E10%F <
Plant and machinery 10 years ENS
5 N 25 10%F =
See Note 40.6 for the other accounting policies relevant to EAYE BMEESEOHMEHK %
property, plant and equipment. SEER B 406 o 5

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R AR Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

16 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is
a lessee.

(i) Amounts recognised in the

16 HE

AHERENEEE P AEE A
HBA -

(i) ZREFBRRKRPER

consolidated statement of financial & %8
position
The consolidated statement of financial position shows ZEMBEMRRRTEESMHEA
the following amounts relating to leases: REREWT :
Leasehold Leased
Right-of-use assets lands  properties Total
FEHEESE HELH HEWE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBETT AREBETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2022 MW2022F1A18 24,675 13,150 37,825
Additions NE - 2,384 2,384
Depreciation e (564) (5,680) (6,244)
Lease modification HEES - (1,069) (1,069)
At 31 December 2022 M2022612A31H 24,111 8,785 32,896
At 1 January 2023 M2023FE181H 24,111 8,785 32,896
Additions NE - 9,256 9,256
Depreciation e (564) (5,423) (5,987)
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H 23,547 12,618 36,165
2022
RMB’000
AREF T
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current E 4,584 5,883
Non-current IETR & 7,382 2,991
11,966 8,874

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B R R M (®|)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

16 LEASES (continued) 16 HE @ 252

S

S Ew

(ii) Amounts recognised in the (i) MEBERIPEINSE GEd

consolidated statement of profit or -t2) - L

loss f:?

The consolidated statement of profit or loss shows the FEBRXRTHEBESRBEN S 0w

following amounts relating to leases: BT : o §T

2022 —

RMB’000 F88

ARBT T =B pw
Depreciation charge of ERAEEEREER s
right-of-use assets §
Leasehold lands et 564 564 =
Leased properties HEYH 5,423 5,680 =
5,987 6,244 N

S m

G & B

Expense relating to short-term  EB145 HiFH E4HRI A9 G X 2 2m

leases (included in cost of sales  (FF A 8% 5k 78 Al § Sie

and administrative expenses) TERRAX) BEg

132 195 s

4

The total cash outflow for leases during the year E E2023F 128318 It F E - - é‘%

ended 31 December 2023 was RMB6,486,000 (2022: HERSs BB A ARK %g %m

RMB6,621,000) excluding short-term leases. 6,486,0007T (20224 : A R# é? S

6,621,0007T) - R T BER 72

B - ° g

R &

o
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

16 LEASES (continued) 16 %ﬂ%ﬁ(%)

(i) A EEFTBHUR

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how

250

these are accounted for

The Group leases various leasehold lands and properties
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 50 years for leasehold lands and 2 years
to 5 years for properties.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets
that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions since
third party financing was received.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the
lease, then the Group entities use that rate as a starting
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

16 LEASES (Continued)

(iii) The Group’s leasing activities and how

these are accounted for (Continued)

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate,
which are not included in the lease liability until they
take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is
reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less without a
purchase option.

See Note 40.24 for the other accounting policies
relevant to leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

16

LEASES (Continued)

(iv) Variable lease payments

A lease of equipment is either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease that is based on the
volume of printing and minimum annual lease payment
that is fixed over the lease term. The amount of fixed
and variable lease payment paid/payable to relevant

16 HE @)
(iv) T EENRK

BB HEREFEEHEERN
A B EERNER S0 A] #2748
EREHEEHANEENKESF
HEFR -BEAFE BI=X
FENE=HRELEEANEEMA

lessor for the years ended: BHEERINSES
2022
RMB’'000
ARET T
Fixed payments BN - 720
Variable payments A] & K - 344
Total payments INEE= s - 1,064
17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 BEYE
_ 2022
Note RMB’000
Bt AR¥T T
Non-current assets - at cost FEREBEE - BREAK
Opening balance as at 1 January 1H1B Y4 207,107 60,789
Transfer from property, plant and  # %% - W= K& E
equipment =iy i5 11,876 140,692
Exchange realignment ME 5 58 B 963 5,626
Closing balance as at 31 December 12 831H HiR &5 219,946 207,107
Depreciation e
Opening balance as at 1 January 1R R B4 4 14,671 9,792
Provided for the year FREE 8,714 2,120
Transfer from property, plant and %% BE M &XE
equipment % 15 552 1,759
Exchange realignment BE X, & 203 1,000
Impairment A
Provision for impairment (Note i) BB (AF) 4,974 =
Closing balance as at 31 December 12831 H #iR A& 29,114 14,671
Carrying values BREEE
At 31 December MW12H31H 190,832 192,436

252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17 REWZE @
(i) Impairment for investment properties (i) REWERE o
The Group has identified certain indications of REBFBEBRAVCLREENEK %
impairment on investment properties located in Hong EMEEETHERE - HE =
Kong. The Group has carried out an impairment 2023128318 - A B E ¥
assessment on these investment properties as at BB Y EET T RER G g;‘
31 December 2023. Based on the result, the Group Bl NEB AELITEYE SaK
provided impairment loss amounting to RMB4,974,000 SHRRE R & A R ¥4,974,000 ”gg
for these investment properties. JC °© -
= oI
The impairment loss provided for above mentioned TR R ERE Y ET RO §§
investment properties is calculated by the recoverable BEXZRAKESETE -] s34
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an KEeHAEENDABER B
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. EBREKANNERBES HE 2w
The investment properties were appraised by the Asset KREYWEREEFTHAERA A 5
Appraisal Limited with the direct comparison method FREERELELBREEREERE g m
as its primary method with cross-reference to the ETHMG TEBEBATR -
observable market value of the comparable properties, Y2RBA Lt MERN A BRME 5
where appropriate. BE - E
The directors have taken fair value less costs of disposal BEEEMHTKE S EREE § -
and value in use into consideration for estimation of TARBEREEEKAFME 5w
recoverable amount. As at 31 December 2023, the BEE:- & £2023F12H31
recoverable amount was estimated by fair value less B olE £ EZ AL EER
costs of disposal. EREBRAME - s
=
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in AAhEBENEEZSELTRM §
an active market for similar properties. Where such SHREUDMENESAIEN & -
information is not available the directors consider ERIESHEBEEANNBRLT
information from a variety of sources including: EEZERKREZBRFENEM - -
BIE %%;
e current prices in an active market for properties . BT 5 R AR Y% )
of a different nature or recent prices of similar VERTEBRESNTATERT g
properties in less active markets, adjusted to SHRBELUMENTHE é 0
reflect those differences. 1R RS L g5w
=& 2L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17 REY = @)
(i) Impairment for investment properties (i) BWEWERE@
(Continued)
Investment Valuation technique  Significant
properties held Fair value  and significant unobservable Relationship of significant
by the Group hierarchy  unobservable inputs inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
AEEBEN DABE  HERGNEEN EZM EXTAHEAGA
RENE =3 FABEA FABABA HARBENBE
13th Floor, Level 3 Direct comparison
Bank of East Asia method with
Harbour View Centre, cross reference
No. 56 Gloucester Road, to the observable
Wan Chai, market value of the
Hong Kong comparable properties
BB S LITE56H F3ER ERLEE  RX2RA
RERITGERDI3E RN AER
mnEE

The key inputs are:
BREARE:

Price index adjustment ~ 0.960-1.000  The larger the price index of evaluated property,
the larger the price index adjustment and the
fair value.

EREEAE RAERENENEREEEA  BREYH
ENAAEEREA -

Age adjustment 0.988-1.016  The older the age of evaluated property, the
lower the age adjustment and the fair value.

BRAZ BAMRENENBREA  BRABNAL
EERHE -

Floor adjustment 0.978-1.020  The higher the floor of evaluated property,
the higher the floor adjustment and the fair
value.

EHAE RAGRENENERLS  BHABNALR
EERHS -

Size adjustment 0.978-1.038  The larger the size of evaluated property, the
lower the size adjustment and the fair value.

RERE BAGRENENRBEA RERENRA
EERHE -

Location adjustment ~ 0.800-1.000  The lower the location adjustment, the lower
the fair value.

- HEBBME - AhEEABE-

S

254 Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17 REWHE mw 252
(ii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss (i) REVECEERARE sge
for investment properties Er N O

Financial

=

o)
H%Z
iy
HI8N

2023
Major Events

2023F KEF

Rental income from operating LEHERA

leases 3,675 2,034
Direct operating expenses from E4FHEW AN ED

property that generated rental HEKEER

income (2,496) (2,206)
Direct operating expenses from REAMHEEW AN ED

property that did not generate ~ HEKLLEH

Chairman’s
Statement
B

rental income (6,770) (1,673) <

(iii) Presenting cash flows (i BEREZHEH ;
The Group classifies cash outflows to acquire or AEERBREREVEEL 2 %
construct investment properties as investing cash flows RentBREAKREMEREA g
and rental inflows as operating cash flows. E-HHEHERARBEALE L =

BEemE -

(iv) Leasing arrangement (iv) EEZH Sem
The investment properties are leased to tenants under &éi@\%ﬁéﬁﬁg%@’ﬁa’gﬁi ii
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. Lease *Hi\"‘ﬁ T‘E)E' i ﬁ%g(&ig : 22
income from operating leases where the Group is a Z’K*ﬁﬁm/\m"‘iﬁgﬁ%ﬁ 5
lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis EF"WE;%\WJ\E HEHANRE
over the lease term. ROETERRBIIA o

i i 3 i = 7 5. 2@
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties 54\2023¢12;)5131 H ?*@{‘ 22
at 31 December 2023 were RMB47,058,000 for REENBRANENDABE 5o
investment properties located in Hong Kong (2022: Zr&\!'r}_\E%g,OSS,OOOTE_(ZOZZ 5%
RMB54,231,000) and RMB189,530,000, for investment T IAKRMOA,231,0000L) - & 2
properties located in Zhuhai (2022: RMB189,404,000), SEMRIBE & EY RN D
respectively. The fair value has been arrived at based L E@ﬁ_j\&ﬁ%gg 530,00070
on a series of valuation carried out by Asset Appraisal (_2022/%4 é\Efq‘ 189'4% 000 N
Limited for investment properties located in Hong Kong Z\E,) °£L\/L{E\@§%T)§ﬁﬂ§§%i £ 2
and Zhuhai Chengxinda Real Estate Evaluation Co., ﬁ$1ﬁ*&$§fﬂ$ﬂéﬁifﬁgg &%gf
Ltd. for investment properties located in Zhuhai, both Fﬂﬁmﬁ mj}] R m/j&_fﬁ 57%}75? .
independent valuers, and consideration of management i%%?%%%@f@%ﬁn@%%
by reference to market value comparison. 2L B 78 MR A B X E 1) 5K g
! P BITM—RIE REEE o«
SLEMELEREL - S5
The valuation has been arrived by reference to direct ETETH%}%EEE tbﬁ/ﬁtﬁgﬁ; g:mj‘
comparison method as available in the market and Eiiﬁm{g@ ’ @}@E% |FJ 8
where appropriate, on the basis of referencing to the w2 %if/_ié MR G R R
sales transactions of similar commercial properties in MRNHER S ° 3
Hong Kong and Zhuhai. S éﬁé
=1 E TEZNEA E-SY E%#&
In estimating the fair value of the property, the highest %%ggfg‘g&%fg HT%% =3B
. . =} V@A QRS ]
and best use of the property is their current use. 5 15 1y (5 A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
B B R AR P ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(iv) Leasing arrangement (Continued)

17 BREVE w0
(iv) R EZ # @)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and ﬁizﬁaﬁﬁ:‘:ﬁ)ﬁi AEEFRKRE
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end MENFBRNAABEEBRE
of the reporting period are as follows: B
2022
Fair value
Carrying at level 3
amount Hierarchy
F3ER
BEEE AABE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTT
Investment properties located in IR EB KR EME
Hong Kong 47,058 47,058 53,503 54,231
Investment properties located in IR TKGH) K E W%
Zhuhai 143,774 189,530 138,933 189,404

The above investment properties are depreciated for 20-
30 years on a straight-line basis.

MR E Y R IR ERENR20E
3O$Hﬁﬁﬁﬁq%%°

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 NEEE N2 ER
2022
RMB’000
AREETF T
Unlisted investments in associates, #&&NRIELEMZEBZE A 7] -
at cost 12 X 2N 2,200 2,200
Share of post-acquisition results eI 2 e & R B
and reserves 1,300 1,300
Impairment loss on interests in an ~ REt& R F 22
associate BB S 1R (3,500) (3,500)
Details of the Group’s associates at the end of the reporting AN 3R 4 B SR N £ B B S N T SE 4
period are as follows: e
Proportion of issued ordinary
Country of incorporation  share and capital indirectly held
Name of entity and operation by the Group Principal activity
- mAEEFEREENERG
BEREH BMIMEERR EERRES 2 TEXK
- wm 201
Kaixin Holdings L|m|ted The British Virgin Islands 45% 45%  Investment holding
JEBERARA KEEBRES ERAT
Goldpac ACS Technologies Inc.  Philippines 45% 45%  Data processing
("Goldpac ACS") FEE YiERE
SCZR The Chinese mainland 19.68% 19.68%  Smart city platform
7o )I| A R B A i (Note i) (Note ) BEHMES
(&) (i)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

18 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 18 NEHE QA 2 m s 5q
g e
Note i:In February 2021, two external professional firms were appointed by i 202128 - JRBR R B IR BT £((2020))1] Séi
the court to act as the I|qU|dat|on administrators of SCZR pursuant 0104TF45 R EE) Bk T MR INBH =
to the court order ((2020))I|01048%45%% & £ 2 ) . The operation and HEREEED) | P EeEEEEA M
management of SCZR during the period of bankruptcy and liquidation qjﬁkﬁﬁﬁé/ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁmﬁﬁé
is undertaken by the bankruptcy administrator. In November 2021, the BB AFEYE - BHARMR2021F11AE
court declared the bankruptcy of SCZR. In June 2022, the bankruptcy ) HEPE}\E&E 2022¢6ﬂ WEESRE
administrator announced the distribution plan of SCZR’s remaining AEMH T hERGBEENDETE -
assets but the liquidation process was still in progress as at 31 72023F12A318 - M) R EE)EE T
December 2023. Therefore, according to HKAS28R (“Investments in EEETH - Atk IRIEBEF B ST i
Associates and Joint Ventures”), the Group has reclassified the equity A g8 v i&:] ([HHEAARESE B - @ )
investment of SCZR from interest in an associate to FVTPL in 2021 E¥HPRE])  BHAAREEDKELM)I S
as the Group has lost significant influence over SCZR. The Group has REEATE S AEBEDR20214E NSm
reviewed and estimated the fair value of SCZR on a regular basis under 1% PH )11 H XA AR 1R A 1 A Bk R B AY g
the requirement of HKFRS9. Please refer to Note 3.2 for more details BB Mo BEBRARBEFABEZ
about the fair value of the equity investment as at 31 December 2023. SREE AEECBREZEUBRE
EAFESRMBR T - FHRABERZ KA
P2 RREE - BEREN2023412
RA31EMARBEFRIE32.
Aggregate information of associates that BRIFEREEQATNELR
are not individually material ==
The Group has discontinued recognition of its share of loss AEBEEIFEREMBEARZE
of associates because the Group’s share of losses of the B HAANEE TS EFE(HBE N
associates in previous years has exceeded its investment AEBEECREBARLRENE - RiE
costs. The amounts of the unrecognised share of losses of the REMBERNRZEELSTE (KFH 5
associates, both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows: MEFHEH)MT - =
2022 g;i
RMB’000 S
AREF T B
Unrecognised share of losses of the ZNERMERFE(LIE L AT 2 g% £
associates for the year &5 18 - (144) 5 a
Accumulated unrecognised share of B2 A7 Rt AMEREED A 8
losses of the associates (5,260) (5,260)
° fi
quffn
2ol

LEEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

19 INVENTORIES

2022
RMB’000
AR T T
Raw materials R4 %} 222,766 260,157
Work in progress + 5K m 3,679 2,449
Finished goods X @ 139,047 168,281
365,492 430,887
Less: write-down of inventories to i : W FE & A # 17 HE
net realisable values (63,915) (68,266)
301,577 362,621
Inventories recognised as an expense during the year B E2023F12A31BLEEE &
ended 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB848,085,000 “RAEE R A ARM848,085,0007T
(2022: RMB933,325,000). These were included in cost (20224 : A FE#933,325,0007T) °
of sales. Reversal of write-down of inventories amounted HE2023F12A31BIHEEE S
to RMB4,351,000 during the year ended 31 December FEBE R A AR E4,351,0000T
2023 (2022 : write-down of inventories amounted to (2022%F - BB EEA &I B AEE
RMB22,006,000). These were recognised in cost of sales RAEEBERAAK®22006,0007T) °
in the consolidated statement of profit of loss and other BLEHAGEEBZEHEMEEUEA
comprehensive income (Note 8). FRHVEEK A (MF3ES) o
20 TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 FEWE
2022
RMB’000
AREF T
Trade receivables e g = 336,018 345,271
Less: Loss allowance (Note) B RS (i) (5,023) (4,949)
330,995 340,322
Note: Information about the impairment of trade receivables and the Group’s H: HEWRSEERRE ~AEEEENEE
exposure to credit risk can be found in Note 3.1(b). ERHE - HR2EKEE3.1(D) -
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 lifetime ECL approach to measure AEBFRBESMBREELFSRIRR
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for BIECE GRS SESHEEEE A
all trade receivables. The assessment resulted in an increase of the loss YA RN S ZOR TR B TE IS 1B B -
allowance on 31 December 2023 by RMB199,000 (2022: decrease of 2023412 A31 8 JE U S 26518 B8 3 1t
the loss allowance by RMB169,000) for trade receivables. Note 3.1(b) 1 50 A R #199,0007T (20224 : fEE
provides for details about the calculation of the allowance. HE IR SR O AR ¥169,0000T) © B

BREEFEFBERIE3 D) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i B RS R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

21

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit. Invoices
are normally payable in 30 to 150 days by the customers

20 EEWRE &K @)
FREFRNEREEDEEROARBE -
HEENNTIEREZAKREK - BE

— AR FEHB#EE30HE1508 R
HEEFYN -ZEWBEREAHZEIN

[
2o
o=
= ©
2 E
e
O'e

Financial

DRAH

from date of issuance. The following is an ageing analysis J?Eqﬂzjéj (MBBIEBEEE) R 2
of trade receivables net of provision for impairment loss ST - oSk
presented based on the invoice date: S S
=R
2022 oo
RMB’000 2
e = S
AREEFIT SEH
Ageing IRER -
0 - 90 days 0Z90H 215,954 237,750 245
91 - 180 days 912 180H 38,219 47,892 2=
181 - 365 days 181F365H 39,403 28,408 gem
Over 1 year iR —F 37,419 26,272 E m
=
330,995 340,322 5 N
CONTRACT ASSETS 21 BHEE
9 =
s ®
2022
RMB'000 _d
ARETTT 5. 9%
§eein
E_— ORX
Embedded software and secure RARRG ML 2 X NE® 3 §5[
payment products 264 1,352 5 gm
Digital equipment HF LR 11,774 9,285
5l
12,038 10,637 g ?JT}
E0 4y
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to AHEBETEEEREHBELESA
receive remaining payments from customers and not billed E\{%ﬂéﬁﬁﬁ% R EEHAMAEW K %
because rights are conditioned on the satisfaction of quality DEEH ZHEF o ;;;ﬂgﬂggﬂﬂﬂ# 5 =
over the products delivered at the reporting date. The B AXBEDEAREIED - 8%{;
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the fg\{%/ﬂ\,ﬂﬁ,eﬂﬂ F14E o g“é
rights become unconditional. The condition is fulfilled upon s

the completion of retention period which is normally between
6 months to 1 year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

22 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

23

260

22 Hip WM AN

PREPAYMENTS
2022
RMB’000
AREFIT
Current mE
— Prepayment to suppliers - 4G R M TR R 34,550 55,631
— Deposits paid to suppliers - EHERNHES 28,419 32,086
— Tender deposits - REREFS 7,764 8,590
— Employee welfare -BI®A 1,866 1,777
— Tax refund receivables — FEYE T X 1,765 2,541
— Rental and utility deposits - e kKEHE 1,724 1,720
— Others - Hfh 1,476 242
Non-current IERE
— Deposits paid to suppliers -G HERNES 67,933 84,500
145,497 187,087
s N\ =k
AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 23 FEUHE & 1 BRI
2022
RMB'000
AREFIT
Amount due from an associate JE Ui BS 5 B SR8 14,331 14,295
Less: Loss allowance (Note) B E e R E (i) (14,331) (14,295)

Note: The balance is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the directors of the Company
believe that there is significant increase in credit risk of the amount
due from an associate since initial recognition and the Group provided
impairment based on lifetime ECL. Accordingly, an expected credit loss
of RMB36,000 (2022: RMB394,000) was recognised in profit or loss as
an impairment loss on amount due from an associate.

Details of impairment assessment of amount due from an associate are
set out in Note 3.1(b).

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023

RRREERER £RBREZERERE -

R2023412A318 K2022412A318 -
RNAREFRE B A TR A 2R 8 sk
ERRRENEERRBEZE M  #A
SEERKFEHEEEBTIRRES
B AL EHEEEEAR36000
70 (20224 + A R#394,0007T) R B &=
HRRE SR B R B R R R IE R E 18 -

JRE M B B R R (B AT B9 R B A T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBEmREE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

24 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, FIXED

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CHEMFRTER RITE
HERNRERRAESE
7l

2022

RMB’000

AREEF T

Cash at banks and in hand RTERMIBS 404,550 438,003
Short-term bank deposits with an = {& A sk LA R 2| 8 19 55 B9 77 X

original maturity of three months
or less - 189,591
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMIBEEEY 404,550 627,594

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less.

The pledged bank deposits are pledged for bills payables and
carry fixed interest rate ranging from 0% to 3.99% (2022:
0.30% to 3.99%) per annum. As at 31 December 2023, the
amount of pledged bank deposits were RMB156,656,000
(2022: RMB226,953,000).

Bank balances held by the Group carry interest at the floating
rate of 0% to 1.55% (2022: 0% to 0.30%) per annum.

Fixed bank deposits held by the Group are denominated in
RMB and carry interest at the fixed rate of 1.90% to 5.50%
(2022: 2.65% to 4.68%) per annum. Fixed bank deposits
of RMB122,349,000 will be matured over one year as at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB126,500,000).

Details of impairment assessment of pledged bank deposits,
fixed bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are set out
in Note 3.1(b).

RekReFENERRAKEMEE
MR R =1AARE=1EALAZH
BB -

EERBRITGERABEMNZHEIKR
¥0%Z%3.99% (20224 : 0.30% =
3.99% ) B & F F FI K5 8 ° 722023
F12A318 ' EEFRITHFRESREA
R #156,656,0007T (20224 : AR
226,953,0007T) °

AREEFENRITFERIRZSHFH X
0%%1.55% (20224 : 0% %0.30%)
FHE e

AEEHEENRTEHERUAR
BB - $£1.90% %E5.50% (2022
F£:265%%4.68% ) B E E E F
L&t B o R2023F12A31H AR
#5122,349,0007T (20224 : AR
126,500,0007T) B E HRR TP R &
—F LA EBIH -

SHEARITER  BITEHFERFMER
MBS EEYHNRETHADRR
B 5E3.1(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e B R R AR Y EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

25 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

25 BENERKRENRE

2022

RMB’000

ART T

Trade payables R E R 255,784 259,465
Bills payables - secured B ENZEE 144,004 77,228
399,788 336,693

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within 60
to 180 days of recognition. The bills payables are secured by
pledged bank deposits.

The carrying amounts of trade and bills payables are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
short-term nature. The following is an ageing analysis of
trade and bills payables based on invoice date and bill
issuance date respectively at the end of the year.

RN ERERER - WiBEEERR6O
HE180R AT UM - BN RIENA
BEHEFRITERIEREM

EREREE  BENERXRENREE
MEEEERGASEE AR EEM
F-UTREFERENERLEN
EEREZHHAREFABBNER
BT -

2022
RMB’000
ARET T

Ageing AR iR
0 - 90 days 0Z90H 231,360 272,295
91 - 180 days 91%180H 101,052 52,520
181 - 365 days 181%365H 60,934 8,799
Over 1 year A —F 6,442 3,079
399,788 336,693
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

i B RS R AR Y R ()

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

26 BANK BORROWINGS

27

26

RITHRK

2022
RMB'000
ARBTT

Current liabilities
Bank borrowings - unsecured

REBAE
B RITE R

- 44,818

(@) All the bank borrowings in opening balance are at
floating rates.

(b) All the bank borrowings in opening balance are credit
loan and the carrying amounts of the bank borrowings

are denominated in HKD.

(c)  All the bank borrowings are repayable within one year.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

27

(a) HAVIBREE P H)FTAB RITE RS
RIFEHME -

(b) HRVIEREE P H)FT B RATHE R
REREF RITEBERNERE
SHINEES -

(0 FERTEFRHEE-—FARE
EO

2022
RMB'000
ARBTT

Embedded software and secure
payment products

BRARKHM L 2 Em

25,332 177,298

The Group receives 10% to 100% of the contract value
as deposit from customers when they sign the contracts
with customers. Contract liabilities represent the receipts in
advance from customers which is recognised as revenue at
a point in time when the control of the goods is transferred
to the customers. During the year ended 31 December 2023,
revenue recognised in the current year relating to contract
liabilities at the beginning of the year is RMB174,873,000
(2022: RMB25,552,000).

EHEREEZRERAT

EHRFHRITANRE  AEEWRRE
FAHLEMNIO%EI00%IEARF
RES - EHNEABABTPHERE B
EMEGERE - REERERFR
B FE R U A - B 22023512 H318
IEFE BREFVNEOABEHEEN
WA AR #174,873,0007T (20224 :
AR #¥25,552,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

28 OTHER PAYABLES 28 Hth FE {4 =K
2022
RMB’'000
AREFIT
Payroll and welfare payables R TE KR 35,235 45,913
Delivery and postage payables BB REE 235 5,015
Other tax payables H b e IR 15,492 5,662
Accrued expenses EIREHR 27,793 54,576
Others EA 3,797 3,393
82,552 114,559
29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 EEMIE
Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary BEEFEZEEA G A HEREE
differences under the liability method using the tax rates BEHAREHANEEHKIES LB
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting period BRI RETE N o
date.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate A& 8RB NS Bt sk
offsetting, are shown in the consolidated statement of RERRBRAT -
financial positions:
2022
RMB’'000
AREFIT
Net deferred income tax assets ERERNIELETIEE EFE
recognised 28,708 25,946
Net deferred income tax liabilities EERWIELERIE A EFEE
recognised (37,399) (33,397)
(8,691) (7,451)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
R R EERC D

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

29

The movements in the deferred income tax assets are as

iE FE B4 I8 ()

T RIEIER A A M R

follows:
Temporary
differences
arising from
loss allowance Accrued
and write-down expenses,
of inventories salaries
to net realisable payable and
values Tax losses others Total
HEBRER
HiFEE BRER
TEREREEE EREMR
MERKER RBER Bt fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARETTT
At 1 January 2022 #20251818 7,694 = = 7,694
Credited to profit or loss during FERMNERPEN
the year (Note 12) (i#12) 3,276 = 14,976 18,252
At 31 December 2022 ®2022412R318 10,970 - 14,976 25,946
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss during AR ERET (R4) /M
the year (Note 12) (Wit12) (641) 9,604 (6,201) 2,762
At 31 December 2023 R2023%12A31H 10,329 9,604 8,775 28,708
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GEMBHmRMHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The movements in the deferred income tax liabilities are as

29 R IERIE @)

AT AEBELEHBERBNE

follows:
The PRC's
withholding
tax on Unrealised
undistributed interest
earnings income Total
R B A A REBRH
RESE AR FIE WA st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®BT T
At 1 January 2022 #2022€1 818 (27,453) - (27,453)
Charged to profit or loss FARBZEF N
during the year (Note 12) (Baz12) (2,743) (3,201) (5,944)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 A31A (30,196) (3,201) (33,397)
Charged to profit or loss FAREZREP N
during the year (Note 12) (Kit12) (2,907) (1,095) (4,002)
At 31 December 2023 72023%12H31H (33,103) (4,296) (37.399)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group has unused tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income amounting
to RMB28,009,000 (2022: RMB16,313,000). The unused
tax losses were incurred by subsidiaries that is not likely to
generate taxable income in the foreseeable future. Unused
tax losses amounting to RMB27,337,000 could be used in
5 years since the year that losses were incurred and not yet
expired as at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB15,784,000).
Except for this, the remaining unused tax loss of the Group
could be carried forward indefinitely.
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M2023F12A318 ' K& B A B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBEmREE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Cash generated from operations

30 BEREER

(a) REEBERE

2022
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities K&FHELZHERE
Profit before income tax Br TSR AR T 173,733 164,070
Adjustments for: BTHEERE
Investment income from BRANEBEFABRELZ
financial assets at FVTPL TREERERA = (1,262)
Interest income from bank deposits BITFEHFIELA (32,649) (27,681)
Interest expense for bank borrowings  $R7T 15 5 F & B = 2,320
Unwinding interest income HEERESTRAEEZ
from deposits paid to suppliers A2 WA (2,935) (2,498)
Interest expense discounted HEERESTRELAL
from deposits paid to suppliers FEEH - 8,084
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREETE
plant and equipment 36,186 33,232
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 5,423 6,244
Depreciation of investment properties R AMERE 9,266 3,879
Loss on disposal of property, RENE BERSESR
plant and equipment 39 447
Impairment loss on amount due JENEE & DRI IE 2 BEEE
from an associate - 394
Modification of lease liabilities HEAREER - (741)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBRBMISER 332 593
Amortisation on land use right T fF AR 565 -
Impairment loss of investment REME 2 RERE
properties 4,974 =
194,934 187,081
Operating profit before working EEBCEHRIMLERT
capital changes in:
- Inventories -F8 61,057 (75,561)
- Contract assets -BHEAE (1,401) 3.417
— Trade receivables - Bl ER 6,534 3,660
- Other receivables and - SR R B
prepayments 44,823 (147,999)
— Contract liabilities -AHBE (151,966) 149,245
— Trade and bills payables -EBRHERREREE 62,881 (86,898)
— Other payables - B AR (33,877) 11,227
— Other operating assests -HihiEEEE 69,444 -
Cash generated from operations RETHMERE 252,429 44,172
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GEMBHmRMHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

30 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising

from financing activities

30 REREER @

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or the
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’'s
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

(b) MEEBELEZREE

1I'g

£3
i R

TRAMIAAEERREE
BELANREEY BREAED
NFRECESY FARELTHE
EMABREASESRARS
MERTROBER/IKERD
BRBEZINRESMAKRRK

activities. RemEBENEE -
Dividend Lease Bank
payable liabilities  borrowings Total
ERRE HEBE BITEX =3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETE ARETR
As at 1 January 2022 N2022%F1 811 = 14,328 - 14,328
Financing cash flow REEYHER (97,008) (6,621) 44,664 (58,965)
Dividend declared EN ) 97,008 - - 97,008
New leases entered R CHE - 2,384 = 2,384
Modification of lease HEZ = (1,810) = (1,810)
Interest on lease liabilities HEREME - 593 = 593
Interest on bank borrowings BITEHRFE - = 2,320 2,320
Interest payments for bank BIERFEXN
borrowings - - (2,166) (2,166)
At 31 December 2022 20224124318 - 8,874 44,818 53,692
As at 1 January 2023 1202341718 - 8,874 44,818 53,692
Financing cash flow REEYHER (115,292) (6,497) (44,479) (166,268)
Dividend declared BERKRE 115,292 - - 115,292
New leases entered MR CHEE = 9,257 = 9,257
Modification of lease HEZE - - - -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERMS - 332 = 332
Interest payments for bank BIERFEXN
borrowings - - (339) (339)
At 31 December 2023 720234128318 - 11,966 - 11,966
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBEmREE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

31 SHARE CAPITAL 31 A
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREE -l
‘000 HKD'000
+ ok
Issued and fully paid: BERTEHR :
At 31 December 2022 and 2023 7202212 A31H Kk20234F
12A31H 819,577 1,499,498
RMB’000
ARETFIT
Shown in the consolidated financial Fl/RR4E & Bf &5k — 020224
statements as of 31 December 12H831H K%2023%F12A831H
2022 and 2023 1,192,362

From November to December 2023 the Company purchased
1,642,000 ordinary shares on-market in order to simplify the
Company’s capital structure and did not cancel any ordinary
shares in 2023. The buy-back and cancellation were approved
by shareholders at last year’s annual general meeting, and
the payment was made out of the Company’s distributable
profits with no reduction of capital.

The shares were acquired at an average price of HKD1.44
per share, with prices ranging from HKD1.40 to HKD1.46.
The total amount of HKD2,367,000 (RMB2,158,000) paid to
acquire the shares has been deducted from retained earnings
within shareholders’ equity.

H2023F11AE12A 8 XA A
TS EEE T1,642,0000% @A
LR AR E RNEH - 2023F
RAFHEMT B - XD EEHE
HEREFBRRAG LERRESR
B AARRB A BB R
ﬁ o

6] 38 M9 B 1D A T IR 8 51 440 £
BRI RN TEE1.400E
B 462 BB G XN H
% % 5B 2,367,000 (AR
2,158,0007T) * E AR R = N A £
TSP -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

32

270

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

Share award scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 30 November 2015 (the “Adoption
Date”) with a duration of 15 years commencing from
11 December 2015. The objectives of the Share Award
Scheme are to (i) align the interests of any employee,
adviser, consultant, agent, contractor, client or supplier of
any member of the Group whom the directors in its sole
discretion considers may contribute or have contributed to
the Group (the “Participants”); (ii) recognise and motivate
the contribution of the Participants and to provide incentives
in retaining the Participants for future operation and
development of the Group; and (iii) attract suitable personnel
for the long-term growth and further strategic expansion of
the Group.

The Company has engaged the Trustee to administer and
hold the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases the
Company’s shares being awarded from the open market with
funds provided by the Company by way of contributions.

In May 2017, the Group granted 10,374,000 shares under
the Share Award Scheme to the Participants. The shares
awarded shall be vested in three years on each anniversary
of the first vesting date, which is 26 November 2017,
in equal portions. The estimated fair value of the shares
award granted at the grant date were approximately
HKD27,564,000 (equivalent to RMB24,239,000) based on the
market price of the relevant shares at the grant date.

As at 31 December 2023, all these shares were either vested

or forfeited; for which a total of 8,146,000 shares of the
Company were held by the Trustee at the year end date.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Trustee did
not acquire any ordinary shares of the Company (2022: nil),
and no shares were granted to employees under the Share
Award Scheme during the year. The Group did not recognise
any expense for the year ended 31 December 2023 in
relation to the share awards granted by the Company (2022:
nil). At 31 December 2023, 8,146,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (2022: 8,146,000 shares) are held by the Trustee.

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to
investment properties owned by the Group with lease terms
from one year to ten years, without an extension option. The
lessee does not have an option to purchase the property at
the expiry of the lease period.

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows:

32

33

UBRBARERNIXNRS

()
B 0 28 B 5+ &l ()

H E2023F12A31BILFE > %3
ARUREE AR D R AR (20224F
/) FARRERODEBAEERT
BT EMRKR ML - B E2023F12A31
HIEFE AEETEEAQARRE
B A% 19 22 B RE SR AT (AT B 52 (20224 -
) o RA2023F12A31H  LEAHE
AR 7A)8,146,0004% I & A% (2022
£ 1 8,146,0000%) °

KelE
AEBEERHEA
AREEALAANGEAESRA
REEGHRAYE BEHIZI0

FoETHEERE AEAEHEEY
M EEREZWE -

HERERKBEERXET :

2022

RMB’'000

ARETF T

Within one year —F R 2,936 4,678
In the second year F-F 2,408 6,006
In the third year == 2,706 4,988
In the fourth year FE P E 2,702 2,269
In the fifth year FRF 1,922 816
Over five years il A F 3,028 3,546
15,702 22,303
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

34 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34 EXRAEILE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of RNEREBRIAHNEBREREAEDN
the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as BERENELZ T :
follows:
2022
RMB’'000
AREFIT
Capital expenditure contracted EREWEME  BERERERN
for but not provided in the BRI ABR I ARER & Bt 15
consolidated financial statements TR A E ANF
in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 3,829 23,971
35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 35 £RMTEDE
CATEGORY
The Group holds the following financial instruments: AREEFEAUTEmMTA
2022
RMB’'000
ARET T
Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost BBEKATEZEREE
Trade receivables FEWE 330,995 340,322
Other receivables H b U K 110,947 131,456
Pledged bank deposits BHIRRITER 156,656 226,953
Fixed bank deposits RITTE B 791,820 494,643
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRIREZEEY 404,550 627,594
1,794,968 1,820,968
Financial assets at FVTPL BARBEFABRZ
TREE - =
1,794,968 1,820,968
Financial liabilities k=N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost RE KA EZ 2B E
Trade and bill payables ERNERRENER 399,788 336,693
Other payables H b fET 30 31,825 62,984
Bank borrowings RITHERX - 44,818
Lease liabilities HEAE 11,966 8,874
443,579 453,369
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period
is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than the transactions and balances with related
parties disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group has no significant
transactions with related parties.

The details of compensation of key management personnel
and remuneration of the directors of the Company are set
out in Note 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

GEMBHmRMHE @

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

37 SUBSIDIARIES

The Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share
capital consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held
directly by the Company, and the proportion of ownership
interests held equals the voting rights held by the Company.
None of the principal subsidiaries of the Company issued
any debt securities as at the date of this Annual Report. The
country of incorporation or registration is also their principal

place of business.

37 B2~ F

M2023F 128318 - ARGl HEA N
FEWBRARFBHAN TR - BRIES
5P WEBAANBRAERARDR
EEFEMILBERERK  mARB%E

BV

REERE - NA

FHEH  ARFAHMEEIZHNEB LA
BITEMEBES - MB RN
AEMEOERFE R T REBEMA -

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share capital Ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity Principal activities  and debt securities by the Company
ERALLH BRTRAR
WEAR i§¥ES L] IEXK EBUESRE AATRRNFARRR
Goldpac Investment Limited (Note i) Hong Kong, limited liability  Property holding Ordinary share 100% 100%
company - HKD1
SAERERRLA () Bt RRAMAR UES LRk
IR
Goldpac Datacard Solutions Company Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability ~ (Note ii) (Note iii) and ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100%
(Note i) company investment holding - HKD500,000
SAEFBARLA () B BRRELT (&) (i) R Lkt
BRAA - /1500,0007C
Goldpac Innovation Limited (Note ) The British Virgin slands, ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary shares 100% 100%
limited liability company -UsD100
Goldpac Innovation Limited (#7) REERREE AR LRRA
BRELAF - 1007
SecureTech Holdings Limited The British Virgin Islands, ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary shares 70% 70%
limited liability company -UsD100
ABAARES AR Lakh
BRELAT -ET1007%C
Goldpac Fintech Private Limited Singapore, limited liability ~ (Note iii) Ordinary shares 10% 70%
company -56D100
wmg BREERA (i) FRRH
- MIRE1007
Goldpac Fintech Philippines Limited Inc. The Philippines, limited (Note i) Ordinary shares 10% 70%
liability company - PHP11,000,000
FRE BRRERA (i) Lkt
- FEZHR11,000,0007
Goldpac Fintech Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong, limited liability ~ (Note ii) (Note ii) Ordinary share 70% 70%
company - HKD1
SAECRMRBEARLT BE AREELT (itii) (i) Lakh
- BEIT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

37 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

37 KB 2 F @

Place of Particulars of
incorporation and issued share capital Ownership interest held
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity Principal activities  and debt securities by the Company
SRR BRTRAR
WEAE REREREH ITEH ERUESRE AAIRRNFERRR
Goldpac Limited (Note i) The Chinese mainland, (Note ii) (Note iif) and  Registered capital 100% 100%
limited liability company*  investment holding - USD43,000,000
2ARRRAAGH) AR BREEAR: (i) (i) R AR
NG - %7143,000,0007
Goldpac Technology Service Limited (Hengqin) ~ The Chinese mainland, (Note iv) Registered capital - RMB20,000,000 100% 100%
limited liability company*
SRERERE (RZ) ERAA hERY BREERTE (i) AR
- A& #%20,000,0007
Goldpac Fintech (Zhuhai) Limited Company The Chinese mainland, Investment holding ~ Registered capital 100% 100%
(Note i) limited liability company* - U$D10,000,000
HEme AEEBIRERERLA H) TEAY EREEAT  HRAE Fif-v
- %7110,000,0007
UMV International Holding Limited (Note i) Hong Kong, limited liability ~ Investment holding ~ Ordinary share 100% 100%
company - HKD1,000
SHEREBERERAA () & BREELH BRAT LaRA
- R H1,0007
UMV Technology Limited (Zhuhai) ("UMV The Chinese mainland, (Note v) Registered capital 100% 100%
Zhuhai") limited liability company* - RMB10,000,000
SMERMRORE)ERAA(ENER])  TEMM EREELE*  (FV AfEx
- NE#10,000,0007
Zhirong Financial Services Technology (Zhuhai)  The Chinese mainland, (Note vi) Registered capital (Note vii) (Note vii)
Co., Ltd. ("Zhirong") limited liability company® - RMB10,000,000
BRERBR RS ERAFERER))  TEMD ARERERA () AfEx (i) (i)
- A& #10,000,0007
* Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law * BEREEEFMAIEBELE

#

Registered under PRC law

! R BEREFEM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

37 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

0)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

Directly held by the Company

Embedded software and secure payment products for smart secure
payment

Provision of data processing, digital equipment, system platforms and
other total solutions for customers in a wide business range including
financial, retails, public services including social security, healthcare,
transportation, etc. by leveraging innovative Fintech

Provision of logistical auxiliary service

Provision of consultancy services on information technology research
and development

Provision of computer software and hardware, research and
development in network technology and the restricted business (the
“Subject Business”)

On 8 February 2021, UMV Zhuhai, entered into a series of Variable
Interest Entity agreements (“Contractual Arrangements”) which
include The Exclusive Technological Consultation, and Services
Agreement, The Exclusive Business Co-operation Agreement, The
Exclusive Purchase Right Agreement, The Equity Pledge Agreement,
The Spousal Consent Letter and The Loan Agreement with Zhirong and
Zhirong's PRC Equity Owner. Such Contractual Arrangements enable the
Group to control Zhirong. The PRC Equity Owner is a nephew of both
Mr. Lu Run Ting and Mr. Lu Runyi. Mr. Lu Runyi is an executive Director
of the Company. Upon entering into the Contractual Arrangements,
the financial results of Zhirong were consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements of UMV Zhuhai and Zhirong became an indirect
subsidiary of the Company.

Zhirong was wholly owned by the PRC Equity Owner and is principally
engaged in the Subject Business. As advised by the PRC legal advisers
and set out below, information service platform for online data
processing and transactions processing services as well as information
service businesses (the “Restricted Business”) of the Subject
Business fall within the scope of “Value-added Telecommunication
("VAT") Services” and Zhirong has obtained the VAT License under
the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC to operate the above
services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

37 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(vii)

(Continued)

Pursuant to Contractual Arrangements, Zhirong shall engage UMV
Zhuhai on an exclusive basis to provide technological consultation and
services. Unless prior written consent has been obtained from UMV
Zhuhai or its designated nominee(s), Zhirong shall not carry on any
transaction or conduct any act that may materially adversely affect
the assets, business, personnel, obligations, rights or operation of
Zhirong. UMV Zhuhai shall provide a non-interest bearing loan in the
sum of RMB10,000,000 to the PRC Equity Owner of Zhirong, and the
PRC Equity Owner shall accept such loan in accordance with the loan
agreement.

In November 2021, UMV Zhuhai provided a non-interest bearing loan
of RMB10,000,000 to the PRC Equity Owner of Zhirong, and such
loan was totally used by the PRC Equity Owner to inject into Zhirong
as capital. During the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, UMV
Zhuhai did not provide any technological consultation and services to
Zhirong.

Due to the implementation of the share award schemes of
the Group, the Group has also set up a structured entity (the
“Group Employee Share Trust”) in 2015, and its particulars
are as follows:

Structured entity
EEHEER

Principal activities

FEEXEK

37 KB A F @

Wizt - (%)

(vii)

(&)

BEAAOZHE TReREBREZES
MR mERRTERARRE - BRIEEL
BRSNS EEEREANEADR
B BAUSRERTBETTMAAEY
TRERNEE X% AB BH
BANEEEEEATHEEOR SN
TR N ERENE SR+ R
EHEE ARE ST A AKR10,000,000
THESER  MAEREES AR
BERGBEESZEER -

202111 A @RS R A5 B & Ak =
RREHE A ARME AR E10,000,0007T &
EER  ZEEFE2HBHTERERESR
AEBEREAER AR - # £20235F
128318 K2022F12A31B IEEE - &
RBHE Bh R A2 B & AR 18 L el T 75 30
MARTS ©

MR ERAKBERD ERTE A&
BAR2015FRL T —HEBIEE
BEMEIRHRER])  HFE
s

Group Employee Share Trust

SEEIRMER

and transferred to the Participants

As the Group has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the Group Employee Share Trust and
can derive benefits from the contributions of the eligible
persons who are awarded with the shares by the schemes,
the directors of the Company consider that it is appropriate
to consolidate the Group Employee Share Trust.

Administering and holding the Company’s shares before they are vested
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

38

278

TRANSACTIONS WITH 38

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 21 June 2022, the Group acquired an additional 10%
of the issued shares of SecureTech Holdings Limited, one
of subsidiaries, for RMB855,000. Immediately prior to
the purchase, the carrying amount of the existing 40%
non-controlling interest in SecureTech Holdings Limited
was RMB4,432,000. The Group recognised a decrease in
non-controlling interests of RMB1,108,000 and an increase in
equity attributable to owners of the parent of RMB253,000.
The effect on the equity attributable to the owners of
SecureTech Holdings Limited during the year is summarised
as follows:

BFEREERRNXS

2022%F6A21A - AKEEUAR
#855,000 L Wi T H it B 2 A
SecureTech Holdings Limited 10%H#
B TR o WHE AT - SecureTech
Holdings Limited 40% 3F 1% f% # 25
WEREEE R A R%¥4,432,0007T °
AREBEBAIEZERERBD ARE
1,108,000t " ZEREB R FI A E
O 4 2% 18 00 A R #6253,0007T © AR F
JE ¥fSecureTech Holdings Limitedfi A&
ERENFELENT

2022
RMB’000
ARBT T
Carrying amount of non-controlling ER/SFEiE R ER MR E & 58
interests acquired - 1,108
Consideration paid to e JE%E A 4 25 S (N Y (B
non-controlling interests - (855)
Difference of consideration paid B JE 47 {5 4 2 I B A 22 5
recognised in the transactions BaTE
with non-controlling interests
reserve within equity - 253

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests in
2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITOIN 39 ANRIEEEBREREE

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BEIR ggmi
COMPANY Ese
Statement of financial position of the Company AABIZBEAEGBSE g
2022
RMB’000 -
ARET T met
ASSETS g 25
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE &R = 76 Tt
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR Z2&E 348,786 348,786 %é‘ﬁ
S &
Total non-current assets kRBEELTE 348,786 348,862 .
Current assets REBEE 2:1
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE U B [ 2 B FRIE 585,437 910,537 28
Fixed bank deposits IRITEHFR 282,438 368,143 Eom
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIBEEEY 12,260 78,413 S
Total current assets RBEERE 880,135 1,357,093 -
Total assets HERE 1,228,921 1,705,955  =:o
" QIE
S X
EQUITY ARG =28
Share capital f& 7 1,192,362 1,192,362 ©
Reserves &S 32,214 98,281 R
Total equity S EE 1,224,576 1,290,643  £2iu
e — 2
LIABILITIES =R ES
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables Hi AR 3,840 4,206
Amounts due to subsidiaries EAHERRARKE 505 411,106 -
Total liabilities BEEAHE 4,345 415,312 §5g
Total equity and liabilities ERHEAEAE 1,228,921 1,705,955 g
S 4
The balance sheet of the Company was approved and EE2 D MN2024F3A200 BRI B égﬂ
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20 March BAAREEBERNEM  LHMN 28
2024 and are signed on its behalf by: TEEeRERE g <
LU RUN TING HOU PING ngﬂ”
EEE BF o
Chairman and Executive Director Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer =3\
EFeFERNTEE HITEFFEEHTE

EHEARERERAT —S-=FF8% /9




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e FTE L EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

39 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITOIN

39 ARREERBRKME

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE BER @
COMPANY (Continued)
Reserve movement of the Company EKATZ@EEHER
Shares
held under
share
award Other Retained
scheme reserve earnings Total
B 2
HEED AT &l
FrFsE R 1D Hoth 5 £ B =5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT ARETT ARETI ARBTR
At 1 January 2022 M2022F 1818 (13,516) 37,681 99,517 123,682
Profit and total comprehensive 4 &% H & 2 E A 4858
income for the year - - 78,474 78,474
Purchase of shares (Note 31) & {3 [EIf& (f7:#31) - - (6,867) (6,867)
Dividends recognised as DR B (HiF14)
distribution (Note 14) - - (97,008) (97,008)
At 31 December 2022 M2022%12A31H (13,516) 37,681 74,116 98,281
Profit and total comprehensive 4 € & F| & & H 4 A 4258
income for the year - - 51,383 51,383
Purchase of shares (Note 31)  BR{p[EIf& (f7:#31) - - (2,158) (2,158)
Dividends recognised as DRI E (HiE14)
distribution (Note 14) - - (115,292) (115,292)
At 31 December 2023 M2023F12A31H (13,516) 37,681 8,049 32,214
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMBEEKXRFTHERE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES o=

Corporate
Information
TEER

01V EHRERZERR

40.1Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

Financial

(a) KB A=

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured

evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of
financial position respectively.

MEBAREAREYEAR

BEREIBAMEENEED
HRE - WE QAR E
BREEFTEFELRE
VA B R B2 7N &= (B £ AR A9 IR
RKEAE— -

MB AR XA RER T
FEREZDRINEEE
mREMEEEAR 4R
EREDEHRNREAYH
RREZFEBES -

EHEARERERAT —S-=FF5K 3]

2023
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[
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[}
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=

K
entities) over which the Group has control. The BiIZTHIENORETE (8 ]
Group controls an entity where the Group is EEBEETRE) BEAE L.
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from BREAZXHEZEEmMAE z %'5
its involvement with the entity and has the ability A] & o] SR Ay A B sk = A A géwﬁ
to affect those returns through its power to direct BO AR A&
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully BRHEEZERNENY 5
consolidated from the date on which control is 2 L0 R ANEE R gn®
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated THIZER - MEBAAR Ez?i
from the date that control ceases. ThHEEEEANEEF 2 H %;u
RAGIARE  wREHE D
Ribz AR IEE BEARR © =
The acquisition method of accounting is used to AEERBAEESHEY égiﬂj
account for business combinations by the Group. ERKEGETETERRE - E 3
" QIE
S s KX
Inter-company transactions, balances and ERANAFZENRL S - 55(‘
unrealised gains on transactions between group RoHEBRRATHWKEA -
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are FIAEE - REIREE I o
also eliminated unless the transaction provides T LAST8E - R IER SR ;%%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMBEE XK FTHERTE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES E @)

(Continued)

40.1Principles of consolidation and equity 401 R ERZE R @)

accounting (Continued)

(b) Associates (b) B AT

282

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting, after initially
being recognised at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

HMWBEERSTHER
E(a)

Corporate
Information
tEEH

Financial

015 REBEEZERR @

40.1Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(b) EEE DT @)

(b) Associates (Continued)

2023

2
@
S

&
T

=

N EEE EHE N E 2

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment

MABRIERAEEE
ZEERBNERTAY
o REREIEI T IAL
fﬁ ! %;EQ%?}TET/\H&TEEM.
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of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of BRFTEEMNE EHIE R S
equity-accounted investees have been changed B -#Em ARKEENZ: 2
where necessary to ensure consistency with the BEREREEELNE £
policies adopted by the Group. LA B £k B 7N £ B £R B A9 R §
K o § fn
The carrying amount of equity-accounted EZAEEENEEREE 5 wm
investments is tested for impairment in accordance 1% FR [t 5340.87 B 4t B IBR = E}ﬁ
with the policy described in Note 40.8. FETRERR - § %]‘
2 Sie
(c) Changes in ownership interests (c) FrEREREEH 5 m
The Group treats transactions with non-controlling NEFBGHBERNEHRLE ) g%!
interests that do not result in a loss of control as e R JE IR AR RS MO R ggf@f[
transactions with equity owners of the Group. SEREARNEEERESR %% g
A change in ownership interest results in an ENR G T BRI §u°»§?
adjustment between the carrying amounts of S AFBIERIEER BRCE
the controlling and non-controlling interests to HENEmEER Uk )
reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any HEWRE AT F ey 8 g 5 ol
difference between the amount of the adjustment o IERERARERLSRE g é’fﬂ
to non-controlling interests and any consideration HE N WHEBZREN §5g
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve EAZR BESHEE
within equity attributable to owners of Goldpac ZIERERARIEREE g
Group Limited. ERENOEBREETRE 0 O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMBEE XK FTHERTE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES E @)

(Continued)

40.1Principles of consolidation and equity 401 R ERZE R @)

accounting (Continued)

(c) Changes in ownership interests (c) FrEREERZH @

284

(Continued)

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associate is reduced but joint control or significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

40 HMBEERSTHERH
2 m

40.2 Business combination 40.2 28 6f
AEEFERBEEEAEmMA
X¥BAHAER Twedoc B
ERSTANHEMEE -BE
—XMBAREEAE BRI

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

e fair values of the assets transferred; . FrssEEEN AR EE :
o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the o WU XIS 2 RIER AP
acquired business; EEXRE:

e equity interests issued by the Group; e AEBEEBEITRAESRS
e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a s NEHERHMELETM
contingent consideration arrangement; and EEXEBENRAAEBE:
)53
e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the o [MEAREMERFERN
subsidiary. IR R R EE -

XA PR E S A &5
BEUANFAENAERSA

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with

limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

BE ALUREREERHN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY

286

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

40.2 Business combination (Continued)

The excess of the:
o consideration transferred;

o amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as
a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HWBEEAXSTHERRE .5
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES =) apf}
(Continued) -

= 2
o 0 o 2 oiE
40.3 Separate financial statements 403 B IR =
Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost M /8 2~ R 4% & R B AN H B ORLE n R
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs FIBE - R A B HEIREN HE R m%‘;g
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted BRA-IEBARMNESHAK N5k
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received AN AR YR E AR AR © =R
and receivable. .
caod
Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries A% BB R E AN B é@é‘“
is required upon receiving a dividend from these NalWEsa s K HES
investments if the dividend exceeds the total VU HBREROKEEDEER §
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period BEASHBEHRRPHIEE A A 35'
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the FEE(RERE)NEREEE E?i
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds Bl B KB A Al & & 1ERE %éL
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial A S, o ?“\""F‘
statements of the investee’s net assets including 2
goodwill. ~
S m
40.4Segment reporting 40.4 DI IR/ E E U‘
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent LESBIZRAEFELELERR g%ﬁ
with the internal reporting provided to the chief EFRENADTREEM — N
operating decision maker. FRERLE o A
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible BERKRERARFEEWRELSIEL %f;?
for allocating resources and assessing performance of REEUEAENARRZER £3 gf
the operating segments, has been identified as the BESREERMTELE D S oEm
Company’s Chairman that makes strategic decisions. HR IR o i
5ol
& O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

40 HMBEERSTHERH
N0

40.5 SNUEITE
(a) ThEER PR E &

40.5Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

288

(b)

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss on a net basis within “other gains — net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in profit
or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and
translation differences on non-monetary assets
such as equities classified as fair value through
other comprehensive income are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goldpac Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

N0 ))

40 HtBEE XS BERE

DRAH

Corporate
Information

(Continued)

Financial

40.5 M EEITE (@)

40.5Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (c) EEATF 2
g
The results and financial position of foreign HIp e S B 7| 3 § R 8%@
operations (none of which has the currency of a BEREINER (EEME B =S
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional EREKSERNERE) 2 Co.
currency different from the presentation currency ZEMBBARRIZ T A é%‘ﬁ
are translated into the presentation currency as EHAE AP R SEH
follows:
assets and liabilities for each statement of o M5B EAAR § ;:
financial position presented are translated at RAZEENEG &R @?f
the closing rate at the date of that statement Z BN R B HIAY %gﬁ
of financial position; W THE R . gmﬁ
=
income and expenses for each statement of o BHELSBERERS 5
profit or loss and statement of comprehensive T WA R A A W25 D Fe#
income are translated at average exchange ERIRTEYERRE Egl
rates (unless this is not a reasonable (B FE bt BE =R I 1R 5%&‘
approximation of the cumulative effect of XX S BHHEXRHR gET‘
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, T ENGEOR
in which case income and expenses are TEHERT W\ i
translated at the dates of the transactions); iR 5 HE R IE X o %’f
and BE) & 2Ry
all resulting exchange differences are o A BRI ELEREN Eméé
recognised in other comprehensive income. EEAEMETEIRA "
R o
5 ol
&ég
o ol
£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e FTE L EEAC )

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
40.5Foreign currency translation (continued)

(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

40.6 Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s accounting policy for property, plant and
equipment is explained in Note 15. Historical costs
include expenditures that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. All property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress, are
stated at historical cost less depreciation.
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40.6 Property, plant and equipment 40.6 1% - BERRE @)

(Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which
they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
40.8).

Construction in progress is stated at cost less
impairment losses. Cost comprises direct costs of
construction as well as borrowing costs capitalised
during the periods of construction and installation.
Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction
in progress is transferred to the appropriate class of
property, plant and equipment when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the assets for
their intended use are completed. No depreciation is
provided for in respect of construction in progress until
it is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.
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4.7 REWE

40.7 Investment properties

292

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental
yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that
are not occupied by the Group. Investment properties
are initially measured at cost, including related
transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs.
Subsequently, they are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, over their estimated useful lives.

40.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might
be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

40.9Investments and other financial assets

(a)

(b)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at fair
value; and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.

(a)

(b)
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(Continued)

40.9 Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

NIREREMEREE @)

(¢) Measurement () &8

294

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss.

Investment income from financial assets at FVTPL
is included in the “other gains — net”. See Note 7
above.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
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40.9 Investments and other financial assets
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(d) Impairment (d) ®{E

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
lifetime ECL approach permitted by HKFRS
9, which requires expected lifetime losses to
be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see Note 3.1(b) for further details.

amount is reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position where the Group currently has
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Group has also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for
offsetting but still allow for the related amounts to be
set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or
the termination of a contract.
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40 HMBEERSTHERH
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40.11 Inventories WNEE

Raw materials, work in progress and
finished goods

Raw materials, work in progress and finished goods
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis
of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted
average costs. Costs of purchased inventory are
determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

40.12 Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection or trade receivables is expected
in one year or less, they are classified as current assets.
Otherwise, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective of collecting the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 20 for further information
about the Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.1(b) for a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.
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NRBEERRESEEY

40.13 Cash and cash equivalents

298

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts.

40.14Share capital and shares held for

employee share scheme
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity instruments, for example as the result of a
share buy-back or a share-based payment plan, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to the owners of the Company
as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any
directly attributable incremental transaction costs and
the related income tax effects, is included in equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

Shares held by the Group Employee Share Trust are
disclosed as shares held under share award scheme and
deducted from equity.
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Corporate

Financial

40.15Trade and other payables 0.5 BN ER R H A B

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within 60 to 180 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented
as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12
months after the reporting period. They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

40.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
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assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.
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Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor
to extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity
swap), a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss,
which is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair
value of the equity instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

40.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying
assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.
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40.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMBEE XK FTHERTE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES E @)

(Continued)

40.18 Current and deferred income tax 40.18 ENHA R IR ZE AT B8 B 1B ()

302

(Continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HBEEE RS HERE  .s.
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES =) §§f}
(Continued) o

o £
. S S oiE
40.18 Current and deferred income tax NSENHIRIELERSBE @ 52
(Continued)
Deferred income tax (Continued) iR FE W18 () g EK
o n - 28
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there fid 7 & 2 7] 38 i 177 7 #5 B 2
o s = 4 Sy s
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets B Igﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ f& Tﬁ\ﬁ = *E “ ey
and liabilities and where the deferred tax balances %’jiﬁﬁﬁi{ﬁfﬂﬁ :I\>i&ﬁ—$ﬁ ggﬁ
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets 51 B B ﬁﬁfﬂ Iﬁ’ﬁé)}\ﬁ S &
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a EAREEA - EHEBAS A B
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to Al 38 i) 177 B0 #E R 4K 8H - B $ 8 =
NN sy s =1 ot s TH O 3 L
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle PAE /%E %ir ’iE}ZH ET%XEE%E 2
the liability simultaneously. MEHAER RHRELE 2=
NEBBERREEH - sem
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or EHHH&EEEIEE/\\EEEPEEEE N
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items 1 fef B HH&ELE%RIE/&&ESﬁ 5 m
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in f@%@”&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁkmﬁﬁm SgR
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other Eﬁﬁqﬂ ] E - AR AR 2 e
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively. }Eﬁ%ﬁ IE\ZT%/D?‘JEQ/H\@%@W g5
ARSI EENERPER - S
g = 4+ 3 i
40.19 Employee benefits NIYB TS | ¥
feda
(i) Short-term obligations (i) EEH=&®K é? T
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including Iﬁ%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ  BIE3E Sf
non-monetary benefits and accumulating sick EWMENREHER TR
leave that are expected to be settled wholly within i $HJ7§HW%%@}E{§121 A 5t
12 months after the end of the period in which Wéﬁﬁz;ﬁﬁﬁx IR IR sgm
the employees render the related service are ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ\j{iﬁ’qglﬁ&i‘% 2 Oy
recognised in respect of employees’ services up to %Tﬂﬁ?‘d C 3R E\jﬁ mE
the end of the reporting period and are measured R IS BT E

at the amounts expected to be paid when the
liabilities are settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMBEE XK FTHERTE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES E @)

(Continued)
40.19 Employee benefits (continued) 20198 THB @

(ii) Pension obligations and other social (i) BREEERHEM4

304

welfare benefits

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to
various defined contribution plans organised by
the relevant governmental authorities. The Group's
liability in respect of these plans is limited to the
contributions payable in each period. The Group's
contributions to these plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions. Assets of
the plans are held and managed by government
authorities and are separated from those of the
Group.

The Group has no legal or constructive to pay

28A

AEEEARABBRTHE
B AR 2 E B ARG
ERHMR - MAEEY
ZEEANBEEASHS
HREMOERSR - A
SEHELEHENERE
BTRHESHBRERN
RZRBEERB/F -
AEIEERBRNHERA
REBTERNEENEE

DR e

EREERABARNEE

further contributions if the fund does not hold NEZHABEETIEARFE
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits FBEFEFEEBEIRKEE

relating to employee services in the current
and prior years. The Group’s contributions to
the defined contribution plans are expensed
as incurred and not reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the plans
prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMBEEKXRFTHERE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES =@

(Continued)

40.20 Share-based payments NNARGDBEBRN A

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

Share-based compensation benefits are provided to
employees via Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, Share
Option Scheme and Share Award Scheme.

The fair value of equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share award
reserve/share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of equity instruments expected to vest based
on assessment of all relevant non-market vesting
conditions. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share award
reserve/share options reserve.

Under the share award scheme, BOCI-Prudential
Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) administers and holds
the Company’s shares before they are vested and
transferred to the Participants. The Trustee purchases
the Company’s shares being awarded from the open
market with funds provided by the Company. When
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share capital. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY HMEBEEARE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES E (#0)

(Continued)

FTBUR

4020 AR 0 B E T Y A3 om

40.20 Share-based payments (continued)

306

Tax laws or regulations may oblige an entity to
withhold an amount for an employee’s tax obligation
associated with a share-based payment and transfer
that amount, normally in cash, to the tax authority
on the employee’s behalf. To fulfil this obligation, the
terms of the share-based payment arrangement may
permit or require the Group to withhold the number
of equity instruments equal to the monetary value of
the employee’s tax obligation from the total number
of equity instruments that otherwise would have been
issued to the employee upon exercise (or vesting) of
the share-based payment (i.e. the share-based payment
arrangement has a “net settlement feature”).

The Group accounts for the withholding of shares
to fund the payment to the tax authority in respect
of the employee’s tax obligation associated with the
share-based payment as repurchase of vested equity
instruments, therefore, the payment made shall be
accounted for as a deduction from equity for the
shares withheld, except to the extent that the payment
exceeds the fair value at the net settlement date of the
equity instruments withheld.

40.21 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e IR (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

40 HMBEERSTHERH
2@

40.21 Provisions (Continued)

40.21 #4148 ()

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

40.22 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

o the profit attributable to owners of the
Company

o by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary
shares issued during the year and excluding
treasury shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e B 7S 3R R M A (@)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HthBEEE XS RRE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES ¢ )
(Continued)
40.22 Earnings per share (Continued) 028 REBF @
(ii) Diluted earnings per share (i) ERE#EEF
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used BB SRR AE BN
in the determination of basic earnings per share to EERERABHNA S5
take into account: WERE :
o the after-income tax effect of interest and o B B B T BAY AR
other financing costs associated with dilutive BT B ERE
potential ordinary shares; and R H M E & K
AR
o the weighted average number of additional o BRREREHIEE
ordinary shares that would have been EERBKIE  K1TE
outstanding assuming the conversion of all B RE SN I 38 % 00 4
dilutive potential ordinary shares. B o
40.23 Dividend income 40.23 B S Wt A
Dividends are received from financial assets measured BARBEFAEBZNSHME
at FVTPL. Dividends are recognised as other income EEAKRE BEAEEZHEY
in profit or loss when the right to receive payment U ER RS B SZ R R - IR B
is established. This applies even if they are paid REBEMKZERMET AEZ -
out of pre-acquisition profits, unless the dividend B {55 AR B 2 44 W Al FDR AR 2
clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of an W 52— RBEDAER %
investment. FEREHBRREIMLHKREK
Reyhm o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

40 HMBEERSTHERH
2@

40.24 Leases 0224FHE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
tr e B RS R R M EE (®)

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z2023F12A31HIEZFE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY 40 HMBEE XK FTHERTE
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES E @)

(Continued)

40.24 Leases (Continued) 40224 E @)

310

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs; and

© restoration costs.

Entity-specific details about the Group’s leasing policy
are provided in note 16.

40.25 Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #(ZE2023F12A31HIE 2 FE

40 SUMMARY OF OTHER POTENTIALLY
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

40 HMBEERSTHERH
2@

40.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of
the related assets.

40.27 Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB =
Year ended 31 December
REZ12A31MBL2EE
2019 2020 2021 2022
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT AR®TT
Results 4
Revenue A 1,415,665 1,281,903 1,376,524 1,530,251 1,416,573
Profits before taxation PR 3% A A B 206,882 169,242 154,939 164,070 173,733
Income tax expense PS5 E A (30,459) (23,982) (16,988) (3,091)  (22,568)
Profit for the year FEFE 176,423 145,260 137,951 160,979 151,165
Attributable to &G
- Owners of the Company N/NEIE PN 177,125 145,665 138,184 147,427 132,051
- Non-controlling interests - R (702) (405) (233) 13,552 19,114
176,423 145,260 137,951 160,979 151,165
At 31 December
®12H31H
2019 2020 2021 2022
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFTT
Assets and liabilities BEEMEE
Total assets BEE 2,635,228 2,577,263 2,609,965 2,813,857 2,693,907
Total liabilities HEE (630,824)  (579,727)  (601,360)  (743,294)  (598,836)
Net assets REE 2,004,404 1,997,536 2,008,605 2,070,563 @ 2,095,071
Attributable to e
— Owners of the Company VNN 2N 2,002,572 1,996,109 2,007,411 2,056,925 2,073,331
- Non-controlling interests - R R es 1,832 1,427 1,194 13,638 21,740
2,004,404 1,997,536 2,008,605 2,070,563 2,095,071
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